
 

FRANKLIN CITY HALL CHAMBERS 

9229 W. LOOMIS ROAD  

FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN 

 

 

                        
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA             

Thursday, November 9, 2023 at 6:00 P.M. 

 
A. Call to Order and Roll Call 

B. Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of regular meeting of October 19, 2023. 

2. Approval of the Special meeting of October 24, 2023. 

C. Public Hearing Business Matters 

1. Master Halco Special Use Amendment/Miscellaneous Application. Request for approval of a 
Special Use Amendment and Miscellaneous Application to allow for a fence wholesaler and 
distributor with indoor and outdoor storage of inventory, light fabrication of gates, and office spaces 
upon property located at 7407 South 27th Street (761 9994 006). 

2. BadAx Flats, LLC Special Use. Request for approval of a Special Use to allow for a beer and wine 

sales establishment with an outdoor wine and beer garden upon property located at 7160 South 

Ballpark Drive (754 9006 000). 

D. Business Matters 

1. Master Halco Site Plan Amendment. Request for approval of various site modifications including 
but not limited to, construction of a 28-stall parking lot, installation of new building and parking lot 
lighting, adding new landscape plantings, and construction of a storm water management pond upon 
property located at 7407 South 27th Street (761 9994 006). 

2. BadAx Flats, LLC Site Plan. Request for approval of a Site Plan to allow for the construction of a 
mixed-use multi-family and commercial building upon property located at 7160 South Ballpark Drive 
(754 9006 000). Additionally, the applicant is requesting the following waivers: 

a) Ordinance 2019-2368, Table 15-3.0442C.1, to allow for a front setback of 10 feet, 

opposed to the minimum front setback of 25 feet. 

b) Ordinance 2019-2368, Table 15-3.0442EB3.a. to reduce the required number of minimum 
plantings. 

3. City of Franklin Amendment to Planned Development District (PDD) No. 37. Request to amend 
Table 15-3.0442C.1. and Table 15-3.0442D.2. related to the Minimum Total Living Area per 
Residential Apartment Dwelling Unit and to reduce the minimum required dwelling unit size for one 
bedroom dwelling units from 700 square feet to 600 square feet.  

  
4.    Department of Public Works Site Plan Amendment. Request for approval of a Site Plan Amendment 

to allow for redesign of the existing yard, including development of a new storage building and yard 

waste drop off area, on property located at 7979 W. Ryan Road (896 9990 001). Additionally, the 

applicant is requesting a determination from Plan Commission as to whether the proposed storage 

building may be considered a Principal Structure. 

 

5.   WE Energies Site Plan Amendment. Request for approval of a Site Plan Amendment to allow for a 

redesigned atrium including entryway, landscaping, and patio, on property located at 4800 W 



Rawson Rd. (740 9988 006). 

 

E. Adjournment 
 

The YouTube channel “City of Franklin WI” will be live streaming the Plan Commission meeting so that the public will be able to 

watch and listen to the meeting. https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov. Any question regarding items on this agenda 

may be directed to the Department of City Development’s office at 414-425-4024, Monday through Friday, 8:30 AM – 5:00 PM. 

 

 *Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available at City hall during normal business hours. 

 

**Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item  

over which they have decision-making responsibility.  This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel.  

Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting. 

 

  [Note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids  

  and services.  For additional information, contact the City Clerk’s office at (414) 425-7500.] 

 

  REMINDERS: 

  Next Regular Plan Commission Meeting: December 7, 2023. 

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov


  

City of Franklin unapproved 

Plan Commission Meeting 

October 19, 2023 

Minutes 

 

A. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Mayor John Nelson called the October 19, 2023 regular Plan Commission meeting to order at 6:00 

p.m. in the Council Chambers at Franklin City Hall, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin.  

 

Present were Mayor John Nelson, Alderwoman Courtney Day, Assistant City Engineer Tyler 

Beinlich and Commissioners Patrick Léon, Patricia Hogan and Kevin Haley. Also present was City 

Attorney Jesse Wesolowski, Associate Planner Marion Ecks, Planning Intern Anna Kissel and Nick 

Johnson, Planner, MD Roofers. 

 

B. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting of October 5, 2023 

Commissioner Haley moved and Commissioner Leon seconded a motion to approve the October 

5, 2023 meeting minutes. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (5-0-0). 

 

C. Public Hearing Business Matters 

 

1.    Wamser Area Exception. Request for approval of an Area Exception to allow for a lot 

coverage increase for the installation of a deck upon property located at 7481 S. Cambridge 

Drive. 

 

 The Official Notice of Public Hearing for an Area Exception was read in to the record by 

Associate Planner Ecks and the Public Hearing opened at 6:09 p.m. and closed at 6:09 p.m.. 

 

 Applicant Steven Wamser presented his item; along with Planner Johnson.  

 

 Commissioner Leon noted that there are three letters of support from surrounding 

neighbors provided to the Commission. 

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Hogan seconded a motion to recommend 

approval of an application for an Area Exception to allow for a maximum lot coverage of 

16.68% (4,276 square feet) exceeding the maximum lot coverage standard of 15% in the R-

3E Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence District to allow for the installation of a deck, 

for property located at 7481 S. Cambridge Drive. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion 

carried (5-0-0). 

 

2.    Carma Rezoning. Request for approval of an ordinance to allow for a rezoning of property 

located at 9410 S. 76th Street (884 9997 000) currently zoned R-8 Multiple-Family Residence 

District and B-3 Community Business District; and 7520 W. Ryan Road (884 9998 000), 

currently zoned B-3 Community Business District. contingent upon approval of the related 

Certified Survey Map (Item D.1. on this agenda), future Lot 1 (currently part of 9410 S. 76th 



  

Street), is requested to be rezoned to M-1 Limited Industrial District, and future Lot 2 

(currently part of 9410 S. 76th Street), and future Lot 3 (currently part of 9410 S. 76th Street 

and 7520 W. Ryan Road), are requested to be rezoned to B-3 Community Business District.  

 

The Official Notice of Public Hearing for an Area Exception was read in to the record by 

Associate Planner Ecks and the Public Hearing opened at 6:29 p.m.. Due to incomplete 

information in the published agenda for this meeting, City Attorney Wesolowski 

recommended carrying over this item to the next meeting. 

 

Applicant Alex Scheler spoke giving a company background of Carma Laboratories Inc.  

 

Applicant representative Matt Mano, of Stephen Perry Smith Architects, Inc. gave an 

introduction of the project.  

 

Resident Will Udesky commented on his excitement about growth of the business but had 

concerns:  

o Traffic management; noise and pedestrian safety 

o S. 76th Street and W. Ryan Road intersection is over taxed/unsafe 

o Intersection is loud 

o Requesting sidewalks 

o Request truck approach from Hwy. 100, not S. 76th Street  

o Landscape buffer 

o Natural Resources protection to preserve water quality and woods 

 

The Commission discussed the proposal to continue public hearing to October 24, 2023 at 

5:00 p.m.. 

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley seconded a motion to continue this 

item to the next meeting. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (5-0-0). 

 

Commissioner Leon is in favor of sidewalks when the City allows. 

 

Assistant City Engineer Beinlich commented the County and State are doing an analysis.  

 

Commissioner Haley believes there is potential.  

 

  

3.   Carma Special Use Request for approval of a Special Use to allow for overnight truck 

parking as part of the development of the facility to be located at 9410 S. 76th Street (884 

9997 000). 

 

The Official Notice of Public Hearing for a Special Use was read in to the record by 

Associate Planner Ecks and the Public Hearing opened at 6:50 p.m. and closed at 6:52 p.m.  

 



  

Resident Will Udesky had two concerns: 

o Would prefer an entrance to parking off of W. Ryan Road; not S. 76th Street 

o Requests that the approval for truck parking not allow for idling/engine running 

 

Commissioner Leon suggested access off W. Ryan Road. There are safety concerns on left 

and right turns. Is the City working to provide access off W. Ryan Road? 

 

Alderwoman Day asked what time will trucks be coming in and out? 

 

Applicant Alex Scheler confirmed hours are 8:00-5:00 p.m. Monday-Thursday with shipping 

on Friday in cold season; no second shift. 

 

Alderwoman Day is concerned about the number of trucks. 

 

Applicant Alex Scheler indicated there will be trailers without engines between 6:00 p.m. -

8:00 a.m.. 

 

Alderwoman Day suggested adding landscaping. 

 

Commissioner Leon moved and Commissioner Haley seconded  a motion to recommend 

approval of a Resolution imposing conditions and restrictions for the approval of a Special 

Use for overnight parking for vehicles exceeding 8,000 pounds manufactured gross vehicle 

weight as part of the development of a single-story building housing offices and 

manufacturing facilities (Carma Laboratories), upon property located at 9410 S. 76th Street 

(by Alex Scheler, Carma Laboratories, Inc., applicant, Carma Laboratories, Inc., property 

owner). On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (5-0-0). 

 

 

  

D. Business Matters 

 

1.    Carma CSM. Request for a three lot CSM to replat two existing lots located at 9410 S. 76th 

Street (884 9997 000) and 7520 W. Ryan Road (884 9998 000).  

 

 Associate Planner Ecks presented the Certified Survey Map for the properties at 9410 S. 

76th Street (884 9997 000) and 7520 W. Ryan Road (884 9998 000).  

 

 Commissioner Haley had questions regarding the southwest access easements. 

 

 Assistant City Engineer Beinlich commented the City must be able to access.  

 

 Commissioner Leon left the meeting at 7:15 p.m.. 

 

 Alderwoman Day asked will there be office expansion?  



  

 

 Applicant Alex Scheler elaborated there will be office flex workers with the option to work 

from home; future expansions would result first in expansion of shifts, not the facility. The 

current second shift ends at 1:30 a.m. 

 

 Applicant representative Matt Mano, from Stephen Perry Smith Architect, Inc., notes that 

the lighting plan provides zero-foot candles at property line. 

 

 Commissioner Haley commented on a concern about car headlights affecting neighbors at 

night. 

 

 Alderwoman Day suggested that the applicant add landscaping on west façade. 

 

 Applicant Alex Scheler indicated landscaping buffers are already provided. 

 

 Commissioner Haley asked for clarification of the timing of Site Plan approval. Given the 

number of necessary changes needed to limit impact on the neighborhood, he is concerned 

about needing future approvals for site changes. He is recommending change to access so 

that traffic enters the site from W. Ryan Road. 

 

        Commissioner Hogan moved and Commissioner Leon seconded a motion to recommend  

        approval of a Resolution conditionally approving a 3 lot Certified Survey Map, being a  

        redivision of all of the West 1/2 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 22, Township 5 North,  

        Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin; and also including the North  

        120 feet of the South 180 feet of the East 200 feet of the West 260 feet of the Southwest  

       1/4 of Section 22, in Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County,  

       Wisconsin (by Alex Scheler, Carma Laboratories, Inc., applicant, Carma Laboratories, Inc.,  

       property owner) (9410 S. 76th Street and 7520 W. Ryan Road). On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’;  

       motion carried (4-0-1). 

  

2.   Carma Site Plan. Request for approval of an approximately 195,000 sf manufacturing    

      space and 30,000 sf office to be located at 9410 S. 76th Street (884 9997 000).  

 

Alderwoman Day moved and Commissioner Hogan seconded a motion to adopt a 

Resolution approving a Site Plan for the development of a single-story building housing 

offices and manufacturing facilities (Carma Laboratories), upon property located at 9410 S. 

76th Street (by Alex Scheler, Carma Laboratories, Inc, applicant, Carma Laboratories, Inc., 

property owner). On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-1). 

 

3.  Cape Crossing Sign Review. Request to allow for a subdivision monument sign upon       

property located at 12200 W. Ryan Road.  

 

 Planning Intern Kissel presented the Sign Review application for Cape Crossing upon 

property located at 12200 W. Ryan Road. 



  

  

Applicant representative, Ryan Fritsch, Ryan & Newmann Development, presented 

additional information for the Sign Review application regarding installation and face 

direction of the sign.    

 

Commissioner Haley had concerns about the sign facing east which therefore is seen from 

the back to west bound traffic.  

 

Commissioner Hogan moved and Alderwoman Day seconded a motion to adopt a 

Resolution approving a Monument Sign for the Cape Crossing subdivision in the Planned 

Development District No. 40 (12200 W. Ryan Road) (Ryan Fritsch, Neumann Developments, 

Inc., applicant). On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-1). 

 

E.    Adjournment 

Commissioner Haley moved and Commissioner Hogan seconded to adjourn the meeting at 

7:35 p.m.. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-1). 



  

City of Franklin unapproved 

Special Plan Commission Meeting 

October 24, 2023 

Minutes 

 

A. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Mayor John Nelson called the October 24, 2023 Special Plan Commission meeting to order at 5:00 

p.m. in the Council Chambers at Franklin City Hall, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin.  

 

Present were Mayor John Nelson, Alderwoman Courtney Day, City Engineer Glen Morrow and 

Commissioners Patricia Hogan and Kevin Haley. Also present was City Attorney Jesse Wesolowski 

and Associate Planner Marion Ecks. Excused was Commissioner Patrick Léon. 

 

B.   Approval of Minutes – None.  

 

C. Public Hearing Business Matters 

 

1.     Carma Rezoning [Public Hearing is continued from its commencement at and during 

the October 19, 2023 Plan Commission meeting agenda item C.2.]. Request for approval 

of an ordinance to allow for a rezoning of property located at 9410 S 76th St. (884 9997 

000) currently zoned R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District and B-3 Community Business 

District; and 7520 W Ryan Rd. (884 9998 000), currently zoned B-3 Community Business 

District. Contingent upon approval of the related Certified Survey Map (Item D.1. on the 

October 19, 2023 Plan Commission meeting agenda) future Lot 1 (currently part of 9410 S 

76th St.), is requested to be rezoned to M-1 Limited Industrial District, and future Lot 2 

(currently part of 9410 S 76th St.), and future Lot 3 (currently part of 9410 S 76th St. and 

7520 W Ryan Rd.), are requested to be rezoned to B-3 Community Business District.  

 

The Plan Commission may take action on this rezoning application following the Public 

Hearing. Mayor Nelson reopened the public hearing, which was continued from the October 

19, 2023 meeting, and closed at 6:01 p.m. 

 

Associate Planner Ecks reiterated the purpose of the submitted Rezoning application. The 

applicant, Carma Laboratories, Inc. is requesting approvals pertaining to the development of 

a toiletries and cosmetics facility. Pursuant to that, Plan Commission recommended 

approval of a Certified Survey Map and Special Use application to allow for overnight 

parking that the Commission has also recommended approval of, and a Site Plan for the 

factory itself.  

 

Associate Planner Ecks went on to describe the different areas of the rezoning map. 

Currently, the proposed development property is zoned R-8 Multi-Family Residence District. 

Also discussed were the surrounding zonings.  

 



  

The applicant is proposing Rezoning of the new lot 1 of the CSM from R-8 to M-1. Lot 2 and 

3 will be rezoned from R-8 to B-3 to allow for commercial development in the future.  

 

The applicant is required to provide landscape buffers, specifically the north lot line.  

 

The newly proposed development will relocate 310 jobs from the current facilities in the 

Franklin Business Park to consolidate and retain Carma Labs here in Franklin. 

 

Alderwoman Day expressed concerns regarding the two B-3 properties. Will B-3 allow a 

wide enough scope for future development and remain desirable? Would we need to revisit 

in the future to rezone again?  

 

Associate Planner Ecks responded that B-3 does allow for a wider scope of development, 

including office uses.  

 

City Engineer Morrow also commented post Covid business commercial is not going well 

currently but has potential for turn around. The State indicates W. Ryan Road is one of the 

busiest state roads and most heavily populated in the area and will increase in the future. 

 

Associate Planner read into the record the proposed motion.  

 

Commissioner Hogan moved and Commissioner Haley seconded a motion to recommend 

approval of an Ordinance to amend the Unified Development Ordinance (zoning 

map) to rezone lot 1 of Certified Survey Map no. ____  from R-8 Multiple-Family 

Residence District and B-3 Community Business District to M-1 Limited Industrial 

District, and lots 2 and 3 of Certified Survey Map no. ____  to B-3 Community 

Business District, the approval and passage of which is contingent upon the 

approval and recording of the related Certified Survey Map. (property located at 

9410 S. 76th Street and 7520 W. Ryan Rd) (by Alex Scheler, Carma Laboratories, Inc, 

applicant, Carma Laboratories, Inc, property owner). On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; 

motion carried (4-0-1). 

 

At the request of Mayor Nelson, a roll call vote was taken. All in favor.  
 

D. Business Matters 

 

1.    None.  

 

E.    Adjournment 

Commissioner Hogan moved and Commissioner Haley seconded to adjourn the meeting at 

7:17 p.m. On voice vote, all voted ‘aye’; motion carried (4-0-1). 



  

 1 

 C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N   

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 

Meeting of November 9, 2023 
Special Use Amendment, Miscellaneous Application, and Site Plan Amendment 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends the Plan Commission forward the 
Special Use application to the Common Council for decision based upon the recommended draft 
Resolution and approve the Site Plan Amendment Application.   
Project Name:  Master Halco  
Property Owner: Platt Construction Inc. 
Applicant: Mike Uhl, Master Halco   
Property Address/Tax Key Number:  7407 S 27th St./ 761 9994 006 
Aldermanic District: District 4 
Agent: Luke Sebald, Keller Inc. 
Zoning District:  B-4 South 27th St Mixed Use Commercial District 
Use of Surrounding Properties: B-4 S. 27th St Mixed Use Commercial District (north),  

 BP Business Park and OL-1 Office Overlay (south),  
 R-6 Suburban Single-Family Residence and OL-1 Office 

Overlay (west), 
 City of Oak Creek (east) 

Application Request: To allow for a fence wholesale and distribution use with 
light fabrication and outdoor storage and associated site 
changes. 

Staff Planner: Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate 
 
Background 
The applicant, Master Halco, is seeking Special Use Amendment/Miscellaneous Application and Site 
Plan Amendment approval to operate a fence wholesale and distribution use with light fabrication and 
outdoor storage. The Special Use and Site Plan Amendment are described in detail further below. 
 
The site is currently being utilized by Platt Construction, which first obtained Special Use approval in 
1992 via Resolution No. 92-3753. This Special Use allowed for an “outdoor construction yard and 
storage in conjunction with an office building and indoor storage building.” 
 
The proposed use is similar in nature and will utilize the site and building in manner consistent with the 
original special use approval.  
 
SPECIAL USE 

The subject property is zoned B-4 South 27th Street Mixed Use Commercial District. Master Halco 
anticipates approximately 12 to 15 employees and hours of operation between 7:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. 
Monday through Friday. 
 
The applicant has indicated that the business is not generally open to the public and sales are business to 
business. The majority of the product is stored outside within the storage yard located to the west of the 

Item C.1./D.1. 



  

 2 

main building. This building will contain space for light fabrication of gates, racked storage, and office 
space.  
 
The applicant has provided responses to the Special Use standards listed within Section 15-3.0701 of the 
UDO for Plan Commission and Common Council review.  
 
SITE PLAN 
The applicant is proposing a variety of site modifications. The building is also proposed to be painted 
as illustrated on the attached elevations.  
 
The site changes include, but are not limited to: 

• Relocating light poles, removing a walkway, and removing trees to construct a new 27-stall 
parking lot in front of the principal building adjacent to South 27th Street. 

o Parking spaces are 9’ wide and 19’ in length (171 square feet). It appears a 20’ long 
parking space could be achieved with adjustments to the design, in part by reducing the 
drive aisle to 24-feet. Staff recommends parking spaces be a minimum of 9’ wide and 
180 square feet in compliance with Section 15-5.0202 of the UDO. It can be noted that 
allowance for slightly shorter parking spaces has been allowed in past developments 
with the consideration of an overhang when parking spaces are abutting a curb.   

• Removing parking lot landscape islands that are located to the north of the building. 
• Adding 18 deciduous trees, 8 evergreen trees, and 127 shrubs, which is in conformance with 

landscaping quantity requirements of the UDO.   
• Adding building lighting, including lighting on the multiple sheds located to the west of the 

main building and to the rear of the main building. 
• Adding parking lot lighting for the new parking lot. 
• Construction of a storm water pond at the southwest corner of the property. 
• Proposing to add crushed gravel and concrete on the west side of the property. 

o The site plan indicates an existing impervious area of 6.168 acres and greenspace of 
2.186 acres. The proposed improvements will result in a total impervious area of 5.753 
acres and greenspace of 2.601 acres. Staff finds that the increase in greenspace is due to 
the proposed storm water pond. With a site size of 8.354 acres, about 2.51 acres of 
greenspace is required per the 0.30 minimum LSR standard of the B-4 District.  

o It can be noted that, in review of historical aerial photography, it is difficult to 
determine the extent of the existing graveled areas over the years. It does appear the 
existing fence location was in place and defined at the time of development. All 
proposed improvements are within this area.   

 
The applicant also provided a Natural Resource Protection Plan indicating that no protected natural 
resources exist onsite. WDNR mapping was also reviewed and did not show any mapped wetlands 
onsite.   
 
All B-4 District Development Standards are met. Note South 27th Street Design Overlay District 
Standards do not apply as no new buildings are proposed and no building addition that increases floor 
area by 50% is proposed.  
 
Staff also finds the proposed modifications are in conformance with Part 5 Design Standards of the 
UDO, except for the parking space size as noted above. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 



  

 3 

The Plan Commission may recommend, and the Common Council may impose, conditions and limitations 
on a Special Use application related to use, design and operation (§15-3.0701.D).  
 
The Department of City Development staff recommends the Plan Commission forward the Special Use 
application to the Common Council for decision based on the recommended draft Resolution as attached. 
The resolution reflects recommended conditions of approval. 
 
The Department of City Development staff recommends the Plan Commission approve the Site Plan 
Amendment application for the proposed site modifications as depicted on the attached plans. 
 
Recommended Conditions of Approval 

• Special Use 
o Outdoor storage shall be limited to the fenced-in concrete and gravel area located to 

the west of the principal building and shall be kept in an orderly manner as determined 
by the Zoning Administrator or Plan Commission.  

o No overnight parking of commercial vehicles shall be allowed outside of the storage 
yard located behind or to the west of the principal building.  

o City Attorney review of applicant’s revisions to the Special Use Resolution prior to City 
signatures.  

• Site Plan 
o Final grading, erosion control, and stormwater management plans shall be approved 

by the Engineering Department prior to any land disturbance activities.  
o Parking spaces shall be a minimum of 9’ wide and 180 square feet in compliance with 

Section 15-5.0202 of the UDO. [This condition must be added to the attached draft 
resolution] 

o City Attorney review of applicant’s revisions to the Site Plan Resolution prior to City 
signatures.  

 



MASTER HALCO, INC. – SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT RESOLUTION 

NO. 2023-

6001819v.1 3906/0069

STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY

[Draft 10-6-23]

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR

THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT FOR A FENCE 

WAREHOUSE, DISTRICBUTIONDISTRIBUTION, AND FABRICATION BUSINESS

USE WITH OUTDOOR STORAGE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7407 S 27TH 

ST.

(BY MIKE UHL, MASTER -HALCO, INC.

APPLICANT, PLATT CONSTRUCTION INC.,

PROPERTY OWNER)

WHEREAS, Mike Uhl, Master -Halco, Inc., having petitioned the City of 

Franklin for the approval of a Special Use Amendment for a fence warehouse, 

distribution, and fabrication business use with outdoor storage upon property 

located at 7407 S 27th St., zoned B-4 South 27th St Mixed Use Commercial District.

The property which is the subject of the application bears Tax Key No. 761 9994 

006 and is more particularly described as follows:

PARCEL 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 5794, RECORDED ON 

JANUARY 14, 1993 ON REEL 2948, IMAGE 745 TO 749 AS DOCUMENT 

NO. 6715343, BEING A DIVISION OF LANDS IN THE SOUTHEAST ¼

AND SOUTHWEST ¼ OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 12, TOWN 

5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, EXCEPTING THEREFROM LANDS 

CONVEYED IN WARRANTY DEED RECORDED AUGUST 21, 2014 AS 

DOCUMENT NO. 10387598, SAID LAND BEING IN THE CITY OF 

FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN.

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission 

of the City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-

9.0103D. of the Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been 

held before the Plan Commission on the 7th day of September, 2023, [MH WAS 

NOT NOTIFIED OF THIS MEETING; IS THIS ACCURATE?] and the Plan Commission 

thereafter having determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be 



MASTER HALCO, INC. – SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT RESOLUTION 

NO. 2023-

6001819v.1 3906/0069

approved, subject to certain conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding 

that the proposed Special Use upon such conditions, pursuant to §15-3.0701 of the 

Unified Development Ordinance, will be in harmony with the purposes of the 

Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive Master Plan; that they will 

not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that they will not



MASTER HALCO, INC. – SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT RESOLUTION 

NO. 2023-

6001819v.1 3906/0069

interfere with the development of neighboring property; that they will be 

served adequately by essential public facilities and services; that they will not cause 

undue traffic congestion; and that they will not result in damage to property of 

significant importance to nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission 

recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to 

conditions, meet the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified 

Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of 

the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Mike Uhl, Master -Halco, Inc. for 

the approval of a Special Use for the property particularly described in the 

preamble to this Resolution, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the 

following conditions and restrictions:

1. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property 

by Mike Uhl, Master -Halco , Inc., successors and assigns, for a fence 

wholesalewarehouse and distribution use with light fabrication and 

outdoor storage, which shall be developed in substantial compliance 

with, and owned and operated and maintained by Mike Uhl, Master 

-Halco, Inc., pursuant to those plans City file- stamped DATE 

DATE___________________, 2023 and annexed hereto and incorporated

herein as Exhibit A.

2. Mike Uhl, Master -Halco , Inc., successors and assigns, shall pay to the 

City of Franklin the amount of all reasonable development compliance, 

inspection and review fees actually incurred by the City of Franklin, 

including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Mike Uhl, Master 

-Halco, Inc. Special Use Amendment, within 30 days of invoice for same.; 

provided, however, any such fees, in the aggregate, shall not exceed 

$10,000.00 (the “Cap”) and Master-Halco, Inc. shall have no liability for 

any such fees in excess of such Cap. Any violation of this provision shall 

be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to

§15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general 

penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the Mike Uhl, 

Master -Halco, Inc. Special Use for the property located at 7407 S 27thd 



MASTER HALCO, INC. – SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT RESOLUTION 

NO. 2023-

6001819v.1 3906/0069

St.: (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, 

statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other 

governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and 

applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this 

approval.

4. Outdoor storage shall be limited to the concrete and gravel area located

to the west of the principal building and shall be kept in an orderly 

manner.

5. No overnight parking of commercial vehicles shall be allowed outside of

the storage yard located behind or to the west of the principal building.

6.OTHER CONDITIONS TBD

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Mike Uhl, Master -Halco, Inc., 

successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply with 

one or any of the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Amendment 

Resolution, following a tenthirty (1030) day notice to cure, and failure to comply 

within such time period, the Common Council, upon notice and hearing, may 

revoke the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or 

restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a 

violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to §15-9.0502

thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a 

forfeiture of no more than $2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and 

together with such other costs and terms as may be specified therein from time to 

time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a separate violation. Failure of 

the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of that or any other 

violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such 

Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified Development 

Ordinance.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to §15-9.0103G. of the Unified 

Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this 

Resolution shall be null and void upon the expiration of one yeareighteen (18) 



MASTER HALCO, INC. – SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT RESOLUTION 

NO. 2023-

6001819v.1 3906/0069

months from the date of adoption of this Resolution, unless the Special Use has 

been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit for such use.; 

provided, however, such 18-month period shall be extended if any delay in the 

issuance of an occupancy permit for such use arises by reason of delay by the City 

or any force majeure event.  As use herein, a “force majeure event” means any 

strike, riot, act of God, shortage of labor or materials, war, governmental law, 

regulation or restriction or any other cause of any kind whatsoever which are 

beyond the reasonable control of Master-Halco, Inc.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to 

obtain the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the 

Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of

Franklin this _ day of , 2023.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the 

City of Franklin this day of , 2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT 



MASTER HALCO, INC. – SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT RESOLUTION 

NO. 2023-

6001819v.1 3906/0069

EXHIBIT A

PLANS CITY FILE- STAMPED ___________________, 2023

ATTACHED HERETO



Document comparison by Workshare 10.0 on Friday, October 27, 2023 2:31:58 
PM

Input:

Document 1 ID iManage://WORKSERVER/DMS/6001583/1

Description
#6001583v1<DMS> - 2023-DRAFT RES - 7407 S 27th  -
Master Halco Special Use Permit cl01 city

Document 2 ID iManage://WORKSERVER/DMS/6001819/1

Description
#6001819v1<DMS> - 2023-DRAFT RES - 7407 S 27th  -
Master Halco Special Use Permit cl02 smc

Rendering set Standard

Legend:

Insertion 

Deletion 

Moved from 

Moved to 

Style change 

Format change 

Moved deletion 

Inserted cell

Deleted cell

Moved cell

Split/Merged cell

Padding cell

Statistics:

Count

Insertions 38

Deletions 19

Moved from 0

Moved to 0

Style change 0

Format changed 0

Total changes 57



MASTER HALCO - SITE PLAN 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

Page2

6001873v.1 3906/00696001873v.1 3906/0069

STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY 

PLAN COMMISSION

[Revised Draft 10/07/2023]

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE PLAN AMENDMENT FOR THE 

DEVELOPMENT OF A MASTER HALCO SALES BRANCH UPON 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7407 SOUTH 27TH STREET

(BY MIKE UHL, MASTER -HALCO, INC., 

APPLICANT, PLATT CONSTRUCTION, INC.,

PROPERTY OWNER)

WHEREAS, Mike Uhl, Master -Halco, Inc., having petitioned the City of Franklin 

for the approval of a Site Plan Amendment for the development of a Master Halco 

Sales Branch upon Master-Halco, Inc.’s acquisition of title of said property by 

conveyance from the Property Owner referenced above, upon property located at 

7407 South 27th Street, zoned B-4 South 27th Street Mixed Use Commercial District.

The property which is the subject of the application bears Tax Key No. 761 9994 006.

WHEREAS, the development proposes a new parking area and storm water 

management pond as well as modifications to landscaping and lighting onsite, and 

the Plan Commission having reviewed such proposal and having found same to be in 

compliance with the applicable terms and provisions of §15-3.0304 B-4 South 27th

Street Mixed Use Commercial District of the Unified Development Ordinance and in 

furtherance of those express standards and purposes of a site plan review pursuant 

to Division 15-7.0100 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of 

Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Site Plan Amendment for Master -Halco, Inc. dated 

, as submitted by Mike Uhl of Master -Halco, Inc., as described above, be and 

the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions:

1. Mike Uhl, Master -Halco, Inc., successors and assigns and any developer of the 

Master Halco project shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all 

development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of 

Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Master

-Halco, Inc. project, within 30 days of invoice for same; provided, however, any 

such fees, in the aggregate, shall not exceed $10,000.00 (the “Cap”) and 

Master-Halco, Inc. shall have no liability for any such fees in excess of the Cap.



MASTER HALCO - SITE PLAN 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

Page3

6001873v.1 3906/00696001873v.1 3906/0069

Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development

Ordinance, and subject to §15-



MASTER HALCO - SITE PLAN 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

Page4

6001873v.1 3906/00696001873v.1 3906/0069

9.0502-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties

and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

2. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the Mike Uhl, Master

-Halco, Inc. and the Master Halco project for the property located at 7407 

South 27th Street: (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental 

laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other 

governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and 

applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval.

3. The Master -Halco, Inc. project shall be developed in substantial compliance 

with the plans City file-stamped .

4. Final grading, erosion control, and stormwater management plans shall be 

approved by the Engineering Department prior to any land disturbance 

activities.

5. Additional conditions

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin, 

Wisconsin, that the Master -Halco, Inc. development as depicted upon the plans City 

file- stamped ___________________, attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated 

herein, shall be developed and constructed within one yeareighteen (18) months

from the date of adoption of this Resolution (provided, however, such 18-month 

period shall be extended if any delay in the development or construction arises by 

reason of delay by the City or any force majeure event), or this Resolution and all 

rights and approvals granted hereunder shall be null and void, without any further 

action by the City of Franklin; and the Site Plan Amendment for the property located 

at 7404 South 27th Street, as previously approved, is amended accordingly.  As used 

herein, a “force majeure event” means any strike, riot, act of God, shortage of labor 

or materials, war, governmental law, regulation or restriction or any other cause of 

any kind whatsoever which is beyond the reasonable control of Master-Halco, Inc.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of 

Franklin this day of , 2023.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City 

of Franklin this day of , 2023.

APPROVED:



MASTER HALCO - SITE PLAN 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

Page5

6001873v.1 3906/00696001873v.1 3906/0069

John R. Nelson, Mayor



MASTER HALCO - SITE PLAN 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

Page6

6001873v.1 3906/00696001873v.1 3906/0069

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT 



MASTER HALCO - SITE PLAN 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

Page7

6001873v.1 3906/0069

EXHIBIT A

PLANS CITY FILE- STAMPED _____________, 2023



Document comparison by Workshare 10.0 on Friday, October 27, 2023 2:49:31 
PM

Input:

Document 1 ID iManage://WORKSERVER/DMS/6001813/1

Description
#6001813v1<DMS> - 2023-DRAFT RES - 7407 S 27th -
Master Halco Site Plan Amendment cl01 city

Document 2 ID iManage://WORKSERVER/DMS/6001873/1

Description
#6001873v1<DMS> - 2023-DRAFT RES - 7407 S 27th -
Master Halco Site Plan Amendment cl02 smc

Rendering set Standard

Legend:

Insertion 

Deletion 

Moved from 

Moved to 

Style change 

Format change 

Moved deletion 

Inserted cell

Deleted cell

Moved cell

Split/Merged cell

Padding cell

Statistics:

Count

Insertions 37

Deletions 10

Moved from 0

Moved to 0

Style change 0

Format changed 0

Total changes 47



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

7407 S. 27th Street
TKN: 761 9994 006

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

B-4 

BP  

R-6 

R-6 B-4 

PRIVATE

27
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

31
ST

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

 

STATESMAN WAY

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 390 780195 Feet

Property

 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

7407 S. 27th Street
TKN: 761 9994 006

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

PRIVATE

27
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

31
ST

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

 

STATESMAN WAY

MINNESOTA                      AVE  

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 390 780195 Feet

Property

 



























  

 1 

 C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N   

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 

Meeting of November 9, 2023 
Special Use 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends the Plan Commission forward the 
Special Use application to the Common Council for decision based upon the recommended draft 
Resolution with conditions as attached.   
Project Name:  BadAx Flats, LLC Special Use  
Property Owner: ZIM-MAR Properties, LLC 
Applicant: Emily Cialdini, Land By Label  
Property Address/Tax Key Number:  7160 S. Ballpark Drive, Unit 130 / 754 9006 000 
Aldermanic District: District 2 
Agent: Emily Cialdini, Land By Label 
Zoning District:  Planned Development District No. 37 
Use of Surrounding Properties: PDD No. 37 zoned properties to the north, south and 

west, and 
 Vacant land zoned R-6 Single-Family Residence District 

to the east 
Application Request: To allow for an application for a Special Use to allow for a 

beer and wine sales establishment with an outdoor wine and 
beer garden 

Staff Planner: Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate 
 
Special Use 
The applicant filed a Special Use Application to allow for a beer and wine sales establishment with an 
outdoor wine and beer garden. The proposed use will be located within the southernmost first floor tenant 
space of the BadAx Flats mixed use development.  
 
The proposed use sells beer and wine for consumption at their facility as well as “bar snacks,” which include 
premade food such as pizza, cheese boards, popcorn, and nuts. A full commercial kitchen is not included 
within the tenant space. The use also includes retail sales of beer and wine.  
 
Hours of operation are Monday through Thursday from 3:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. and Friday and Saturday from 
12:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m.  
 
The building and site will be utilized as proposed as part of the BadAx Flats development. The use is not 
anticipated to require any changes to those building and site plans. 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Plan Commission may recommend, and the Common Council may impose, conditions and limitations 
on a Special Use application related to use, design and operation (§15-3.0701.D).  
 

Item C.2. 



  

 2 

The Department of City Development staff recommends the Plan Commission forward the Special Use 
application to the Common Council for decision based on the recommended draft Resolution as attached. 
The resolution reflects recommended conditions of approval. 
 
Recommended Conditions of Approval 

1. Hours of operations shall not extend later than 9:00 p.m. on Sunday through Thursday and 11:00 
p.m. on Friday and Saturday without approval of an amendment to this Special Use. 



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
     [Draft 11-1-23]  

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR  
THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A BEER AND WINE SALES 

ESTABLISHMENT WITH AN OUTDOOR PATIO UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
7160 SOUTH BALLPARK DRIVE, SUITE 130 

(BY BADAX FLATS, LLC, APPLICANT,  
ZIM-MAR PROPERTIES, LLC, PROPERTY OWNER) 

              
 

WHEREAS, BadAx Flats, LLC, having petitioned the City of Franklin for the 
approval of a Special Use for a beer and wine sales establishment with an outdoor patio upon 
property located at 7160 South Ballpark Drive, Suite 130, zoned Planned Development 
District No. 37. The property which is the subject of the application bears Tax Key No. 754 
9006 000 and is more particularly described as follows: 
 

Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9078 recorded in the office of the Register 
of Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, on October 16, 2018 as 
Document No. 10820171, being a redivision of Lots 3 and 4 of Certified 
Survey Map No. 9042 and lands in the Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 and 
the Northeast 1/4 and Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 9, Town 5 
North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of 
Wisconsin. 
 

 WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the 
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9.0103D. of the 
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan 
Commission on the 9th day of November 2023, and the Plan Commission thereafter having 
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain 
conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon 
such conditions, pursuant to §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in 
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive 
Master Plan; that they will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that 
they will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that they will be served 
adequately by essential public facilities and services; that they will not cause undue traffic 
congestion; and that they will not result in damage to property of significant importance to 
nature, history or the like; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission 
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions, 
meet the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance. 
 



BADAX FLATS, LLC – SPECIAL USE 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-_____ 
Page 2 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of 
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of BadAx Flats, LLC, for the approval of a 
Special Use for the property particularly described in the preamble to this Resolution, be and 
the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and restrictions: 
 

1. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by 
BadAx Flats, LLC, successors and assigns, for a beer and wine sales 
establishment with an outdoor patio, which shall be developed in substantial 
compliance with, and operated and maintained by BadAx Flats, LLC, pursuant to 
those plans City file-stamped DATE, 2023 and annexed hereto and incorporated 
herein as Exhibit A. 

2. BadAx Flats, LLC, successors and assigns, shall pay to the City of Franklin the 
amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the 
City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the BadAx 
Flats, LLC, Special Use, within 30 days of invoice for same.  Any violation of this 
provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject 
to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and 
remedies provisions, as amended from time to time. 

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the BadAx Flats, LLC,  
Special Use for the property located at 7160 South Ballpark Drive, Suite 130:  (i) 
being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, 
orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, 
permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to be 
developed and as presented for this approval. 

4. Hours of operations shall not extend later than 9:00 p.m. on Sunday through 
Thursday and 11:00 p.m. on Friday and Saturday without approval of an 
amendment to this Special Use. 

5. OTHER CONDITIONS TBD 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event BadAx Flats, LLC, successors or 
assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply with one or any of the 
conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a ten (10) day notice to 
cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council, upon notice and 
hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or 
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the 
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the 
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than 
$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as 



BADAX FLATS, LLC – SPECIAL USE 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-_____ 
Page 3 
 
may be specified therein from time to time.  Each day that such violation continues shall be a 
separate violation.  Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of 
that or any other violation. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such 
Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified Development 
Ordinance. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to §15-9.0103G. of the Unified 
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall 
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution, 
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit 
for such use. 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain 
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for 
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin. 
  
 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 
_______ day of ____________________, 2023. 
 

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2023. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________  
       John R. Nelson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________       
Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

7160 S. Ballpark Drive
TKN 754 9006 000

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

PDD 

R-6 

BALLPARK DR

RAWSON                         AVE 

LOOMIS      
      

      
      

 RD  

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 150 30075 Feet

Property

 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

7160 S. Ballpark Drive
TKN 754 9006 000

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

BALLPARK DR

RAWSON                         AVE 

LOOMIS      
      

      
      

 RD  

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 150 30075 Feet

Property

 



 
 

1 

 CITY OF FRANKLIN  
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 

Meeting of November 9, 2023 
 

Site Plan 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends approval of the Site Plan Application 
and landscape waiver to allow construction of the proposed BadAx Flats mixed use development upon 
property located at 7160 South Ballpark Drive. 

Project Name:  BadAx Flats 
Project Address/Tax Key: 7160 S. Ballpark Drive/754 9006 000 
Property Owner: Zim-Mar Properties, LLC 
Applicant: BadAx Flats, LLC 
Aldermanic District: District 6 
Zoning District:: Planned Development District No. 37 
Staff Planner: Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate 
 

Background  
The applicant, BadAx Flats, LLC, submitted an application for a Special Use and Site Plan approval 
for the development of a mixed-use building upon property located at the southeast corner of W. 
Rawson Avenue and S. Ballpark Drive.  
 
These applications were previously reviewed at the June 22, 2023 Plan Commission meeting. At that 
meeting, the Plan Commission recommended approval of the Special Use, but tabled the Site Plan 
Application due to issues related to the average unit size, landscape requirements and inclusion of a 
trash enclosure.   
 
The Common Council subsequently approved the Special Use Permit at their July 5, 2023 meeting.  
 
The June 22nd Plan Commission staff report is attached for additional details regarding the proposed 
development.  
 
Analysis  
On July 11, 2023, the applicant submitted revised plans to address Planning Staff and Plan 
Commission concerns.  
 
Dwelling Unit Size 
As a reminder, the applicant is proposing a minimum dwelling unit size of 600 square feet. Staff has 
recommended a minimum dwelling unit size of 700 square feet, which is the minimum dwelling unit 
size required for other Areas of PDD No. 37. 
 
The attached project narrative argues that the interpretation made by staff related to dwelling unit size 
is incorrect. The applicant also submitted a PDD amendment in an attempt to move the project 
forward.  

Item D.2. 



 
 

2 

 
Staff has continued to review and consider the language within PDD No. 37. Staff acknowledges that 
there is an error within PDD No. 37 as it references the incorrect table for dwelling unit size 
requirements. As this is an issue with the drafting of PDD No. 37, Planning Staff has submitted a PDD 
Amendment request to correct this reference. The staff report for this PDD Amendment, under Item 
D.3 of this Plan Commission agenda, provides additional information related to the specific changes.  
 
As the PDD does not reference the correct table, staff finds that the minimum dwelling unit sizes of the 
R-8 District standards are applicable and required to be met. Note that Section 15-3.0442C.A.6. of The 
Mixed Use Area of PDD No. 37 requires that new residential development meet the R-8 Multiple-
Family Residence District Development Standards. The R-8 District requires a minimum dwelling unit 
size of 750 square feet for One Bedroom Dwelling Units (see Table 15-3.029B).  
 
With that said, staff does not object to the allowance of 600 square feet for a minimum dwelling unit 
size for PDD No. 37. As such, as part of the PDD Amendment requested by staff, the amendment 
includes the revision within the PDD to allow for a minimum of 600 square feet.  
 
Dumpster Enclosure 
A dumpster enclosure is included at the southeast corner of the site. This will serve commercial uses 
within the building.  
 
Landscaping 
The applicant’s project narrative states that a PDD Amendment was submitted to change required 
landscaping standards within the PDD. Upon further consideration, staff has recommended that a 
request to reduce landscaping standards is most appropriately accomplished through a waiver request. 
Section 15-3.0442E Design Standards allows for Plan Commission waivers by 4 votes of all members 
and Section 15-3.0442EB.3.a. contains language that states landscaping shall be provided as required 
by 15-3.0302 or as approved by the Plan Commission. As such, staff finds that there is no need for a 
PDD Amendment.  
 
The applicant’s project narrative discusses their reasoning for providing less landscaping than what is 
required by the Unified Development Ordinance for Plan Commission consideration.  
 
Staff has acknowledged that the UDO landscaping requirements requires a large number of plantings 
for multi-family uses. It should also be noted that the UDO landscaping requirements have been 
typically met based upon the density that is allowed within the R-8 District. This PDD and 
development allows a greater density, which requires even more plantings. As allowed density 
increases, the same standard may not necessarily be feasible to meet.  
 
It is recommended that the Plan Commission review this site and the proposed landscape plan 
specifically to determine if sufficient plantings are provided.  
 
Staff finds that a significant number of trees and shrubs are provided. There is little area remaining 
onsite to provide additional plantings. As the density has been approved and accepted by the City, staff 
does not object to the quantity of landscaping provided for this development. Staff considers the 
quantity provided by the applicant to continue to meet and maintain a high standard, consistent with 
City of Franklin design principles.  
 
Staff Recommendation 



 
 

3 

City Development Staff recommends approval of the Site Plan Application and landscape waiver to 
allow construction of the proposed BadAx Flats mixed use development upon property located at 7160 
South Ballpark Drive.  



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
             PLAN COMMISSION          [Draft 11-1-23] 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-____ 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE PLAN TO ALLOW FOR A THREE-STORY 

MIXED-USE BUILDING AND EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS, AND WAIVERS FOR A 
REDUCED FRONT SETBACK OF 10 FEET AND A REDUCTION IN THE QUANTITY 

OF LANDSCAPING TO BE PROVIDED 
(GENERALLY THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF WEST  
RAWSON AVENUE AND SOUTH BALLPARK DRIVE) 

(BADAX FLATS LLC, APPLICANT,  
 ZIM-MAR PROPERTIES, LLC, PROPERTY OWNER) 

              
 

WHEREAS, BadAx Flats LLC, having applied for approval of a proposed site plan to 
allow for a three-story mixed-use building for commercial use and apartments with waivers 
to allow for a 10-foot front setback, opposed to the minimum front setback of 25-feet, and to 
allow for a reduction in the quantity of landscaping provided, property generally located at 
the southeast corner of West Rawson Avenue and South Ballpark Drive, within Planned 
Development District No. 37 (The Rock Sports Complex/Ballpark Commons); and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having reviewed such proposal and having found 
same to be in compliance with the applicable terms and provisions of §15-3.0421 of the 
Unified Development Ordinance and in furtherance of those express standards and purposes 
of a site plan review pursuant to Division 15-7.0100 of the Unified Development Ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of 
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Site Plan to allow for a three-story mixed-use building for 
commercial use and apartments with waivers to allow for a 10-foot front setback, opposed to 
the minimum front setback of 25-feet, and to allow for a reduction in the quantity of 
landscaping provided, as depicted upon the plans dated July 13, 2023, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein, is hereby approved, subject to the following terms and conditions: 
 

1. The property subject to the Site Plan shall be developed in substantial compliance 
with, and operated and maintained pursuant to the Site Plan for the BadAx Flats LLC 
mixed-use building and exterior improvements dated July 13, 2023. 

2. BadAx Flats LLC, successors and assigns, and any developer of the BadAx Flats LLC 
mixed-use building and exterior improvements construction project, shall pay to the 
City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review 
fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of 
Franklin, for the BadAx Flats LLC mixed-use building and exterior improvements 
construction project, within 30 days of invoice for same.  Any violation of this 
provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to  



BADAX FLATS LLC – SITE PLAN 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-____ 
Page 2 

 
§15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and 
remedies provisions, as amended from time to time. 

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the BadAx Flats LLC mixed-use 
building and exterior improvements construction project, generally located at the 
southeast corner of West Rawson Avenue and South Ballpark Drive, within Planned 
Development District No. 37 (The Rock Sports Complex/Ballpark Commons):  (i) 
being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, 
orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, 
licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as 
presented for this approval. 

4. That the BadAx Flats LLC mixed-use building and exterior improvements 
construction project shall be developed and constructed pursuant to such Site Plan 
within one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution, or this Resolution and all 
rights and approvals granted hereunder shall be null and void, without any further 
action by the City of Franklin. 

5. Final approval of grading, erosion control, storm water management, and utilities, as 
may be applicable, be granted by the Engineering Department prior to any land 
disturbing activities.  

6. [other conditions, etc.] 

 Introduced at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin this 
_______ day of ____________________, 2023. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2023. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       _________________________________  
       John R. Nelson, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________       
Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 



 
 

1 

 CITY OF FRANKLIN  
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 

Meeting of June 22, 2023 
 

Special Use and Site Plan 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends approval of the Special Use application 
to allow for a maximum density yield of 81 dwelling units; to table the Site Plan application to allow the 
applicant time to revise the site plan to comply with the average unit size, minimum landscape 
requirements, and inclusion of a trash enclosure. 

Project Name:  BadAx Flats 
Project Address/Tax Key: Not Assigned/754 9006 000 
Property Owner: Zim-Mar Properties, LLC 
Applicant: BadAx Flats, LLC 
Aldermanic District: District 6 
Zoning District:: Planned Development District No. 37 
Staff Planner: Régulo Martínez-Montilva, AICP CNUa, Principal Planner 
 

Project Description/Analysis  
Please note: 

• Recommendations are underlined, in italics and are included in the draft resolution. 
• Suggestions are only underlined and are not included in the draft resolution. 

 
The applicant, BadAx Flats, LLC, submitted an application for a Special Use and Site Plan approval 
for the development of a mixed-use building upon property located at the southeast corner of W. 
Rawson Avenue and S. Ballpark Drive.  
 
The proposed building is approximately 84,685 square feet (79,730 sq. ft. of residential, and 4,955 sq. 
ft. of commercial). The majority of the building will contain 78 market rate apartments, consisting of 
studio, one and two-bedroom dwelling units, with amenities such as a clubroom, fitness center and 
outdoor swimming pool and grilling area.  
 
The southwest corner of the first floor along S. Ballpark Drive will contain about 5,000 square feet of 
commercial space. It is anticipated that a craft beer and wine operator will occupy about 3,450 square 
feet and a salon currently located within Franklin will relocate to about 1,505 square feet. An outdoor 
patio area is also included on the plans.  
 
Note that any tenant occupying these tenant spaces will be subject to the requirements and approval 
process as outlined within PDD No. 37 and the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). Based upon a 
preliminary review only, it appears the craft wine and beer use would require Special Use approval and 
the salon would be allowed as a Permitted Use.    
 
 
 

Item C.3. 



 
 

2 

Special Use  
PDD No. 37 originally allowed, as a Permitted Use, mixed use buildings up to four stories in height, 
with residential apartments on the upper three floors. A recent amendment to PDD No. 37 revised the 
ordinance to allow a mixed-use building to have both commercial and residential space on the first 
floor. As previously mentioned, the proposed building includes ground floor commercial spaces as 
well as ground floor apartments, with apartments above on the 2nd and 3rd floors of the building. As 
such, the commercial space and multi-family residential use are Permitted.  
 
The Special Use Application is being requested to accommodate the proposed higher density. The 
applicant is proposing to construct up to 81 dwelling units. The parcel has a gross Base Site Area of 
3.12 acres and a Net Buildable Site Area of 2.02 acres. As such, the applicant is requesting a Net and 
Gross Density standards of approximately 40 units per acre. 
 
With the current required maximum Gross Density and Net Density standard of eight, the property is 
allowed a maximum of 16 dwelling units. According to the applicant, the project is not feasible 
without the requested density. The applicant has also provided responses within their project narrative 
to the Special Use Standards listed within Section 15-3.0700 of the UDO. 
 
Dwelling Unit Size 
Pursuant to Ord. 2019-2368, Table 15-3.0442C.1, the Mixed Use Area of PDD No. 37 requires that 
apartments in mixed use buildings with more than three dwelling units meet the living area standards 
of the Multi-Family Residence Area of PDD No. 37, which is 700 sq. ft. average size for one bedroom 
apartments and 200 sq. ft. for each additional bedroom per Table 15-3.0442D.2.  
 

Unit type Average unit size Average unit size  
per Ord. 2019-2368 
Table 15-3.0442D.2. 

Studio & One Bedroom Units 647 sq. ft. 700 sq. ft. 
Two Bedroom Units 1,121 sq. ft.    900 sq. ft. 
Three Bedroom Units 1,323 sq. ft. 1,100 sq. ft. 

 
City Development staff recommends that the applicant shall revise the proposed building design to 
meet the average size of each unit type (studio and 1-bedroom, 2-bedroom and 3-bedroom apartments) 
pursuant to Ord. 2019-2368, Table 15-3.0442D.2 and/or amend the PDD to allow for studio and one 
bedroom apartments at a lower average unit size. 
 
Site Plan 
The total site has an area of approximately 3.12 acres (135,980 square feet) and is currently vacant. 
The development will result in 78,548 square feet of impervious surface and 57,432 square feet of 
greenspace, which equates to a Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR) of about 0.42 or 42%. This meets the 
PDD No. 37 minimum of 0.35 for commercial apartments. As required by PDD No. 37, the LSR for the 
entire PDD shall be maintained at a minimum of 0.50.  
 
Garbage and trash receptacles for the apartments will be kept within the lower level of the building. 
Staff recommends that exterior trash areas and dumpsters, if any, be stored within an enclosure 
constructed of materials that are compatible with the principal building, subject to review and 
approval of the Department of City Development. 
 



 
 

3 

 
Reduced Setback Request 
The required minimum front yard building setback is 25-feet. The applicant is requesting a front yard 
setback along S. Ballpark Drive of 10-feet. According to the applicant’s project narrative, the reduced 
setback will allow for greater visibility and pedestrian accessibility for the retail uses within the first 
floor of the building. Section 15-3.0442B.13. and Table 15-3.0442C.1. of PDD No. 37 allows the Plan 
Commission to approve smaller building setbacks, up to zero feet, abutting public right-of-way, traffic 
visibility setbacks, bufferyards, and parking lot setbacks.  
 
The senior living facility to the south is setback roughly 65-feet from S. Ballpark Drive. However, the 
apartments on the opposite side of S. Ballpark Drive have been granted reduced setbacks.  
 
As buildings along this drive have already been granted reduced setbacks, there is not opposition to 
continue to do so; although, it is suggested that the required setback be met or as closely adhered to as 
much as possible. It appears that parking and drive areas could be shifted and/or modified to set the 
building back further from S. Ballpark drive while maintaining the same building design and layout.  
 
All other setback and Development Standards of Table 15-3.0442C.1. are met.  
 
Site Furnishings and Pedestrian Amenities 
PDD No. 37 requires bicycle parking and pedestrian amenities and lighting, and site furnishings, such 
as benches, trash receptacles, and bicycle racks. The site plan includes seating within the outdoor patio, 
and there is also a sidewalk connection to the existing sidewalk along S. Ballpark Drive as well as 
trash receptacles, dog refuse bins and bicycle parking.  
 
Parking 
The development includes 83 surface parking spaces, four ADA accessible stalls, and 80 underground 
parking spaces for a total of 167 spaces. Table 15-5.0203 of the Unified Development Ordinance 
(UDO) suggests a minimum parking ratios, below is a table showing the suggested amount of parking 
to be provided per use.  
 
Use Number of Units or 

Size of Tenant Space 
Parking Ratio per 
UDO Table 15-5.0203 

Suggested 
Parking 

Studio & One Bedroom 
Units 

55 units 1 space per unit 55 parking spaces 

Two Bedroom Units 20 units 2 spaces per unit 40 parking spaces 
Three Bedroom Units 3 units 2.5 spaces per unit 8 parking spaces 
Commercial Retail 3,450 square feet  5/1,000 SF GFA 18 parking spaces 
Outdoor Patio 1,169 square feet 10/1,000 SF GFA 12 parking spaces 
Commercial Service 1,505 square feet 3/1,000 SF GFA 5 parking spaces 
Total 138 

GFA: gross floor area. 
 
The total provided parking, 167 spaces, exceeds the minimum required parking of 138 spaces for this 
development. However, City Development staff recommends that the provided ADA parking should be 
increased to five spaces pursuant to UDO Table 15-5.0202(I)(1). It’s worth noting that the parking 
surplus (29 spaces) could be utilized to meet landscaping standards as follows: first, by reducing the 
provided parking the required landscaping is also reduced (commercial uses only); second, the area 



 
 

4 

intended for the parking surplus could be redesigned as landscaped areas to meet the required number 
of landscape features discussed below. 
 
Landscaping 
For Multi-Family developments, Table 15-5.0302 of the UDO requires 1.5 canopy/shade tree, one 
evergreen, one decorative tree, and three shrubs per dwelling unit. For Commercial uses, one 
canopy/shade tree, one evergreen, one decorative tree and one shrub is required per every five provided 
parking spaces.  
 
Below is a breakdown of the required number of plantings and the quantity currently provided. The 
applicant is requesting a substantial reduction in the number of plantings, particularly canopy/shade 
trees.  
 

Type 

Required Provided 
% 

Requested 
Reduction 

Multi-Family 
78 units 

Commercial 
35 parking 

spaces 

Total   

Canopy/Shade Tree 117 7 124 15 88% 
Evergreens 78 7 85 47 45% 
Decorative Trees 78 7 85 23 73% 
Shrubs 234 7 241 147 36% 

 
The requested reduction, in part, is due to the requested increase in density. The site could likely meet 
landscaping standards under the required maximum density of eight units per acre; However, under the 
current proposal, (40 units per gross acre and 83 surface parking spaces), there is not enough available 
space to accommodate 109 more canopy trees, 38 more evergreens, 62 more decorative trees, and 94 
more shrubs in a manner that is attractive and conducive to the plants survivability. Section 15-
3.0442B.14 of PDD No. 37 allows for the overall quantity of landscape plantings to be reduced by 
25% from the UDO standards, subject to review and approval by the Plan Commission. However, the 
requested reduction is more than 25% for every category of plantings. City Development staff 
recommends that the applicant either: 

 a) Reduce the density of dwelling units; 
b) Reduce the amount of surface parking, while still achieving total parking requirements 
required per UDO standards, to accommodate, at a minimum, 25% less of the required number 
of plantings; or 
c) a combination of solutions noted in a) and b). 

 
Outdoor Lighting 
The outdoor lighting plan identifies parking lot lighting only, which includes three single fixture light 
poles and six double fixture light poles. All poles are 20-feet tall on a two-foot concrete base for a peak 
height of 22-feet. Light levels are minimal at the property lines. The maximum light level is 
approximately 1.2 foot candles at the property lines.  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

5 

Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP) 
A NRPP was already completed as part of PDD No. 37 and included the subject property. Wetlands 
were found; however, they were exempted in 2017. As such, no protected natural resources exist 
onsite.  
 
No additional review related to natural resources is necessary.  
  
Architecture 
The building consists of fiber cement siding and brick. Balconies are included on the upper floors of 
the building and are constructed with composite decking and metal railings. The plan does not indicate 
whether or not the lower apartments will access to a concrete patio. The proposed fenestration of 
windows and patio doors have been done in a logical and attractive pattern.  
 
The proposed three-story building is 38-feet tall which is in compliance with the maximum height of 
4.0 stories or 60 feet allowed within PDD No. 37.  
 
It can be noted that PDD No. 37 requires that buildings located on prominent sites, shall be multi-story 
and exhibit quality architectural design to serve as landmarks. This building is multi-story, and the 
Plan Commission shall determine if the quality of architecture meets this standard as well as the 
Design Standards of PDD No. 37.  
 
Signage 
Sign details have not yet been provided. A separate Sign Review and Sign Permit will be required prior 
to installation.  
 
Storm water Management 
A bio-retention basin is shown within the northeast corner of the site. Also, development wide storm 
water management facilities have been approved and completed by the developer. It is recommended 
that final approval of grading, erosion control, storm water management, and utilities, as may be 
applicable, be granted by the Engineering Department prior to any land disturbance activities. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
City Development Staff recommends approval of the Special Use application to allow for a maximum 
density yield of 81 dwelling units. 
  
City Development Staff recommends to table the Site Plan application to allow the applicant to time 
to revise the site plan to comply with the average unit size, minimum landscape requirements, and 
inclusion of a trash enclosure. 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

July 13, 2023 

 

Mr. Regulo Martinez-Montliva 

Principal Planner 

City of Franklin 

9229 West Loomis Road 

Franklin, WI 53132 

 

Via hand-delivery and email to RMartinez-Montilva@franklinwi.gov 

 

Re: BadAx Flats Site Plan Review, PDD 37 Amendment and Special Use 

 

Dear Regulo, 
 

In response to the matters identified in the Report to the Plan Commission Meeting of June 22, 

2023 for Special Use and Site Plan (“Staff Report”) which was published on June 16, 2023 we 

submitting revised plans for Site Plan review and applications for a Major PDD Amendment to 

PDD 37 to permit BadAx Flats as designed. Under cover of this letter you will find the 

following: 
 

• PDD Amendment and Special Use Application (Item 1); 

• Twelve (12) copies of the revised plan set for BadAx Flats, including civil engineering 

and landscaping plans prepared by Sigma and dated 7-11-2023 (Items 3 and 4); 

• Three (3) copies Responses to General Standards for Special Use (Item 5); and, 

• Word document legal description (Item 9). 

 

We respectfully request to be placed on the August 17, 2023 Plan Commission meeting agenda.  

 

Responses to Staff Report  

• Pg 2 – Dwelling Unit Size 

o Applicant believes Staff is incorrect in their read of PDD 37. BadAx Flats 

minimum dwelling unit size is consistent with the requirements in PDD 37. 

BadAx falls under the Ballpark Commons Mixed-Use Area (15-3.0442C) because 

it lies at the southeast corner of Ballpark Drive and Rawson Avenue. The Area 

Standards for Ballpark Commons Mixed-Use Area are set forth in Table 15-

3.0442C.1. The Minimum Total Living Area per Residential Apartment Dwelling 

Unit (D.U.) in Mixed Use Commercial Buildings for 3 or more D.U.’s per 

structure states to see Table 15-3.0442D.1. That table does not include any 

minimum dwelling unit sizes; therefore, there is no minimum dwelling unit size. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

We advanced our design and spent significant dollars doing so because no 

minimum dwelling unit size applies to our development.  

 

Staff has unilaterally imposed a minimum dwelling unit size by stating that the 

reference to Table 15-3.0442D.1 is a mistake and that it should have referenced 

Table 15-3.0442D.2.  

 

In order to advance our development, we are now applying for the Major PDD 

Amendment to “correct” Table 15-3.0442C.1 to refer to Table 15-3.0442D.2 

AND reduce the average minimum dwelling unit size from 700 square feet to 600 

square feet.  The reduction in square footage allows us to deliver the development 

as designed which meets an identified need in the market for smaller studio and 

one-bedroom units. 

 

• Pg 2 – Site Plan 

o Understood that the LSR of 0.42 meets the PDD minimum of 0.35. Understood 

that the LSR for the entire PDD shall be maintained at a minimum of 0.50. 

 

The exterior trash area that serves the commercial space already includes an 

enclosure. Detailed trash enclosure details (ASP 100) prepared by JLA and dated 

6.2.2023 are included (Item 6). Please note, architectural site plan will be updated 

to reflect the parking counts and landscaping as represented on the civil and 

landscape plans included herein. 

 

• Pg 3 – Reduced Setback Request 

o Staff noted that it appears the parking and drive areas could be shifted to set the 

building further back from S Ballpark Drive. This is not feasible with the steep 

grade change at the east side of the site. Furthermore, the reduced setback was 

intentional to allow for greater visibility and pedestrian accessibility to first floor 

retail uses. The decreased setback creates an activated urban edge, which has been 

a design driver and accepted, even encouraged strategy throughout Ballpark 

Commons.  

 

• Pg 3 – Parking 

o Staff did not review all plan sheets related to ADA parking. The development 

includes a total of six (6) ADA accessible stalls – four (4) in the surface lot and 

two (2) in the underground parking. Therefore, the development satisfies the 

required number of ADA parking stalls pursuant to UDO Table 15-5.0202(I)(1). 

Applicant has reduced the number of surface stalls by 29 stalls for a total of 138 

parking.  

 

• Pg 4 – Landscaping 



 

 

 

 

 

 

o We are requesting a Major PDD Amendment to allow for the landscaping plan to 

be approved as identified in the quantity and type of materials on our landscape 

plan prepared by Sigma and dated 7-11-2023. Again, we wanted to expand upon 

the issue as the Major PDD Amendment to allow for the landscaping as designed 

because it treats our development approvals differently than other multifamily 

developments such as The Statesman, Velo Village and The Seasons whose 

landscaping does not comply with the UDO Landscape Standards.  

 

BadAx Flats’ building footprint and identified use as a mixed-use residential 

development has not changed since the adoption of PDD 37. The quantity of 

residential plantings required per the code are extreme and based on our proposed 

use would require 100% of the site to be landscaped.  

 

Staff’s recommendation to reduce the number of units to comply with landscaping 

requirements is diametrically opposed to their recommendation for approval of 

the special use for a density of 81 units, which was approved by Plan Commission 

and Common Council. Even if the density were reduced as staff suggested to 

accommodate the code required plantings, the unit count would be reduced by 40 

to 50 units. A development of that size is not economically feasible and would 

also drastically reduce the taxes below City projections in TID 5.  

 

We agreed to eliminate the 29 parking stalls and have filled that area with 

additional landscaping. The total landscape counts are now as follows: 

• 18 canopy/shade trees 

• 53 evergreen trees 

• 50 decorative trees 

• 180 shrubs 

 

To demonstrate the extreme nature of the landscaping requirements for 

residential, if the site were to be developed as a commercial development, 56 

shade trees and 56 shrubs would be required. As approved with a density of 78 

multifamily units and 5,000 square feet of retail, we are required to install 124 

shade trees and 234 shrubs - over three times the requirement for commercial. 

Said differently, the requirement would result in roughly 41 trees and 78 shrubs 

per acre, that’s equivalent to the tree density of a North American forest.  

 

It should also be noted that in the staff review of The Seasons at Franklin, the 

most recent multifamily development approved in the City of Franklin, the 

planning manager in his staff report from March 3, 2022 noted that the landscape 

requirements are “very difficult to meet” for multifamily development and that if 

the development proposed “was a high-rise development, it would require the 

planting of a forest to accommodate this requirement”. He goes on further to note 

that the landscape requirements are a “subject for further review and amendment 



 

 

 

 

 

 

under the UDO Rewrite project”. The Seasons staff report is included herein 

(Item 8). 

Special Use 

The Special Use allows for the intended high-end beer and wine operator, Three Cellars, to 

conduct their operations. The Responses to the General Standards for Special Use address the 

reasoning for the Special Use (Item 5).  

 

Three Cellars 

Three Cellars is a high-end beer and wine operator that offers hundreds of options of select wines 

with amazing service to make your visit fun and easy. It’s a special experience for everyone from 

the casual drinker to the connoisseur. We are friendly, non-elitist, and here to help.  Of course, 

we can help you find beverages to take home or give as gifts, but we also offer something else 

you’re going to love — we invite you to kick back, relax, and enjoy any of our wines or beers in 

the Cellar Lounge or our Wine and Beer Garden (in season). 

 

In 2016, Gino Gaglianello brought the Three Cellars experience to Menomonee Falls and we 

have enjoyed every minute of being a part of the community. With a constantly rotating 

selection, fun tastings and events, unparalleled service and product knowledge - Three Cellars is 

truly the most unique wine and beer destination in the area! If you’ve never been to Three 

Cellars, we hope you’ll stop in and become a regular customer. We’ll do all we can to make that 

happen. 

 

Awards & Recognition 

A-List’s Best Wine and Beer Shop  

2007-2014: Voted Top 5  

2016-2017: Voted #1 

 

Milwaukee Magazine’s Best of the Burbs  

2022: Voted #1  

2023: Voted #1 

 

 

It should be noted that the Major PDD Amendment for both dwelling unit size and landscaping 

puts additional risk on our development by requiring an additional layer of approvals that are not 

necessary. It also delays our project schedule by over a month if scheduled for the August Plan 

Commission meeting. If, for some reason, the Plan Commission and Council do not approve the 

proposed PDD Amendment we would be forced to seek other recourse.  

 

Please reach out with any questions or comments.  

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Emily Cialdini 

Vice President of Development 

Land By Label 

 

Cc: Ian Martin (via email to ian.m@landbylabel.com) 

 Mike Zimmerman (via email to mikez@rocventures.org) 

  



 

 

Divsion 15-3.0700. Special Use Standards and Regulations 

§ 15-3.0701. General Standards for Special Uses. 

A. General Standards. No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant to this 
Ordinance unless the applicant shall establish the following: 

• Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent. The proposed use and 
development will be in harmony with the general and specific purposes for which this 
Ordinance was enacted and for which the regulations of the zoning district in question were 
established and with the general purpose and intent of the City of Franklin Comprehensive 
Master Plan or element thereof. 

• BadAx Flats along with the high-end beer and wine operator is consistent with 
the intended uses identified within the Ballpark Commons PDD 37. The building 
was always intended to be a residential mixed-use development with active first 
floor food and beverage operations.  

•  No Undue Adverse Impact. The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or 
undue adverse or detrimental effect upon or endanger adjacent property, the character of the 
area, or the public health, safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare and not substantially 
diminish and impair property values within the community or neighborhood. 

• BadAx Flats will not cause undue adverse impact. As a residential mixed-use 
development it is consistent and complementary to the adjacent multi-family uses. 
It enhances the area by completing the vision of the area and converting the vacant 
parcel into a high-quality residential and commercial development. 

•  No Interference with Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development will be 
constructed, arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity or to 
interfere with the use and development of neighboring property in accordance with the 
applicable zoning district regulations. 

• BadAx Flats as a residential mixed-use development was always contemplated 
and realizes the vision for Ballpark Commons south of Rawson in accordance 
with PDD 37. 

• Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served adequately by 
essential public facilities and services such as streets, public utilities including public water 
supply system and sanitary sewer, police and fire protection, refuse disposal, public parks, 
libraries, schools, and other public facilities and utilities or the applicant will provide adequately 
for such facilities. 

• BadAx Flats has completed its engineering review with the City Engineering 
Department. There are adequate public facilities to serve the development. 

•  No Traffic Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic 
congestion nor draw significant amounts of traffic through residential streets. Adequate 
measures will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize traffic 



 

 

congestion in the public streets. 

• BadAx Flats will not generate traffic congestion. It was always planned as a 
residential mixed-use development and Ballpark Drive and the nearby 
infrastructure was sized appropriately to facilitate the development. 

•  No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not result in 
the destruction, loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant 
importance. 

• There are no ecological features on site; therefore, there is no destruction of 
significant features. 

•  Compliance with Standards. The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the 
applicable regulations of the district in which it is located, except as such regulations may, in 
each instance, be modified by the Common Council pursuant to the recommendations of the 
Plan Commission. The proposed use and development shall comply with all additional 
standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this Division and Ordinance 
authorizing such use. 

• BadAx Flats complies with all other standards of PDD 37 and the UDO. 

B. Special Standards for Specified Special Uses. When the zoning district regulations authorize 
a special use in a particular zoning district and that special use is indicated as having special 
standards, as set forth in § 15-3.0702 and 15-3.0703 of this Division, a Special Use Permit 
for such use in such zoning district shall not be recommended or granted unless the 
applicant shall establish compliance with all such special standards. 

• Section 15-3.0702 and 15-3.0703 do not apply as the special use is for a 
Drinking Place Pursuant to Table 15-3.0603. 

C. Considerations. In determining whether the applicant's evidence establishes that the 
foregoing standards have been met, the Plan Commission and the Common Council shall 
consider the following: 

• Public Benefit. Whether and to what extent the proposed use and development at the 
particular location requested is necessary or desirable to provide a service or a facility 
that is in the interest of the public convenience or that will contribute to the general 
welfare of the neighborhood or community. 

• BadAx Flats and the high-end beer and wine operator will contribute to the 
general welfare of the community by completing the vision of Ballpark 
Commons and offering additional places to eat and recreate. We have heard 
from neighbors and community members a desire for more high-end options 
to eat and drink.  

•  Alternative Locations. Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the 
location of the proposed use and development at some other site or in some other area 
that may be more appropriate than the proposed site. 

• The location has always been contemplated as a residential mixed-use 



 

 

development with activated, first floor uses. As such it meets the 
requirements of the PDD and is an ideal solution for the site. There are no 
other alternative locations for the proposed developments within Ballpark 
Commons.  

• Mitigation of Adverse Impacts. Whether and to what extent all steps possible have been 
taken to minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use and development on the 
immediate vicinity through building design, site design, landscaping, and screening. 

• BadAx Flats is a mixed-use residential development which is complementary 
and similar use to New Perspective Senior Living and Velo Village and therefore 
are no adverse impacts on adjacent development. Site design, landscaping and 
lighting has been sensitive to the adjacent uses.  

• Establishment of Precedent of Incompatible Uses in the Surrounding Area. Whether the 
use will establish a precedent of, or encourage, more intensive or incompatible uses in 
the surrounding area. 

• BadAx Flats completes one of the last remanding development sites within 
Ballpark Commons so there is little opportunity for future more intensive uses 
in the area. 

 



BADAX
S BALLPARK DRIVE, FRANKLIN, WI

CIVIL ENGINEERING PLANS

SITE LOCATION MAP:
NOT TO SCALE

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

TH
E

G R O U PSingle Source. Sound Solutions.

PREPARED BY:

SHEET INDEX
SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION
C000 COVER SHEET
C001 SITE SURVEY
C002 SITE DEMOLITION AND EROSION CONTROL PLAN
C100 SITE DIMENSION PLAN
C200 GRADING PLAN
C300 UTILITY PLAN
C400 EROSION CONTROL DETAILS
C401 EROSION CONTROL DETAILS
C402 DETAILS
C403 DETAILS
C404 DETAILS
C405 DETAILS
C406 DETAILS
C500 SPECIFICATIONS
C501 SPECIFICATIONS
L100 OVERALL LANDSCAPE PLAN
L101 LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT
L102 LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT
L103 LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT
L104 LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT
L200 LANDSCAPE DETAILS
L201 LANDSCAPE DETAILS
L300 LANDSCAPE SPECIFICATIONS
L301 LANDSCAPE SPECIFICATIONS

CITY RESUBMITTAL: JULY 11, 2023

W LOOMIS RD.

W RAWSON AVE.

S. B
ALL

PARK D
R.

PROJECT LOCATION



STO STO STO STO

W. RAWSON AVE.  (C.T.H. "BB")

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

ST
O

STO STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO
STO

STO

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

EE

E

E

E

E

ST

ST

ST

S.
 B

AL
LP

AR
K 

DR
.

W
. L

OO
MIS

 R
OA

D.
  (

S.T
.H

. "
36

")

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

ST

ST STO

STO

805

810

815

801
802

803
804

806

807

808

809

811

812

81
3

814

816

79
0

79
5

80
0

80
5

81
0

78
9

79
179

279
379

4
79

679
779

879
9

80
180

280
380

4
80

6
80

7

80
8

80
9

785

790

795

781

782

783

784

786

787

788

789

791

792

793

794

796

797

798

78
5

79
0

79
5

78
1

78
2

78
3

78
4

78
6

78
7

78
8

78
9

79
1

79
2

79
3

79
4

79
6

78
5

79
079
5

80
0

80
5

78
3

78
4

78
6

78
7

78
8

78
9

79
1

79
2

79
3

79
4

79
6

79
7

79
8

79
9

80
1

80
2

80
3

80
4

80
6

790

795

78
8

78
9

79
1

792

793

794

796

800

800

805

801

802

803

804

806

807

808

795

80
0

805

810

815

79
4

79
679

779
879

9801802803

804

806

807

808

809

811

812

813

814

816

P/L

P/L

P/L

P/L

P/
L

P/L
P/L

DELINEATED WETLANDS
(HELIANTHUS 8/11/202)

GENERAL NOTES:

1. THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING IS BASED ON FIELD LOCATIONS AND/OR RECORDS
FURNISHED BY MUNICIPALITIES AND UTILITY COMPANIES. THE
LOCATION AND ACCURACY OF WHICH CANNOT BE GUARANTEED.
THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY INSTALLATIONS
WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA THAT ARE NOT SHOWN.

2. VERIFY ACTUAL LOCATIONS AND INVERTS IN THE FIELD.  ANY
POTENTIAL ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE
BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO
PROCEEDING WITH CONSTRUCTION.

3. DRAWING IS BASED ON FIELD SURVEY COMPLETED BY CHAPUT LAND
SURVEYS ON AUGUST 11, 2022.

4. DATUM FOR THE PROJECT SURVEY IS NAVD88.  BENCHMARK FOR
THE PROJECT SURVEY IS LIGHT POLE BASE ON SW CORNER OF SITE,
ELEVATION 808.71'.

5. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY EXISTING CONDITIONS, CONTACT
ENGINEER WITH DISCREPANCIES.

SANITARY MANHOLE

STORM MANHOLE
INLET (ROUND)

CURB INLET

GAS VALVE
GAS METER
WATER VALVE 
HYDRANT

LIGHT POLE 

UTILITY POLE

PARKING METER
SIGN

TRAFFIC LIGHT

WATER SERVICE CURB STOP

INDICATES SET 1" IRON PIPE
INDICATES FOUND 1" IRON PIPE

MAILBOX

UNKNOWN MANHOLE

WELL HEAD
STAND PIPE
WALL INDICATOR VALVE
POST INDICATOR VALVE

TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

FO FIBER OPTIC PEDESTAL/SIGN

TELEPHONE MANHOLE

M.I.S. MANHOLE

ST

SANITARY CLEANOUT OR VENT

RAILROAD CROSSING SIGNAL

ELECTRIC METER
ELECTRIC PEDESTAL
ELECTRIC MANHOLE
GUY WIRE
GUY POLE

BOLLARD

FLAGPOLE

WATER SURFACE
WETLANDS FLAG
MARSH

CONTROL BOX
CABLE PEDESTAL

HANDICAP SPACE

WATER MANHOLE

SPOT/YARD LIGHT

STORM SEWER END SECTION

C COMMUNICATION MANHOLE

CONIFEROUS TREE
DECIDUOUS TREE

INDICATES FOUND CHISELED CROSS

MARKED FIBER OPTIC

STO

W

OHW

STORM SEWER

OVERHEAD WIRES

MARKED CABLE TV LINE

SANITARY SEWER

MARKED TELEPHONE

MARKED ELECTRIC
MARKED GAS MAIN
WATERLINE

TV

S

T

E

G

FO

INLET (SQUARE)

SEPTIC TANK ACCESS COVER

B BURIED ELECTRIC SERVICE
BOARD FENCE
CHAIN LINK FENCE
WIRE FENCE

F.E.= (FLOOR ELEV)
D.S.= (DOOR SILL)

LEGEND:

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS MAP IS BASED
ON FIELD MARKINGS AND INFORMATION FURNISHED BY UTILITY
COMPANIES AND THE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY.  WHILE THIS INFORMATION IS
BELIEVED TO BE RELIABLE, ITS ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS CANNOT
BE GUARANTEED.

1"=30'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 30 60

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

TH
E

G R O U PSingle Source. Sound Solutions.

DRAWN BY:

DESIGN DATE:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:

PLOT DATE:

NO. REVISION DATE

ISSUANCE DATE

7044 South Ballpark Drive
Franklin, WI  53132
Phone: 414-285-3470

AKK

2022-9-9

21234

PJI

CTC

C001

82
40

 O
LD

 L
O

O
M

IS
 R

D

B
A

D
A

X

FR
A

N
K

LI
N

, W
I

S
IT

E
 S

U
R

V
E

Y

2023-07-11

I:\Mandel\21234 Ballpark Commons M1 Site\060 CAD\030_Production Sheets\100_Civil\C001 Site Survey.dwg

21
23

4
C

00
1

AK
U

SK
E

20
23

-0
7-

11

----

PERMIT-BID SET                        2023-6-2

----
----
----
----
----

----

CITY RESUBMITTAL                  2023-7-11
----
----
----
----

AutoCAD SHX Text
150' PUBLIC R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2  C.S.M. NO. 9078

AutoCAD SHX Text
S35°31'58"W  545.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°17'25"E  59.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°42'40"E  364.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N45°04'47"W  277.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N44°59'54"E  61.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S07°11'54"W  58.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS MEDIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. MEDIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT    WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT    WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT    WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arc=224.31' Radius=340.05' Chord=N26°05'54"E (REC. AS N26°06'00"E) CL=220.26' Delta=37°47'36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
224.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-10

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-11

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
H E A V Y   V E G E T A T I O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1  C.S.M. NO. 9078 (UNIMPROVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE OF THE NE 1/4, SEC. 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°42'40"E  2651.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON RODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND "PK" NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND "PK" NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND CHISELED CROSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFORMER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" C.P.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" C.P.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS N07°12'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS N88°42'47"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS S01°17'19"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARYING PUBLIC R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT ON-RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT ON-RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NO TOPOGRAPHY SHOT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=807.52  INV.=801.01 NW. 24" R.C.P. INV.=801.32 NE. 24" R.C.P. INV.=801.27 SW. 24" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=808.15  INV.=801.53 SW. 24" R.C.P. INV.=801.63 SE. 12" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=807.96  INV.=798.88 NW. 8" (PER PLANS) INV.=798.75 SW. 10" (PER PLANS) INV.=798.91 SE. 8" (PER PLANS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=799.16  INV.=791.86 NW. 36" R.C.P. INV.=791.86 SE. 36" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=799.42  UNABLE TO OPEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=799.25 INV.=793.43 NW & E. 24" R.C.P. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T R E E   L I N E 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK: 804.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDRANT BURY BOLT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK: 808.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE BASE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO ACCESS PER DOC. NO. 3355409 (HATCH) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT LIMITED EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 7629110 

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SIGNS OR BILLBOARDS PER DOC. NO. 10801824 

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' WATERMAIN EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 10835535

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
26' RECIPROCAL DRIVEWAY EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 10919441

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARYING PUBLIC R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(260'±)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATERAL INV.=799.33' (PER PLANS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" R.C.P. BOTTOM=791.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" R.C.P. BOTTOM=791.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=798.94  INV.=796.64 W. 6" C.P.P. INV.=794.64 N. 12" R.C.P. INV.=796.74 W. 6" C.P.P. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILW. AREA 259-1181

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE BEFORE YOU EXCAVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRES MIN. 3 WORK DAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS STATUTE 182.0175(1974)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-242-8511

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO OBTAIN LOCATIONS OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTICIPANTS UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACILITIES BEFORE YOU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIG IN WISCONSIN



80
7

STO STO STO STO

P/
L

P/L
P/L

P/L

P/L

P/L

P/L

W. RAWSON AVE.  (C.T.H. "BB")

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

S

S

S

S

S

S

ST
O

STO STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO
STO

STO

STO

STO

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

EE

E

E

E

E

ST

ST

ST

S.
 B

AL
LP

AR
K 

DR
.

W
. L

OO
MIS

 R
OA

D.
  (

S.T
.H

. "
36

")

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

ST

STO

805

810

815

801
802

803
804

806

807

808

809

811

812

81
3

814

816

79
0

79
5

80
0

80
5

81
0

78
9

79
179

279
379

4
79

679
779

879
9

80
180

280
380

4
80

6
80

7

80
8

80
9

785

790

795

781

782

783

784

786

787

788

789

791

792

793

794

796

797

798

78
5

79
0

79
5

78
1

78
2

78
3

78
4

78
6

78
7

78
8

78
9

79
1

79
2

79
3

79
4

79
6

78
5

79
079
5

80
0

80
5

78
3

78
4

78
6

78
7

78
8

78
9

79
1

79
2

79
3

79
4

79
6

79
7

79
8

79
9

80
1

80
2

80
3

80
4

80
6

790

795

78
8

78
9

79
1

792

793

794

796

800

800

805

801

802

803

804

806

807

808

795

80
0

805

810

815

79
4

79
679

779
879

9801802803

804

806

807

808

809

811

812

813

814

816

////////////////////////////////

XXXXXXXXX
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

XX

X
XX

X
X

X X X X X X X X XX X X X X X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
XXXXX X

X
X

XXXXXXXX

LIMITS OF TREE REMOVAL

PROPOSED EROSION MATTING, TYP.

PROPOSED TRACKING PAD, TYP.

CURB REMOVAL

PROPOSED SILT FENCE, TYP.

W
. L

OO
MIS

 R
OA

D.
  (

S.T
.H

. "
36

")

S.
 B

AL
LP

AR
K 

DR
.

PROTECT EXISTING UTILITIES

PROPOSED INLET
PROTECTION, TYP.

PROTECT EXISTING HYDRANT
DURING CONSTRUCTION

PROTECT EXISTING HYDRANT
DURING CONSTRUCTION

PROPOSED DITCH CHECK, TYP.

//////////////////////////////////////////

REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING STORM
SERVICE ON SITE. SEE SHEET C300.

CONCRETE WASH OUT AREA

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
XX X X X X X

PROPOSED STOCKPILE WITH SILT FENCE.
CONTRACTOR TO RELOCATE ONSITE TO
FACILITATE CONSTRUCTION

800805

805

799801

801

802

802

803

803

804

804

800

805

799

801

802

803

804

80
4

79
0

79
5

80
0

78
8

78
9

79
1

79
2

79
3

79
4

79
6

79
7

79
8

79
9

80
1

80
2

80
3

80
5

806

80
7

80
0

79
7

79
8

79
9

80
1

80
2

80
3

79
8 797

80
0

79
6

79
7

798
799

80
1

80
2

80
3

80
4

79
5

794

792

791

789

786 786

790795

797

800801
80

3
804

80
580
5

80
5

80
6

80
080

5

80
1

80
2

80
3

80
480

6807

80
5

802

80
3

80
4

80
6

806

795

793
794

796
797

80
5

80
2

80
3

80
4

806

80
7

80
0

79
8

79
9

80
1

797

79879
8

79
6

79
7

79
8

79
9

807

808

80980
9

80
5

80
4

805

805

W. RAWSON AVE.  (C.T.H. "BB")

GENERAL NOTES:

1. THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING IS BASED ON FIELD LOCATIONS AND/OR RECORDS
FURNISHED BY MUNICIPALITIES AND UTILITY COMPANIES. THE
LOCATION AND ACCURACY OF WHICH CANNOT BE GUARANTEED.
THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY
INSTALLATIONS WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA THAT ARE NOT
SHOWN.

2. VERIFY ACTUAL LOCATIONS AND INVERTS IN THE FIELD.  ANY
POTENTIAL ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE
BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO
PROCEEDING WITH CONSTRUCTION.

3. WORK TO BE COMPLETED IS INDICATED IN BOLD TYPE LINES AND
EXISTING CONDITIONS ARE INDICATED BY LIGHT TYPE LINES.

4. ELECTRONIC CIVIL FILES ARE AVAILABLE UPON WRITTEN REQUEST.
DO NOT USE ELECTRONIC CIVIL FILES TO LAYOUT FOUNDATIONS,
COLUMN LINES, LIGHT POLES, OR OTHER NON CIVIL SITE WORK.
REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS FOR DIMENSIONS OF
BUILDING AND ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES.

5. SEE SHEET C400 AND C401 FOR A COMPLETE LIST OF EROSION
CONTROL NOTES AND DETAILS.  EROSION CONTROL MEASURES
SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO START OF LAND DISTURBING
ACTIVITIES.

6. DO NOT BEGIN LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITIES UNTIL AN EROSION
CONTROL PERMIT IS OBTAINED FROM LOCAL JURISDICTION.

C400
C

5

5

PROPOSED SILT FENCE

PROPOSED INLET PROTECTION

PROPOSED TRACKING PAD

PROPOSED DITCH CHECK EROSION BALES

PROPOSED EROSION MATTING WISDOT
APPROVED CLASS 1 TYPE B

EXISTING CONTOUR

UTILITY AND CURB REMOVAL

PROPOSED CONTOUR

LEGEND:

TREE REMOVALX X X X X X X

/////////////////

C400
A

C400
B

C400
D

PROPOSED SWALE

C400
E

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS MAP IS BASED
ON FIELD MARKINGS AND INFORMATION FURNISHED BY UTILITY
COMPANIES AND THE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY.  WHILE THIS INFORMATION IS
BELIEVED TO BE RELIABLE, ITS ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS CANNOT
BE GUARANTEED.

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS MAP IS BASED
ON FIELD MARKINGS AND INFORMATION FURNISHED BY UTILITY
COMPANIES AND THE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY.  WHILE THIS INFORMATION IS
BELIEVED TO BE RELIABLE, ITS ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS CANNOT
BE GUARANTEED.

1"=30'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 30 60

C400
A

C400
B

C400
C

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

TH
E

G R O U PSingle Source. Sound Solutions.

DRAWN BY:

DESIGN DATE:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:

PLOT DATE:

NO. REVISION DATE

ISSUANCE DATE

7044 South Ballpark Drive
Franklin, WI  53132
Phone: 414-285-3470

AKK

2022-9-9

21234

PJI

CTC

C002

82
40

 O
LD

 L
O

O
M

IS
 R

D

B
A

D
A

X

FR
A

N
K

LI
N

, W
I

S
IT

E
 D

E
M

O
LI

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 E
R

O
S

IO
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

P
LA

N

2023-07-11

I:\Mandel\21234 Ballpark Commons M1 Site\060 CAD\030_Production Sheets\100_Civil\C002 Erosion Control.dwg

21
23

4
C

00
2

AK
U

SK
E

20
23

.0
7.

11

----

PERMIT-BID SET                        2023-6-2

----
----
----
----
----

----

CITY RESUBMITTAL                  2023-7-11
----
----
----
----

C400
D

C400
E

C401
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
150' PUBLIC R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2  C.S.M. NO. 9078

AutoCAD SHX Text
S35°31'58"W  545.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°17'25"E  59.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°42'40"E  364.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N45°04'47"W  277.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N44°59'54"E  61.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S07°11'54"W  58.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS MEDIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. MEDIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT    WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT    WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT    WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arc=224.31' Radius=340.05' Chord=N26°05'54"E (REC. AS N26°06'00"E) CL=220.26' Delta=37°47'36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
224.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-10

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-11

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
H E A V Y   V E G E T A T I O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1  C.S.M. NO. 9078 (UNIMPROVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE OF THE NE 1/4, SEC. 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°42'40"E  2651.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON RODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND "PK" NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND "PK" NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND CHISELED CROSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFORMER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" C.P.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" C.P.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS N07°12'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS N88°42'47"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS S01°17'19"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARYING PUBLIC R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT ON-RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT ON-RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NO TOPOGRAPHY SHOT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=807.52  INV.=801.01 NW. 24" R.C.P. INV.=801.32 NE. 24" R.C.P. INV.=801.27 SW. 24" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=808.15  INV.=801.53 SW. 24" R.C.P. INV.=801.63 SE. 12" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=807.96  INV.=798.88 NW. 8" (PER PLANS) INV.=798.75 SW. 10" (PER PLANS) INV.=798.91 SE. 8" (PER PLANS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=799.16  INV.=791.86 NW. 36" R.C.P. INV.=791.86 SE. 36" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=799.42  UNABLE TO OPEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=799.25 INV.=793.43 NW & E. 24" R.C.P. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T R E E   L I N E 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK: 804.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDRANT BURY BOLT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK: 808.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE BASE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO ACCESS PER DOC. NO. 3355409 (HATCH) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT LIMITED EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 7629110 

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SIGNS OR BILLBOARDS PER DOC. NO. 10801824 

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' WATERMAIN EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 10835535

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
26' RECIPROCAL DRIVEWAY EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 10919441

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARYING PUBLIC R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(260'±)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATERAL INV.=799.33' (PER PLANS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" R.C.P. BOTTOM=791.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" R.C.P. BOTTOM=791.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=798.94  INV.=796.64 W. 6" C.P.P. INV.=794.64 N. 12" R.C.P. INV.=796.74 W. 6" C.P.P. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILW. AREA 259-1181

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE BEFORE YOU EXCAVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRES MIN. 3 WORK DAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS STATUTE 182.0175(1974)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-242-8511

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO OBTAIN LOCATIONS OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTICIPANTS UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACILITIES BEFORE YOU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIG IN WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILW. AREA 259-1181

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE BEFORE YOU EXCAVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRES MIN. 3 WORK DAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS STATUTE 182.0175(1974)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-242-8511

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO OBTAIN LOCATIONS OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTICIPANTS UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACILITIES BEFORE YOU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIG IN WISCONSIN



STO STO STO STO

P/
L

P/L
P/L

P/L

P/L

P/L

P/L

W. RAWSON AVE.  (C.T.H. "BB")

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

S

S

S

S

S

S

ST
O

STO STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO
STO

STO

STO

STO

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

EE

E

E

E

E

ST

ST

ST

S.
 B

AL
LP

AR
K 

DR
.

W
. L

OO
MIS

 R
OA

D.
  (

S.T
.H

. "
36

")

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

ST

STO

P/L

P/L

P/L

P/L

P/
L

P/L
P/L

PATIO

POOL
20'X40'

30
' B

UFF
ER

 Y
AR

D E
AS

EM
EN

T

10' BUILDING SETBACK

25' BUILDING SETBACK

10
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K

PROPOSED BUILDING
27415 SF

FFE: 808.00
LLE: 798.00

BIO-FILTRATION BASIN
TOP ENG SOIL = 795.00
HWL = 796.29

TYPICAL PARKING STALL
10' X 18'

ADA SIGN AND POST

PROPOSED MODULAR BLOCK WALL WITH RAILING

18.0'

10.0'

PROPOSED DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE.
REFER TO ARCH PLANS FOR DETAILS

PROPOSED STAIRS WITH RAILING
11 RISERS AT 6.0''

PROPOSED TRASH STAGING AREA
WITH 6'' STAND UP CURB

S.
 B

AL
LP

AR
K 

DR
.

W
. L

OO
MIS

 R
OA

D.
  (

S.T
.H

. "
36

")

30.0'

19.7'

10.0'
10.0'

6.0'

20.0'

26.0'

26.0'

26.0'

30.0'

26.0'

6.5'

8.0'

R2.0'

R2.0'

R22.8'

R10.0'

61.6'

131.8'

R6.0'

UNDERGROUND STORMWATER SYSTEM LOCATION

29.0'

20.0'

ADA RAMP, TYPE 1

6.0'

6.5'

6.5'

10.5'

17.8'

49.5'

30.9' 34.8'

PROPOSED RAILING AROUND POOL
REFER TO ARCH PLANS FOR DETAILS

60' VISION TRIANGLE

30' VISION TRIANGLE

PROPOSED BIKE RACK
REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLANS

PROPOSED BENCH AND CONCRETE SLAB
REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLANS

6.5'

PROPOSED PATIOS
REFER TO ARCH PLANS FOR DETAILS

PROPOSED BIKE RACK
REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLANS

PROPOSED RAISED PATIOS
REFER TO ARCH PLANS FOR DETAILS

8.0'

14.5'

29.4'

17.6'

PROPOSED MODULAR
BLOCK WALL WITH RAILING

R19.3'
R8.8' CONCRETE WALK

INTEGRAL CURB

CONCRETE WALK
INTEGRAL CURB

18.5'

10.0'
26.0'

PROPOSED POOL DECK,
GRILLING STATION

& OVERHEAD TRELLIS
DESIGNED BY OTHERS

18'' MOUNTABLE CURB AND GUTTER

PROPOSED CURB CUT, TYP.

8.5'

35.2'

1.0'

18'' MOUNTABLE CURB AND GUTTER FOR SNOW REMOVAL

PROPOSED SWALES

PROPOSED SIDEWALK CONNECTION
TO EXISTING ASPHALT WALK

PROPOSED TRASH
RECEPTACLES

18'' CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

CURB TAPER, TYP.

PROPOSED TRANSFORMER LOCATION TO
BE COORDINATED WITH UTILITY COMPANY

R36.0'
R39.0'

R5.0'

R5.0'

R5.0'

R5.0'

18.0'

R5.0'

R5.0'

W. RAWSON AVE.  (C.T.H. "BB")

PROPOSED SWALES

PROPOSED SWALE

GENERAL NOTES:

1. THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING IS BASED ON FIELD LOCATIONS AND/OR RECORDS
FURNISHED BY MUNICIPALITIES AND UTILITY COMPANIES. THE
LOCATION AND ACCURACY OF WHICH CANNOT BE GUARANTEED.
THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY
INSTALLATIONS WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA THAT ARE NOT
SHOWN.

2. VERIFY ACTUAL LOCATIONS AND INVERTS IN THE FIELD.  ANY
POTENTIAL ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE
BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO
PROCEEDING WITH CONSTRUCTION.

3. WORK TO BE COMPLETED IS INDICATED IN BOLD TYPE LINES AND
EXISTING CONDITIONS ARE INDICATED BY LIGHT TYPE LINES.

4. ELECTRONIC CIVIL FILES ARE AVAILABLE UPON WRITTEN REQUEST.
DO NOT USE ELECTRONIC CIVIL FILES TO LAYOUT FOUNDATIONS,
COLUMN LINES, LIGHT POLES, OR OTHER NON CIVIL SITE WORK.
REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS FOR DIMENSIONS OF
BUILDING AND ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES.

5. DIMENSIONS ARE FROM FACE OF CURB OR EDGE OF PAVEMENT.

6. WORK WITHIN THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY, INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO DRIVEWAY OPENINGS, SIDEWALK AND RAMPS, PAVING,
AND CURB AND GUTTER SHALL BE COMPLETED PER MUNICIPAL
AND/OR COUNTY REQUIREMENTS AND STANDARDS.

7. EARTHWORK SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH GEOTECHNICAL
ENGINEER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.

5" THICK CONCRETE WALK

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT SURFACE

LEGEND:

C402
A

C402
B

C402
C

C402
D CURB & GUTTER

(ACCEPT)

CURB & GUTTER
(REJECT)C402

D

PROPOSED SWALE

PROPOSED SWALE FLOW DIRECTION

SITE INFORMATION

 SITE AREA 135980 3.122 AC

 SITE DISTURBED AREA 135980 3.122 AC

 EXISTING IMPERVIOUS AREA 828 0.019 AC 0.6 %

 PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS AREA 74440 1.709 AC 54.7 %

 PROPOSED GREENSPACE AREA 61540.0 1.413 AC 45.3 %

 EXTERIOR PARKING SPACES 58

 ADA PARKING SPACES 4

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS MAP IS BASED
ON FIELD MARKINGS AND INFORMATION FURNISHED BY UTILITY
COMPANIES AND THE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY.  WHILE THIS INFORMATION IS
BELIEVED TO BE RELIABLE, ITS ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS CANNOT
BE GUARANTEED.

1"=30'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 30 60

C402
G

C402
E

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

TH
E

G R O U PSingle Source. Sound Solutions.

DRAWN BY:

DESIGN DATE:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:

PLOT DATE:

NO. REVISION DATE

ISSUANCE DATE

7044 South Ballpark Drive
Franklin, WI  53132
Phone: 414-285-3470

AKK

2022-9-9

21234

PJI

CTC

C100

82
40

 O
LD

 L
O

O
M

IS
 R

D

B
A

D
A

X

FR
A

N
K

LI
N

, W
I

S
IT

E
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

 P
LA

N

2023-07-11

I:\Mandel\21234 Ballpark Commons M1 Site\060 CAD\030_Production Sheets\100_Civil\C100 Site Plan.dwg

21
23

4
C

10
0

AK
U

SK
E

20
23

.0
7.

11

----

PERMIT-BID SET                        2023-6-2

----
----
----
----
----

----

CITY RESUBMITTAL                  2023-7-11
----
----
----
----

C402
H

C405
A

C402
E

C402
J

C402
J

C402
I

C402
L

C402
I

C402
D

C402
N

C402
M

C403
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
150' PUBLIC R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2  C.S.M. NO. 9078

AutoCAD SHX Text
S35°31'58"W  545.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°17'25"E  59.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°42'40"E  364.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N45°04'47"W  277.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N44°59'54"E  61.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S07°11'54"W  58.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS MEDIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. MEDIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT    WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT    WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT    WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arc=224.31' Radius=340.05' Chord=N26°05'54"E (REC. AS N26°06'00"E) CL=220.26' Delta=37°47'36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
224.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-10

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-11

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
H E A V Y   V E G E T A T I O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1  C.S.M. NO. 9078 (UNIMPROVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE OF THE NE 1/4, SEC. 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°42'40"E  2651.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON RODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND "PK" NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND "PK" NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND CHISELED CROSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFORMER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" C.P.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" C.P.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS N07°12'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS N88°42'47"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS S01°17'19"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARYING PUBLIC R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT ON-RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT ON-RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NO TOPOGRAPHY SHOT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=807.52  INV.=801.01 NW. 24" R.C.P. INV.=801.32 NE. 24" R.C.P. INV.=801.27 SW. 24" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=808.15  INV.=801.53 SW. 24" R.C.P. INV.=801.63 SE. 12" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=807.96  INV.=798.88 NW. 8" (PER PLANS) INV.=798.75 SW. 10" (PER PLANS) INV.=798.91 SE. 8" (PER PLANS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=799.16  INV.=791.86 NW. 36" R.C.P. INV.=791.86 SE. 36" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=799.42  UNABLE TO OPEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=799.25 INV.=793.43 NW & E. 24" R.C.P. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T R E E   L I N E 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK: 804.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDRANT BURY BOLT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK: 808.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE BASE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO ACCESS PER DOC. NO. 3355409 (HATCH) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT LIMITED EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 7629110 

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SIGNS OR BILLBOARDS PER DOC. NO. 10801824 

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' WATERMAIN EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 10835535

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
26' RECIPROCAL DRIVEWAY EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 10919441

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARYING PUBLIC R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(260'±)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATERAL INV.=799.33' (PER PLANS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" R.C.P. BOTTOM=791.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" R.C.P. BOTTOM=791.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=798.94  INV.=796.64 W. 6" C.P.P. INV.=794.64 N. 12" R.C.P. INV.=796.74 W. 6" C.P.P. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILW. AREA 259-1181

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE BEFORE YOU EXCAVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRES MIN. 3 WORK DAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS STATUTE 182.0175(1974)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-242-8511

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO OBTAIN LOCATIONS OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTICIPANTS UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACILITIES BEFORE YOU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIG IN WISCONSIN



STO STO STO STO

P/
L

P/L
P/L

P/L

P/L

P/L

P/L

W. RAWSON AVE.  (C.T.H. "BB")

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

S

S

S

S

S

S

ST
O

STO STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO
STO

STO

STO

STO

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

EE

E

E

E

E

ST

ST

ST

S.
 B

AL
LP

AR
K 

DR
.

W
. L

OO
MIS

 R
OA

D.
  (

S.T
.H

. "
36

")

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

ST

STO

805

810

815

801
802

803
804

806

807

808

809

811

812

81
3

814

816

79
0

79
5

80
0

80
5

81
0

78
9

79
179

279
379

4
79

679
779

879
9

80
180

280
380

4
80

6
80

7

80
8

80
9

785

790

795

781

782

783

784

786

787

788

789

791

792

793

794

796

797

798

78
5

79
0

79
5

78
1

78
2

78
3

78
4

78
6

78
7

78
8

78
9

79
1

79
2

79
3

79
4

79
6

78
5

79
079
5

80
0

80
5

78
3

78
4

78
6

78
7

78
8

78
9

79
1

79
2

79
3

79
4

79
6

79
7

79
8

79
9

80
1

80
2

80
3

80
4

80
6

790

795

78
8

78
9

79
1

792

793

794

796

800

800

805

801

802

803

804

806

807

808

795

80
0

805

810

815

79
4

79
679

779
879

9801802803

804

806

807

808

809

811

812

813

814

816

785

790

795

782
783

784

786
787

788
789

791
792

793
794

796

800

805

797

79
8

79
9

80
1

802

803
804

800

798

799

801

802

803

804

800

805

805

801

801

802

802

803

803

804

804

806

806

807
807

80
6

806

79
5

800

805

793

794

79
6797798799

80180280
3

804

806

795

793
794

796
79779

8

80
0

79
7

79
8

79
9

80
1

80
2

80
3

80
4

80
5

80
3

80
4

80
6

80
5

80
1

80
2

80
3

80
4

80
6

80
7

80
5

80
380

4

80
6

80
7

80
5

80
2

80
3

80
480

6807

80
1

80
0 79
9

80
1

802

80
5

80
4

80
6

807

P/L

P/L

P/L

P/L

P/
L

P/L
P/L

PATIO

POOL
20'X40'

30
' B

UFF
ER

 Y
AR

D E
AS

EM
EN

T

10' BUILDING SETBACK

25' BUILDING SETBACK

10
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K

PROPOSED BUILDING
27415 SF

FFE: 808.00
LLE: 798.00

BIO-FILTRATION BASIN
TOP ENG SOIL = 795.00
HWL = 796.29

11 STAIRS AT 6'' RISERS
REFER TO ARCH PLANS FOR DETAILS

TOP OF STAIRS: 807.53
BOTTOM OF STAIRS: 802.03

S.
 B

AL
LP

AR
K 

DR
.

W. RAWSON AVE.  (C.T.H. "BB")

W
. L

OO
MIS

 R
OA

D.
  (

S.T
.H

. "
36

")

UNDERGROUND STORMWATER SYSTEM LOCATION

RIP RAP DISCHARGE APRON

1:4 SLOPE MAX

80
6

807

808

808.00

808.00

808.00

808.00 808.00
798.50 T/C
798.00 FL

798.48 T/C
797.98 FL

801.67

806.06

807.52

807.89 T/C
807.39 FL

808.10 T/C
807.60 FL

807.85 T/C
807.35 FL

807.66

807.85 T/C
807.35 FL

807.69 T/C
807.19 FL

807.85 T/C
807.35 FL 807.12

807.12

806.02 T/C
805.52 FL

806.53 T/C
806.03 FL

805.88 T/C
805.38 FL

807.05 T/C
806.55 FL

807.74 T/C
807.24 FL

807.85 T/C
807.35 FL

805.89 T/C
805.39 FL

806.70 T/C
806.20 FL

806.11 T/C
805.61 FL

807.37 T/C
806.87 FL

807.52 T/C
807.02 FL

807.37 T/C
806.87 FL

805.88 T/C
805.38 FL

805.21 T/C
804.71 FL

805.12 T/C
804.62 FL

804.79 T/C
804.29 FL

805.93 T/C
805.43 FL

805.76 T/C
805.26 FL

801.51 T/C
801.01 FL

807.95807.86

807.58

807.24 T/C
806.74 FL

801.58 T/C
801.08 FL

805.89 T/C
805.39 FL

799.56 T/C
799.06 FL

798.86 T/C
798.36 FL

808.83

808.75

807.82

807.89 T/C
807.39 FL

807.62 T/C
807.12 FL

807.13

807.16

807.31

802.83 T/C
802.33 FL

802.86 T/C
802.36 FL

807.92

807.90

TW: 804.60

BW: 804.50

TW: 803.60
BW: 792.18

TW: 802.31
BW: 786.00

806.71 T/C
806.21 FL

806.22 T/C
805.72 FL

805.77 T/C
805.27 FL

806.28 T/C
805.78 FL

806.41 T/C
805.91 FL

806.44 T/C
805.94 FL

807.07

807.69 T/C
807.19 FL

807.60 T/C
807.10 FL

807.09

808.00

808.00

808.00

CURB CUT:797.50

798.61 T/C
798.11 FL

807.85 T/C
807.35 FL

807.39 T/C
806.89 FL

808.00

808.00

TW: 807.30
BW: 807.20

TW: 807.30
BW: 805.20

TW: 807.30
BW: 806.00

TW: 804.55
BW: 797.55

TW: 803.25
BW: 787.83

TW: 801.51
BW: 791.83

807.90

807.84
807.68

807.80
807.80

807.80
807.80

808.28

808.14

807.32 T/C
806.82 FL

807.62

807.90

807.80

807.35

807.67

807.48

CURB CUT:797.60

799.29 T/C
798.79 FL

798.27 T/C
797.77 FL

798.04 T/C
797.54 FL

800

798

799

807.91
807.92

807.58

STORM UPFLO STRUCTURE

807.35
807.35

807.84

807.85

807.35
807.35

807.85

807.85

TW: 799.00
BW: 798.90

TW: 801.11
BW: 795.83

TW: 801.91
BW: 787.83

805.50 T/C
805.00 FL

808.20

807.43 807.43

807.33

807.73

807.42
807.53

807.32

80
6

808

80
7

805

807

786.02

807.92
807.42

807.42

807.92

807.92
807.92

807.85

STORM CB 2
RIM:803.99

STORM FES 2
12" NW INV:789.99

STORM CB 3
RIM:807.34

STORM CB 4
RIM:806.61

STORM OUTFALL
18" NW INV:789.65

STORM AREA DRAIN 1
RIM:807.20

STORM AREA DRAIN 2
RIM:807.10

STORM FES 3
36" NW INV:790.00

STORM MH 2
RIM:800.85

STORM MH 1-CONNECT TO EX
RIM:800.72

STORM BIO OUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURE
RIM:796.25

STORM CB 1
RIM:804.16

STORM MH 3
RIM:807.19

GENERAL NOTES:

1. THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING IS BASED ON FIELD LOCATIONS AND/OR RECORDS
FURNISHED BY MUNICIPALITIES AND UTILITY COMPANIES. THE
LOCATION AND ACCURACY OF WHICH CANNOT BE GUARANTEED.
THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY
INSTALLATIONS WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA THAT ARE NOT
SHOWN.

2. VERIFY ACTUAL LOCATIONS AND INVERTS IN THE FIELD.  ANY
POTENTIAL ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE
BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO
PROCEEDING WITH CONSTRUCTION.

3. WORK TO BE COMPLETED IS INDICATED IN BOLD TYPE LINES AND
EXISTING CONDITIONS ARE INDICATED BY LIGHT TYPE LINES.

4. ELECTRONIC CIVIL FILES ARE AVAILABLE UPON WRITTEN REQUEST.
DO NOT USE ELECTRONIC CIVIL FILES TO LAYOUT FOUNDATIONS,
COLUMN LINES, LIGHT POLES, OR OTHER NON CIVIL SITE WORK.
REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS FOR DIMENSIONS OF
BUILDING AND ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES.

5. DIMENSIONS ARE FROM FACE OF CURB OR EDGE OF PAVEMENT.

6. WORK WITHIN THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY, INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO DRIVEWAY OPENINGS, SIDEWALK AND RAMPS, PAVING,
AND CURB AND GUTTER SHALL BE COMPLETED PER MUNICIPAL
AND/OR COUNTY REQUIREMENTS AND STANDARDS.

7. EARTHWORK SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH GEOTECHNICAL
ENGINEER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.

C402
D CURB & GUTTER

(ACCEPT)

CURB & GUTTER
(REJECT)

5" THICK CONCRETE WALK

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

5

5 EXISTING CONTOUR

PROPOSED CONTOUR

PROPOSED CURB & GUTTER SPOT GRADE
T/C: TOP OF CURB GRADE
FL: FLOW LINE CURB GRADE

PROPOSED ASPHALT
SPOT GRADE

100.00

100.50 T/C
100.00 FL

EXISTING SURFACE
SPOT GRADE (MATCH)100.00

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT SURFACE

LEGEND:

PROPOSED TOP OF WALL AT FINISHED GRADE

C402
A

C402
B

C402
D

C402
C

TW: 100.00

BW: 100.00 PROPOSED BOTTOM OF WALL AT FINISHED
GRADE

PROPOSED GRADE BREAK

PROPOSED SWALE

PROPOSED SWALE FLOW DIRECTION

OVERLAND FLOWPATH

PROPOSED STORM INLET

PROPOSED STORM MANHOLE

C403
A

C403
F

PROPOSED FLARED END SECTION
C402

K

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS MAP IS BASED
ON FIELD MARKINGS AND INFORMATION FURNISHED BY UTILITY
COMPANIES AND THE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY.  WHILE THIS INFORMATION IS
BELIEVED TO BE RELIABLE, ITS ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS CANNOT
BE GUARANTEED.

1"=30'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 30 60

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

TH
E

G R O U PSingle Source. Sound Solutions.

DRAWN BY:

DESIGN DATE:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:

PLOT DATE:

NO. REVISION DATE

ISSUANCE DATE

7044 South Ballpark Drive
Franklin, WI  53132
Phone: 414-285-3470

AKK

2022-9-9

21234

PJI

CTC

C200

82
40

 O
LD

 L
O

O
M

IS
 R

D

B
A

D
A

X

FR
A

N
K

LI
N

, W
I

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 P
LA

N

2023-07-11

I:\Mandel\21234 Ballpark Commons M1 Site\060 CAD\030_Production Sheets\100_Civil\C200 Grading Plan.dwg

21
23

4
C

20
0

AK
U

SK
E

20
23

.0
7.

11

----

PERMIT-BID SET                        2023-6-2

----
----
----
----
----

----

CITY RESUBMITTAL                  2023-7-11
----
----
----
----

C402
K

C402
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
150' PUBLIC R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2  C.S.M. NO. 9078

AutoCAD SHX Text
S35°31'58"W  545.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°17'25"E  59.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°42'40"E  364.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N45°04'47"W  277.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N44°59'54"E  61.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S07°11'54"W  58.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS MEDIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. MEDIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT    WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT    WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT    WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arc=224.31' Radius=340.05' Chord=N26°05'54"E (REC. AS N26°06'00"E) CL=220.26' Delta=37°47'36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
224.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-10

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-11

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
H E A V Y   V E G E T A T I O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1  C.S.M. NO. 9078 (UNIMPROVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE OF THE NE 1/4, SEC. 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°42'40"E  2651.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON RODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND "PK" NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND "PK" NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND CHISELED CROSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFORMER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" C.P.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" C.P.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS N07°12'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS N88°42'47"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS S01°17'19"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARYING PUBLIC R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT ON-RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT ON-RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NO TOPOGRAPHY SHOT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=807.52  INV.=801.01 NW. 24" R.C.P. INV.=801.32 NE. 24" R.C.P. INV.=801.27 SW. 24" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=808.15  INV.=801.53 SW. 24" R.C.P. INV.=801.63 SE. 12" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=807.96  INV.=798.88 NW. 8" (PER PLANS) INV.=798.75 SW. 10" (PER PLANS) INV.=798.91 SE. 8" (PER PLANS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=799.16  INV.=791.86 NW. 36" R.C.P. INV.=791.86 SE. 36" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=799.42  UNABLE TO OPEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=799.25 INV.=793.43 NW & E. 24" R.C.P. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T R E E   L I N E 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK: 804.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDRANT BURY BOLT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK: 808.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE BASE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO ACCESS PER DOC. NO. 3355409 (HATCH) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT LIMITED EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 7629110 

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SIGNS OR BILLBOARDS PER DOC. NO. 10801824 

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' WATERMAIN EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 10835535

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
26' RECIPROCAL DRIVEWAY EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 10919441

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARYING PUBLIC R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(260'±)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATERAL INV.=799.33' (PER PLANS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" R.C.P. BOTTOM=791.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" R.C.P. BOTTOM=791.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=798.94  INV.=796.64 W. 6" C.P.P. INV.=794.64 N. 12" R.C.P. INV.=796.74 W. 6" C.P.P. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILW. AREA 259-1181

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE BEFORE YOU EXCAVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRES MIN. 3 WORK DAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS STATUTE 182.0175(1974)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-242-8511

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO OBTAIN LOCATIONS OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTICIPANTS UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACILITIES BEFORE YOU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIG IN WISCONSIN



785

785

790

790

795

800

80
0

800

800

805

805805

80
5

805

805

784

784

786

786

787

787

788

788

789

789

791

791

792

792

793

793

794

79
6

797

798
799

79
9

799

801

80
1

801

801

802
80

2

802

802

803
80

3

803

803

804

80
4

804

804

806

80
6

807

80
7

80
8

80
080
5

80
5

79
9

80
1

80
1

80
2

80
2

80
3

80
3

80
4

80
4

80
6

80
6

80
7

80
7

80
8

80
6

80
7

80
7

800

805

799

801

802

803

804

795

80
0

793
794

796
797

79
8

79
9

80
1

798

798

798

80
5

80
1

80
2

80
3

80
4

80
6807

795

800

805

796

797798799
80180280

3
804

806
785

785

790

790

795

80
0

805
805

80
0

805

805

805

79
6

79
7

79
8

79
9

80
1

80
2

80
3

80
4

80
4

804

798

STO STO STO STO

P/
L

P/L
P/L

P/L

P/L

P/L

P/L

W. RAWSON AVE.  (C.T.H. "BB")

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

S

S

S

S

S

S

ST
O

STO STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO
STO

STO

STO

STO

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

EE

E

E

E

E

ST

ST

ST

S.
 B

AL
LP

AR
K 

DR
.

W
. L

OO
MIS

 R
OA

D.
  (

S.T
.H

. "
36

")

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

ST

STO

P/L

P/L

P/L

P/L

P/
L

P/L
P/L

PATIO

POOL
20'X40'

30
' B

UFF
ER

 Y
AR

D E
AS

EM
EN

T

10' BUILDING SETBACK

25' BUILDING SETBACK

10
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K

PROPOSED BUILDING
27415 SF

FFE: 808.00
LLE: 798.00

BIO-FILTRATION BASIN
TOP ENG SOIL = 795.00
HWL = 796.29

MECHANICAL
 ROOM

MECHANICAL
ROOM

G

PROPOSED NATURAL GAS
SERVICE BUILDING CONNECTION

PROPOSED TRANSFORMER LOCATION TO
BE COORDINATED WITH UTILITY COMPANY

STORM FES 2
12" NW INV:789.99

W

S.
 B

AL
LP

AR
K 

DR
.

W. RAWSON AVE.  (C.T.H. "BB")

W
. L

OO
MIS

 R
OA

D.
  (

S.T
.H

. "
36

")

22.4 L.F. of 15" STORM @ 1.00%

26.9 L.F. of 18" STORM @ 13.96%

EXISTING HYDRANT

EXISTING HYDRANT

ST

ST

65.8 L.F. of 12" STORM @ 2.68%

SAN

PROPOSED WATER SERVICE
8'' INV:800.00±

CONNECT TO EX WM

PROPOSED SANITARY SERVICE
8'' INV:800.00±

CONNECT TO EX SANITARY
EX INV:799.33±

UNDERGROUND STORMWATER SYSTEM LOCATION
100 YEAR STORAGE VOLUME: 23,500 CF
BOTTOM OF STONE = 796.50

STORM CB 2
RIM:803.99

STORM CB 1
RIM:804.16

STORM IN1
15" NW INV:797.75

STORM OUTFALL
18" NW INV:789.65

15.0 L.F. of 18" STORM @ 13.96%

STORM UPFLO STRUCTURE
18" NW INV:792.75
18" SE INV:791.75

ST
ST

STORM CB 3
RIM:807.34
6" S INV:802.75

STORM IN2
10" W INV:800.00

ST

ST

ST
STORM CB 4

RIM:806.61
6" N INV:801.10

10" E INV:801.10

62.2 L.F. of 6" STORM @ 2.65%

110.5 L.F. of 10" STORM @ 1.00%

E

E

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

REPLACE EXISTING 36'' STORM SEWER

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

D
T

D
T

DT
DT

STORM BUILDING CONNECTION
15" SE INV:798.72

15.2 L.F. of 8"  W.M. @ 1.32%

16.7 L.F. of 8" SAN @ 3.59%

DT D
T

6" DRAINTILE

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

239.7 L.F. of 36" STORM @ 0.48%
STORM MH 2

RIM:800.85
36" W INV:790.68

36" SE INV:790.68

140.7 L.F. of 36" STORM @ 0.48%

STORM MH 1-CONNECT TO EX
RIM:800.72

36" E INV:791.84

STORM FES 3
36" NW INV:790.00

ST

ST

ST

ST

STORM AREA DRAIN 1
RIM:807.20

6" NE INV:802.42
6" SW INV:802.42

STORM AREA DRAIN 2
RIM:807.10

6" SW INV:803.69

25.4 L.F. of 6" STORM @ 5.00%

78.3 L.F. of 6" STORM @ 5.00%

CONNECT TO EXISTING ELECTRIC
COORDINATE WITH UTILITY COMPANY

STORM MH 3
RIM:807.19

15" NW INV:798.50
6" NE INV:798.50

15" SE INV:798.49

73.6 L.F. of 15" STORM @ 1.00%

STORM BIO OUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURE
RIM:796.25
12" SE INV:791.75

STORM UNDERGROUND STORAGE OUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURE
18" SE INV:796.50

80
5

80
5

805

80
2

80
3

80
4

EMERGENCY SPILLWAY

GENERAL NOTES:

1. THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING IS BASED ON FIELD LOCATIONS AND/OR RECORDS
FURNISHED BY MUNICIPALITIES AND UTILITY COMPANIES. THE
LOCATION AND ACCURACY OF WHICH CANNOT BE GUARANTEED.
THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL UNDERGROUND UTILITY
INSTALLATIONS WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA THAT ARE NOT
SHOWN.

2. VERIFY ACTUAL LOCATIONS AND INVERTS IN THE FIELD.  ANY
POTENTIAL ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE
BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO
PROCEEDING WITH CONSTRUCTION.

3. WORK TO BE COMPLETED IS INDICATED IN BOLD TYPE LINES AND
EXISTING CONDITIONS ARE INDICATED BY LIGHT TYPE LINES.

4. ELECTRONIC CIVIL FILES ARE AVAILABLE UPON WRITTEN REQUEST.
DO NOT USE ELECTRONIC CIVIL FILES TO LAYOUT FOUNDATIONS,
COLUMN LINES, LIGHT POLES, OR OTHER NON CIVIL SITE WORK.
REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS FOR DIMENSIONS OF
BUILDING AND ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES.

5. ALL UTILITIES WITHIN 5 FEET OF PAVED AREAS SHALL REQUIRE
GRANULAR BACKFILL.  SLURRY BACKFILL IS REQUIRED FOR ALL
WORK IN PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY.

6. PRIVATE STORM INLETS IN PAVEMENT SHALL REQUIRE DRAIN TILE
STUBS OF 10 FEET IN TWO DIRECTIONS FOR SUBDRAINAGE.  RIM
GRADE FOR STORM INLETS IN CURB AND GUTTER ARE FLOW LINE
GRADES.

7. WORK IN PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY SHALL FOLLOW MATERIAL AND
INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS PER MUNICIPAL AND/OR COUNTY.

8. PRIVATE STORM SEWER 12-INCH DIAMETER OR LARGER SHALL BE
HDPE.  BELOW 12-INCH DIAMETER SHALL BE PVC SDR-35 ASTM
D3034.  PRIVATE WATER MAIN SHALL BE CLASS 235 DR 18 PVC
CONFORMING TO AWWA C-900. PRIVATE SANITARY SEWER SHALL
BE PVC SDR-35 ASTM D3034.

9. COORDINATE FINAL LOCATION AND DESIGN OF PRIVATE UTILITY
SERVICES (ELECTRIC, GAS, PHONE, CABLE) WITH UTILITY
COMPANIES.

10. IF PROJECT IS DESIGN BUILD MEP, THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR IS
REQUIRED TO PROVIDE FINAL SEWER AND WATER DESIGN
SHOWING LOCATION, INVERTS AND SIZES TO THE ENGINEER FOR
FINAL REVIEW AND VERIFICATION PRIOR TO STARTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITY CONSTRUCTION.

11. WATER MAIN CONNECTION:  TAP WATER MAIN WITH SIZE AND
LOCATION INDICATED ON PLAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL
WATER UTILITY REQUIREMENTS.  COORDINATE CONNECTION WITH
LOCAL WATER UTILITY.  ALL JOINTS HALL BE RESTRAINED FROM
CONNECTION OF WATER MAIN TO BUILDING WALL.  SUBMIT JOINT
RESTRAINT DETAILS FOR ALL JOINT TYPES INCLUDING PUSH-ON
AND MECHANICAL CONNECTIONS.  INSTALL MEGA-LUG OR
APPROVED EQUAL TIGHT TO WALL FOR RESTRAINT FOR ALL
BUILDING WALL PENETRATIONS AS APPROVED BY LOCAL
PLUMBING INSPECTOR AND WATER UTILITY.  INSTALL THRUST
BLOCKING AND MEGA-LUG AT BEND BELOW FLOOR FOR ALL FLOOR
PENETRATIONS.

12. INSTALL JOINT RESTRAINT AND CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKS AT
ALL OFFSET FITTINGS (TEES, BENDS, DEAD ENDS, VALVES,
REDUCERS) USING MEGA-LUG OR APPROVED EQUAL.  CONCRETE
THRUST BLOCKS SHALL BE INSTALLED PER FILE NO'S:44,45,46
FROM THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR SEWER AND WATER
CONSTRUCTION IN WISCONSIN.  SEE DETAIL FOR MINIMUM LENGTH
OF RESTRAINED JOINT REQUIRED.  SUBMIT JOINT RESTRAINT
DETAILS FOR ALL JOINT TYPES INCLUDING PUSH-ON AND
MECHANICAL CONNECTIONS.

W PROPOSED WATER SERVICE

PROPOSED SANITARY SERVICE

PROPOSED STORM SEWER

PROPOSED ELECTRICAL SERVICE

PROPOSED GAS SERVICE

LEGEND:

PROPOSED STORM INLET

PROPOSED STORM MANHOLE

PROPOSED SANITARY MANHOLE

E

ST

SAN

G

C403
A

PROPOSED FLARED END SECTION
C402

K

C403
B

PROPOSED SWALE

PROPOSED SWALE FLOW DIRECTION

C403
F

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS MAP IS BASED
ON FIELD MARKINGS AND INFORMATION FURNISHED BY UTILITY
COMPANIES AND THE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY.  WHILE THIS INFORMATION IS
BELIEVED TO BE RELIABLE, ITS ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS CANNOT
BE GUARANTEED.

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS MAP IS BASED
ON FIELD MARKINGS AND INFORMATION FURNISHED BY UTILITY
COMPANIES AND THE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY.  WHILE THIS INFORMATION IS
BELIEVED TO BE RELIABLE, ITS ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS CANNOT
BE GUARANTEED.

1"=30'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 30 60

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

TH
E

G R O U PSingle Source. Sound Solutions.

DRAWN BY:

DESIGN DATE:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:

PLOT DATE:

NO. REVISION DATE

ISSUANCE DATE

7044 South Ballpark Drive
Franklin, WI  53132
Phone: 414-285-3470

AKK

2022-9-9

21234

PJI

CTC

C300

82
40

 O
LD

 L
O

O
M

IS
 R

D

B
A

D
A

X

FR
A

N
K

LI
N

, W
I

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N

2023-07-11

I:\Mandel\21234 Ballpark Commons M1 Site\060 CAD\030_Production Sheets\100_Civil\C300 Utility Plan.dwg

21
23

4
C

30
0

AK
U

SK
E

20
23

.0
7.

11

----

PERMIT-BID SET                        2023-6-2

----
----
----
----
----

----

CITY RESUBMITTAL                  2023-7-11
----
----
----
----

C404
A

C405
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
150' PUBLIC R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2  C.S.M. NO. 9078

AutoCAD SHX Text
S35°31'58"W  545.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°17'25"E  59.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°42'40"E  364.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N45°04'47"W  277.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N44°59'54"E  61.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S07°11'54"W  58.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS MEDIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. MEDIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT    WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT    WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT    WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arc=224.31' Radius=340.05' Chord=N26°05'54"E (REC. AS N26°06'00"E) CL=220.26' Delta=37°47'36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
224.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-10

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-11

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BORING TP-M-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
H E A V Y   V E G E T A T I O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1  C.S.M. NO. 9078 (UNIMPROVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE OF THE NE 1/4, SEC. 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°42'40"E  2651.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON RODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND "PK" NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND "PK" NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND CHISELED CROSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFORMER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" C.P.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" C.P.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS N07°12'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS N88°42'47"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS S01°17'19"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARYING PUBLIC R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT ON-RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT ON-RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NO TOPOGRAPHY SHOT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=807.52  INV.=801.01 NW. 24" R.C.P. INV.=801.32 NE. 24" R.C.P. INV.=801.27 SW. 24" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=808.15  INV.=801.53 SW. 24" R.C.P. INV.=801.63 SE. 12" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=807.96  INV.=798.88 NW. 8" (PER PLANS) INV.=798.75 SW. 10" (PER PLANS) INV.=798.91 SE. 8" (PER PLANS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=799.16  INV.=791.86 NW. 36" R.C.P. INV.=791.86 SE. 36" R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=799.42  UNABLE TO OPEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=799.25 INV.=793.43 NW & E. 24" R.C.P. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T R E E   L I N E 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK: 804.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDRANT BURY BOLT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK: 808.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE BASE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO ACCESS PER DOC. NO. 3355409 (HATCH) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT LIMITED EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 7629110 

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SIGNS OR BILLBOARDS PER DOC. NO. 10801824 

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' WATERMAIN EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 10835535

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
26' RECIPROCAL DRIVEWAY EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 10919441

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARYING PUBLIC R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(260'±)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATERAL INV.=799.33' (PER PLANS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" R.C.P. BOTTOM=791.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" R.C.P. BOTTOM=791.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM=798.94  INV.=796.64 W. 6" C.P.P. INV.=794.64 N. 12" R.C.P. INV.=796.74 W. 6" C.P.P. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILW. AREA 259-1181

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE BEFORE YOU EXCAVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRES MIN. 3 WORK DAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS STATUTE 182.0175(1974)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-242-8511

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO OBTAIN LOCATIONS OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTICIPANTS UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACILITIES BEFORE YOU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIG IN WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILW. AREA 259-1181

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE BEFORE YOU EXCAVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRES MIN. 3 WORK DAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS STATUTE 182.0175(1974)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-242-8511

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO OBTAIN LOCATIONS OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTICIPANTS UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACILITIES BEFORE YOU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIG IN WISCONSIN





30x33.5

3
0

x
3

3
.5

21 '-9 " 40 '-0 "

2
0

'-
0

"
3

0
'-

6
 1

/
4

"

13 '-8 "

TRASH STAGING AREA

R
ET

A
IN

IN
G
 W

A
LL

 -
SE

E 
C
IV

IL
 D

O
C
U
M

EN
T
S

POOL & POOL 
DECK BY OTHERS

D
U
M

PS
T
ER

 

EN
C
LO

SU
R
E

ASP-100

19

PATIO
- SEE CIVIL

PR
O
PE

R
T
Y
 L

IN
E 

-
SE

E 
C
IV

IL
 F

O
R
 F

U
R
T
H
ER

 IN
FO

R
M

A
T
IO

N

TO
TA

L 
SU

R
FA

C
E 

PA
R
KI

N
G

 =
 8

7 
ST

A
LL

S

1
0
'-

0
"  

-
 T

Y
P
.

18' -0 "  -  TYP.

ASP-100

3

A8008

1
0
'-

0
"

1
0
'-

0
"

1
0
'-

0
"

1
0
'-

0
"

1
0
'-

0
"

1
0
'-

0
"

1
0
'-

0
"

1
0
'-

0
"

1
0
'-

0
"

1
0
'-

0
"

1
0
'-

0
"

1
0
'-

0
"

6
'-

0
"

1
0
'-

0
"

POOL FENCE TBD

6'-0" HEIGHT COMPOSITE SLAT 
PRIVACY FENCING - COORD. FINISH 
W/ OWNER

6" DIA CONCRETE 
BOLLARDS BOLTED TO 
CONCRETE SLAB 
BELOW - PAINTED 
BLACK

14' -6 "

EQ
.

EQ
.

2
5
'-

0
"

E
Q

E
Q

E
Q

E
Q

6'-0" HEIGHT COMPOSITE SLAT 
PRIVACY GATE - COORD. FINISH W/ 
OWNER

DUMPSTERS AS REQUIRED

PROVIDE 3'-0" HEIGHT BOLLARDS 
AS REQUIRED W/ IDEALSHIELD 
COVER TO PROTECT FENCING 
FROM DAMAGE FROM 
DUMPSTERS - TYP.

16 '- 1  1 /4 "

3
'-

9
"

2 '- 0 " 21 '-2 " 2 '- 0 "

2
'-

0
"

1
2

'-
0

"
2

'-
0

"

8

A513

9

A513

PERGOLA ABOVEPOOL DECK FENCE

OUTDOOR GRILL 
AND COUNTERTOP 

5' -0 "

11

A511

CONCRETE SLAB PATIO - PTICH 
AWAY FROM PATIO DOOR

1/4" PER 

FOOT SLOPE

1
0
'-

0
"

E
Q

.

E
Q

.

(SIM)

AREA 
B

KEY PLAN

AREA 
A

JLA PROJECT NUMBER:

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

DATE OF ISSUANCE

6
/2

/2
0

2
3

 1
1

:3
3

:3
3
 A

M

ARCHITECTURAL SITE
LAYOUT PLAN

W22-0126

BADAX FLATS
APARTMENTS

JUNE 02, 2023

ASP-100

PERMIT SET

3/64" = 1'-0"
1

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

1/8" = 1'-0"
19

DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE @ COMMERCIAL SPACE

1/4" = 1'-0"
3

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN - Callout 2

1/4" = 1'-0"
5

CONCRETE PATIO PLAN - TYP.

REVISION SCHEDULE

Mark Description Date



  

 1 

 C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N   

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 

Meeting of March 3, 2022 
 

SPECIAL USE/SITE PLAN 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends the following: (1) Recommend 
approval of the special use application, and (2) Approve the site plan, subject to conditions contained 
in the draft Resolution. 
 
Property Owner: CCM-9801 27th Franklin LLC 
Applicant: Fiduciary Real Estate Development, Inc.  
Property Address/Tax Key Number: 9801 S. 27th Street/902-9965-006 
 9605 S. 29th Street/902-9966-001 
Aldermanic District: District 4 
Agent: Anthony DeRosa, Fiduciary Real Estate Development, Inc. 
Zoning District:  B-4 South 27th Street Mixed Use-Commercial 
  R-3 Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence 
  South 27th Street Design Overlay 
 
Use of Surrounding Properties: West: Residential zoned R-3  
 South: Medical office and hospital zoned B-7, Small scale 

business/service uses zoned B-4  
 North: Floodplain and hotel zoned PDD-33  
 East: Business/industrial uses zoned M-1 (City of Oak Creek)  

Special Use Request: To permit a 252-unit apartment complex on 24.12 acres in the 
B-4 South 27th Street Mixed Use-Commercial District.  

Site Plan Proposal: To permit construction of 252 apartment units in 12 buildings 
and a clubhouse and pool, with attached and detached garage 
facilities, a grill station, a dog park, a maintenance garage, 
and necessary utility and stormwater facilities (in concept 
form). 

Staff Planner: Heath Eddy, AICP, Planning Manager 

 
APPLICANT’S REQUEST 
The applicant is requesting approval of (1) a Special Use to permit development of 252 apartment units 
on a property located in the B-4 South 27th Street Mixed Use-Commercial District, and (2) a Site Plan 
to permit construction of 252 apartment units in 12 buildings, along with associated parking, detached 
parking garages, a clubhouse and pool, grill station area, and dog park for residents only. The mix of 
residential units is 30 studio units, 96 one-bedroom units, 102 two-bedroom units, and 24 three-
bedroom units.  
 

Item C.1. 



  

 2 

The applicant is further requesting approval for a Natural Resource Features Special Exception 
(NRSE) under a separate review by Department staff. That application was filed subsequent to the 
requests under review here, and was delayed in part because the applicant was working to secure the 
General Permit for disturbance of wetland on-site, which was approved by WDNR staff under docket 
GP-SE-2021-41-04248 on December 23, 2021 (see attached). The NRSE application was filed with the 
Department of City Development originally on January 10, 2022, and staff has finished completeness 
review and routed the application materials for departmental reviews.  
 
While it is unusual for an applicant to request separate and prior action on a Site Plan application, in 
particular, before the particulars of the NRSE are factored into the Site Plan, the applicant believes the 
design revisions made to secure WDNR approval materially reduce the impact that NRSE approval 
requires, and therefore the Site Plan would not be significantly altered subsequently. Staff expressed 
concern with this approach, and informed the applicant of such particularly with respect to the Site 
Plan; nevertheless the applicant requested moving forward. Staff believes the Plan Commission can 
proceed with the public hearing and discussion of the special use request and a review of the Site Plan 
application as it is currently designed. 
 
CHARACTER OF THE SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA 
The subject property is a former landscaping business known as Nature’s Nook, and currently contains 
the former commercial building along with available parking on-site, and the remainder disturbance 
areas of outdoor storage of landscaping materials. The property has been variably commercial in 
orientation, though the extent of use of the property included the wetland complex on the east half of 
the property. The disturbance authorized by the Wetland General Permit, as mentioned above, is 
limited to approximately 653 square feet of total wetland disturbance that was already previously 
disturbed with small culvert-like overpasses due west of the existing commercial building. The 
applicant’s current Site Plan design reflects these two cross-over areas.  
 
The attached Natural Resource Protection Plan shows that there is a 2.22-acre wetland complex located 
primarily on the east-northeast side of the site adjacent to a County-owned former gas station and near 
South 27th Street (STH 241). Combined with the required wetland buffer and setback, a total of 5.64 
acres of the property is listed for natural resource protection, prior to official approval of the NRSE. 
This wetland and wetland protection area bisects the site from northeast to southwest, and is linked to a 
conservancy area located southwest of the site (west of South 31st Street). The subject property further 
contains 5.14 acres of woodland, most of which does not co-exist with the wetland areas.  Therefore, 
the applicant is constrained in terms of designing the site in order to comply with the City’s natural 
resource protection standards. Furthermore, Wetland General Permit approval does give the applicant 
reason to believe the proposed design of their development is worthy of support and approval. 
 
The surrounding area includes a set of variable uses and protection areas. Immediately north of the site 
is a conserved floodplain area for Oak Creek, north of which is a hotel and commercial uses located 
along Ryan Road (STH 100). The area east of South 27th Street is the Southbranch Industrial Park in 
the City of Oak Creek. The area immediately southeast includes a former residence and a software 
development company, while due south is the Ascension Hospital and medical park area. The major 
influence on the site from a buffering perspective are the row of single-family residences fronting 
South 31st Street, which are west of the subject property. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF THE APPLICATION 
On September 14, 2021, the applicant submitted applications for a Site Plan and a Special Use, and 
contemporaneous to these applications the applicant requested an exemption to the wetland 
requirements from WDNR. Following denial of the exemption request, the applicant filed the General 



  

 3 

Permit application with WDNR, and following some revisions to comply with the WDNR justification 
requirement and the alternatives analysis, the WDNR issued the General Permit with the limited 
wetland disturbance as shown on the attached NRPP.  
 
The application site is approximately 24 acres in size, and the application request for 252 apartment 
units reflects a total density of 10.5 units/acre. While this is generally larger than the baseline 
“permitted” density of 8 units/acre, staff notes the City has previously approved multi-family 
development with higher densities than were listed in base zoning districts such as R-8 or B-4 (most 
recently the Statesman Apartments north of the subject property). Staff notes that the usual impetus for 
approving densities is due to a redevelopment condition or removing a perceived “eyesore.” In this 
case, the applicant is proposing a redevelopment of a defunct landscaping business site, along with 
proposed acquisition of the small gas station site along South 27th Street for redevelopment purposes. 
While the commercial portion of the Conceptual Site Plan is not specifically included in this request, it 
demonstrates that the applicant is aware of the property’s surroundings and is seeking to improve these 
conditions. 
 
The applicant proposes developing the site with 12 apartment buildings, in 20-unit and 24-unit 
combinations, which would include a series of studio, one-bedroom, two-bedroom, and three-bedroom 
units. The applicant’s Detailed Proposed Description for “The Seasons at Franklin” is attached for 
further information. 
 
PROJECT ANALYSIS: 
There are a few existing constraints to the property that impact the design and development of this 
project.  
 

1. Wetland Impacts and NRSE Application. The applicant submitted the NRSE application 
initially on January 10, 2022. The applicant supplemented this application with additional 
information on January 28, 2022. The proposed Site Plan relies on approval of the NRSE 
requests in order to develop the site. As noted above, the Wetland General Permit has been 
issued by WDNR and permits disturbance of 653 square feet of wetland in two areas, which are 
at interior drive-lane crossings. Additional impact to the wetland buffer and setback are 
requested, in the vicinity of the wetland crossings. Staff anticipates no major issues with this 
request, though the timing will be delayed relative to the Special Use/Site Plan applications. 

2. Landscaping Requirements. Staff believes the proposed design is in general compliance with 
the intent of the landscaping requirements in UDO Division 15-5.0300. However, it should be 
noted that the requirements are very difficult to meet: a total of 3.5 trees (shade, evergreen, and 
decorative/ornamental) plus 3 shrubs per dwelling unit. If this were a high-rise development it 
would require the planting of a forest to accommodate this requirement. If the proposed 
development were at the standard maximum density of 8 units/acre, it would require 28 trees 
and 24 shrubs per acre. Conversely, the Division does permit credit for existing trees on-site, 
with full credit in the non-Bufferyard areas and half credit in the western Bufferyard. The credit 
is applied to each healthy tree 6 feet or taller. NO ONE evaluates non-evergreen trees based on 
height. This is a subject for further review and amendment under the UDO Rewrite Project. 
Suffice to say, staff believes the applicant is generally compliant pending final submission and 
sign-off of detailed inventory of the trees located on the subject property. 

3. Access Design. The proposed design identifies a single driveway from South 27th Street (STH 
241) to enter the site. This design has been evaluated by WisDOT and the preliminary 
conclusion is that it complies with engineering requirements for access, and further that the 
anticipated traffic to and from the site does not warrant a traffic signal at this location. Staff 
notes a secondary “emergency” access was requested by the City Engineer, which is currently 



  

 4 

located at the northern lot line adjacent the defunct gas station site, and is the driveway 
entrance to the former residence located on the adjacent lot at 9605 S. 31st Street. The applicant 
indicated that this driveway could be retained as an emergency access, though the Site Plan and 
Landscape Plan do not specifically call for maintaining this driveway west of the commercial 
site along South 27th Street. 

 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS 
Special Use and Site Plan Applications are subject to the following provisions of the UDO. Subject to 
the development conditions of approval, the Special Use and Site Plan shall meet these standards: 
 

• §15-3.0701 General Standards for Special Uses 
• §15-7.0102 Principles and Standards of Review, Site Plans 

 
GENERAL STANDARDS FOR SPECIAL USES (§15-3.0701) 
 
Summary of Standard Staff’s Finding 
1. Harmony with UDO and 

Comprehensive Plan 
purposes and intent.  

The applicant’s proposal would significantly redevelop a site that is a 
perceived “eyesore” and could spur additional development or 
redevelopment in the vicinity adjacent to South 27th Street. This is in 
keeping with the intent of the South 27th Street Design Overlay, and 
consistent with the purpose and intent of the City of Franklin 2025 
Comprehensive Master Plan. 

2. No Undue Adverse Impact. The evaluation of “undue adverse impact” can be subjective. In the context 
of this use, the applicant’s proposal does maintain an existing bufferyard of 
young and mature woodlands, which should mitigate the shift in density 
from the single-family neighborhood west of the site. Other uses in the area 
are commercial, hospitality, service-oriented, or industrial in character, and 
the proposed use is designed to fit into this location.  

3. No Interference with 
Surrounding Development. 

The proposed design is limited to 2-story facades and buildings are a 
maximum of 24 apartment units. The arrangement of units is designed to 
fit the vast majority of units into the “long” side of the site. Therefore the 
proposed use should not interfere or dominate adjacent properties.  

4. Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed development will be served by City water and regional sewer 
services, and should have ready availability for emergency services, fire, 
and police protection.  

5. No Traffic Congestion. The proposed development is designed for single-access from South 27th 
Street (STH 241), a 4-land arterial. It is noted that WisDOT did not believe 
the development was large enough to require additional signalization along 
this arterial roadway, even coupled with the linked access to Southbranch 
Boulevard to the east.  

6. No Destruction of Significant 
Features. 

The proposed design is intended to limit the amount of disturbance of 
wetland in keeping with the approved Wetland General Permit. Further 
disturbance includes approximately 50% of young woodland and 28% of 
mature woodland, which are within the limits of the UDO Natural 
Resource Protection.  

7. Compliance with Standards. The proposed use complies with the requirements of the R-8 Multiple-
Family Residence District, except with respect to project density. The 
Common Council can approve an increase in density under the provisions 
of Special Use approvals, if found that the project density would result in a 
better design or would mitigate and existing issue or circumstance. 
Redevelopment of a vacant, overgrown commercial site with attractive 
residential uses and open space protections could be such a situation. 



  

 5 

 
PRINCIPLES AND STANDARDS OF REVIEW OF SITE PLANS (§15-7.0102) 
 
Summary of Standard Staff’s Finding 
A. Conformity of Use to Zoning District. The proposed use is a Special Use in the B-4 District. 

B. Dimensional Requirements. The proposed development complies with all dimensional 
requirements for the proposed use. 

C. Site Intensity and Site Capacity 
Calculations to be Reviewed. 

The proposed development complies with the limitations of the 
B-4 District. 

D. Use and Design Provisions. The proposed development complies with all use and design 
provisions for multi-family development with the exception of 
project density, which may be increased by the Common 
Council under the Special Use review process.  

E. Relation to Existing and Proposed 
Streets and Highways. 

The applicant has contacted WisDOT for permitting of access 
for this development. A Condition of Approval requiring 
submission of the WisDOT access permit prior to building 
permit issuance is included in the Resolution. 

F. Impacts on Surrounding Uses. The proposed development is designed to focus traffic 
ingress/egress, along with locating facilities such that impacts 
on surrounding uses should be minimal. 

G. Natural Resource Features 
Protection. 

The required NRPP has been submitted and reviewed. Staff 
notes that the applicant makes use of existing woodland along 
the west property line as an effective bufferyard against 
adjacent single-family uses. The applicant has filed for NRSE 
review and approval for disturbance of wetland, wetland buffer 
and wetland setback. This review is forthcoming, and a 
Condition of Approval stipulating that Site Plan approval is 
conditioned on approval of an NRSE for these impacts is 
included in the attached draft Resolution. 

H. Required Landscaping and 
Landscape Bufferyards. 

The proposed development generally meets the requirements 
with respect to landscaping and required bufferyards. A 
Condition of Approval requiring follow-up submission of 
documentation specifying tree species locations, types and 
preservation methods, along with full compliance with UDO 
Division 15-5.0300 is included in the attached draft Resolution.  

I. Provision of Emergency Vehicle 
Accessibility. 

The proposed development design incorporates accessibility for 
emergency purposes and provides accessible spaces in 
compliance with the ADA. 

J. Building Location. The proposed development design is modeled to locate 
buildings in places that minimize existing natural resources as 
much as possible, and maintains existing woodland areas in 
locations that buffer existing residential uses from development 
of the subject property. 

K. Location and Design of On-Site 
Waste Disposal and Loading 
Facilities. 

On-site waste disposal facilities are located central to the 
development utility and not located in the peripheral areas 
where adjoining properties would be impacted. 



  

 6 

L. Consistency with Intent of UDO. The proposed development is consistent with the intent and 
purposes of the UDO, in particular UDO §15-1.0104 subparts 
A, B, C, D, E, F, G, H, I, J, K, N, O, and T. 

M. Consistency with Intent of 
Comprehensive Plan. 

The proposed development is consistent with the intent of the 
City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan, particularly 
in terms of scale, density, and location of proposed 
development. 

N. Determination of “Suitability” of Site. There is no evidence that the subject property is “unsuitable” 
for development at the orientation and scale of the proposed 
development. 

 
Natural Resource Protection Plan 
The applicant is aware of the limits of approval under the Wetland General Permit. Additional 
approval of the NRSE is necessary for temporary or permanent disturbance or filling of the wetland 
and wetland buffer, and for permanent changes to the wetland setback. Should the Plan Commission 
choose to render a decision on the Site Plan Application, a condition of approval is included stating 
that an approval of the Site Plan is conditional on approval of the NRSE Application by the Common 
Council.  
 
OTHER DEPARTMENT REVIEW COMMENTS 
 
Engineering Department 

1. Use South Zone NAD 83 datum as specified on the proposed plans. 
2. The stormwater  management facilities must meet the requirements of the City of Franklin 

stormwater management plan (UDO Division 15-8.0600). 
3. If the water main is dedicated (approved by the WDNR) to the City by an easement, the proposed 

water main must be looped, having two connections at the water main on South 27th Street. The 
said City water main must comply with City Design Standards & Construction Specifications. 

4. Engineering highly suggests having two access points at South 27th street.  
5. The access to South 27th Street (STH 241) must be reviewed and approved by the WisDOT. A 

copy of said approval must be provided to the City Engineering Department (and a copy with the 
Department of City Development). 

6. Engineering recommends a pedestrian sidewalk along South 27th Street.  
7. The driveway entrance must be designed to accommodate the turning of trucks and busses. A 

turning exhibit shall be provided by the applicant demonstrating that the driveway access is 
sufficient to accommodate larger vehicles. 

8. The applicant must have a permit from the WisDOT to work in the South 27th Street right-of-
way. 

9. The applicant shall submit detailed construction plans for follow-up Engineering review. 

Staff Comment: The above will be reflected in the Conditions of Approval in the Site Plan 
Resolution. 
 
Health Department 

1. Dog Park. Some concerns/questions from the Health Department perspective as we handle dog 
bites.  

a) Will there be a master list of those in the building(s) that own dogs that utilize the dog 



  

 7 

park? Will the Health Department have the ability to review this list should there be a 
bite that occurs at this park? Will it be open to anyone that doesn’t reside on the 
property? 

b) Will there be a requirement that all animals that use the dog park be up to date on rabies 
vaccine and have valid municipal license? 

c) Will animals within the enclosure be allowed off leash? 
d) Will there by information supplied to those that frequent the park that animal bites are 

reportable to both the Health Department and Police Department and any animal 
involved in a bite will be subject to a 10-day quarantine including up to 3 veterinarian 
visits? Unprovoked bites and/or serious bites may lead to declaration of dangerous or 
vicious animal per Municipal Code § 80-9. 

e) Will animals that bite (whether provoked or unprovoked) be allowed to continue using 
the park? 

f) How will animal waste inside the park be disposed of? 
2. If this property includes any pools as defined in ATCP 76, proper plan review by DSPS and 

licensing must occur. 

Staff Comment: The Health Department comments are normally reflected in the Condition of 
Approval that relates to “compliance with City Code,” but staff has incorporated two conditions to the 
Site Plan Resolution reflecting these requirements. 
 
Fire Department  
The Fire Department has no comments regarding this project.  
 
Police Department 
The police department has no comment regarding this project. 
 
Inspection Services Department 
Inspection Services has no comments on the subject proposal at this time. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Department of City Development staff recommends as follows:  

(1) That the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Special Use based on the conditions 
included in the draft Common Council Resolution, including the total number and density of 
multi-family residential units on the subject property, which recommendation will be considered 
by the Common Council at a future date; and 

(2) Approve the Site Plan, subject to the conditions in the draft Site Plan Resolution. 



STO STO STO STO

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

S

S

S

STO STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO
STO

STO

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

EE

E

E

E

E

ST

ST

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

STO

ST

STO

805

810

815

801
802

803
804

806

807

808

809

811

812

81
3

814

816

79
0

79
5

80
0

80
5

81
0

78
9

79
179

279
379

4
79

679
779

879
9

80
180

280
380

4
80

6
80

7

80
8

80
9

785

790

795

781

782

783

784

786

787

788

789

791

792

793

794

796

797

798

78
5

79
0

79
5

78
1

78
2

78
3

78
4

78
6

78
7

78
8

78
9

79
1

79
2

79
3

79
4

79
6

78
5

79
079
5

80
0

80
5

78
3

78
4

78
6

78
7

78
8

78
9

79
1

79
2

79
3

79
4

79
6

79
7

79
8

79
9

80
1

80
2

80
3

80
4

80
6

790

78
8

78
9

79
1

792

793

794

800

800

805

801

802

803

804

806

807

808

795

80
0

805

810

815

79
4

79
679

779
879

9801802803

804

806

807

808

809

811

812

813

814

816

80
5

805

80
580
5

805805

805

80
4

806

792

805
804

803
802

801

DT

DT

DT

ST

30
' V

ISIO
N

TRIANGLE

60' VISION

TRIANGLE

D
T

D
T

DT

DT

DT

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

DT

DT

ST

ST

LANDSCAPE GENERAL NOTES:

1. VERIFY EXISTING AND PROPOSED CONDITIONS, UTILITIES, PIPES, AND STRUCTURES, ETC. PRIOR TO
BIDDING AND CONSTRUCTION.

2. INSPECT THE SITE PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK. DOCUMENT IN WRITING AND PHOTOGRAPH EXISTING
CONDITIONS WITHIN, AND IN AREAS ADJACENT TO THE LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION. THE LANDSCAPE
CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGES NOT DOCUMENTED IN THE PHOTOGRAPHS PRIOR TO
COMMENCEMENT OF DEMOLITION ACTIVITIES.

3. COORDINATE THE INSTALLATION OF PLANT MATERIAL WITH INSTALLATION OF ADJACENT PAVEMENTS,
DRAINAGE, CURB RELATED STRUCTURES WITH OTHER TRADES.

4. RESTORE AREAS OF THE SITE, OR ADJACENT AREAS, WHERE DISTURBED. DAMAGE CAUSED DURING
LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION TO EXISTING CONDITIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE
LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL THOROUGHLY REVIEW ALL SPECIFICATIONS RELATED TO TREE PROTECTION, SOIL
PREPARATION, TURF, GRASSES AND PLANTS. THESE SECTIONS PROVIDE ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON
MATERIALS AND SET STANDARDS FOR QUALITY AND INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS.

6. PROVIDE 3" DOUBLE SHREDDED BARK MULCH FOR ALL PLANTED TREES, SHRUBS AND LANDSCAPE BEDS.

7. SITE WATERING PROVIDED BY HOSE BIBS.

8. PLANT MATERIALS SHALL BE GUARANTEED FOR A PERIOD OF TWO (2) YEARS FROM TIME OF OWNER
ACCEPTANCE.

1"=30'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 30 60

PROPOSED
BUILDING

PROPOSED
COMMERCIAL

W. RAWSON AVENUE (C.T.H. "BB")

W
. L

OOM
IS

 R
OAD

 (S
.T

.H
. "

36
")

S.
 B

AL
LP

AR
K 

DRIV
E

PROPOSED
RETAINING WALL,
SEE CIVIL PLANS.

BIORETENTION

BASIN

SEE SHEET L101SEE SHEET L102

SEE SHEET L103 SEE SHEET L104A

SEE SHEET L104B

PROTECT
EXISTING

TREES, TYP.

25' BUILDING
SETBACK

10'
REQUESTED

BUILDING
SETBACK

POOL

PATIO

PROPOSED
UNDERGROUND
STORMWATER
DETENTION

SNOW
STORAGE
AREA, TYP.

TRANSPLANT
EXISTING

TREE, TYP.

TRANSPLANT EXISTING
TREE LOCATION, TYP.

*REQUIRED PLANTINGS HAVE BEEN PROVIDED TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT POSSIBLE DUE TO UTILITY
CONFLICTS, EASEMENTS, AND AVAILABLE PLANTING SPACE.

EXISTING ASPHALT
PATH

LANDSCAPE LEGEND:

TURFGRASS SEED

HARDWOOD BARK MULCH
PLANT BED

DECORATIVE STONE MULCH

PERENNIAL PLUGS
(SEE SHEET L200)

METAL PLANT EDGING

PROPERTY LINE

SNOW STORAGE

UPLAND MEADOW SEED MIX

EXISTING EVERGREEN TREE

EXISTING DECIDUOUS TREE

EXISTING TREE TO BE
TRANSPLANTED

EXISTING TREE TRANSPLANT
LOCATION

30' VISION TRAINGLE

60' VISION TRAINGLE

SHOVEL CUT BED EDGE

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS MAP IS BASED
ON FIELD MARKINGS AND INFORMATION FURNISHED BY UTILITY
COMPANIES AND THE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY.  WHILE THIS INFORMATION IS
BELIEVED TO BE RELIABLE, ITS ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS CANNOT
BE GUARANTEED.

GARAGE
ENTRANCE

*VOLUNTARY BID ALTERNATE NOTE:

- ADD IRRIGATION SYSTEM AROUND IMMEDIATE FRONT OF
BUILDING ENTRANCES AND POOL AREA

DECIDUOUS TREES CODE BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

AA
Acer x freemanii 'Jeffersred' / Autumn Blaze®
Freeman Maple

2.5"
Cal. B&B 2

GI Gleditsia triacanthos inermis / Thornless Honey
Locust

2.5"
Cal. B&B 4

TR Tilia americana 'Redmond' / Redmond American
Linden

2.5"
Cal. B&B 5

UA2 Ulmus x 'Morton' / Accolade™ Elm 2.5"
Cal. B&B 7

EVERGREEN TREES CODE BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

JF Juniperus chinensis 'Fairview' / Fairview Juniper 8` Ht. B&B 26

PG Picea glauca / White Spruce 4` Ht. B&B 17

PS Pinus strobus / White Pine 4` Ht. B&B 10

ORNAMENTAL TREES CODE BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

AX Amelanchier x grandiflora / Apple Serviceberry 2.5"
Cal. B&B 28

CC3 Cercis canadensis / Eastern Redbud

2.5"
Cal.
(Multi-
Stem)

B&B 9

MP Malus x 'Purple Prince' / Purple Prince Crabapple 2.5"
Cal. B&B 13

DECIDUOUS SHRUBS CODE BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

DL Diervilla lonicera / Dwarf Bush Honeysuckle 5 gal. Cont. 10

HA
Hydrangea arborescens 'Annabelle' / Annabelle
Hydrangea 5 gal. Cont. 22

HJ
Hydrangea paniculata 'Jane' / Little Lime® Panicle
Hydrangea 5 gal. Cont. 11

HZ
Hydrangea paniculata 'Zwijnenburg' / Zwijnenburg
Panicle Hydrangea 5 gal. Cont. 3

RG Rhus aromatica 'Gro-Low' / Gro-Low Fragrant Sumac 5 gal. Cont. 42

ST2
Spiraea betulifolia 'Tor' / White Frost™ Birchleaf
Spirea 3 gal. Cont. 26

EVERGREEN SHRUBS CODE BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

JY
Juniperus horizontalis 'Youngstown'/ Creeping
Juniper 3 gal. Cont. 14

TM
Taxus x media 'Tauntonii' / Taunton's
Anglo-Japanese Yew 3 gal. Cont. 50

TT Thuja occidentalis 'Techny' / Techny Arborvitae 3 gal. Cont. 2

ORNAMENTAL GRASSES CODE BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

CK Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Karl Foerster' / Karl
Foerster Feather Reed Grass

1 gal. Cont. 131

PN Panicum virgatum 'Northwind' / Northwind Switch
Grass

1 gal. Cont. 76

PS2 Panicum virgatum 'Shenandoah' / Shenandoah
Switch Grass

1 gal. Cont. 28

ST Sporobolus heterolepis 'Tara' / Tara Prairie Dropseed 1 gal. Cont. 169

PERENNIALS CODE BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

CJ Coreopsis x 'Jethro Tull' / Jethro Tull Tickseed 1 gal. Cont. 36

EM Echinacea purpurea 'Magnus' / Magnus Purple
Coneflower

1 gal. Cont. 44

HH2
Hemerocallis x 'Happy Returns' / Happy Returns
Daylily 1 gal. Cont. 138

NFW Nepeta x faassenii 'Walker's Low' / Walker's Low
Catmint

1 gal. Cont. 111

SN2
Salvia nemorosa 'East Friesland' / East Friesland
Meadow Sage 1 gal. Cont. 200

SM Sedum x 'Matrona' / Matrona Sedum 1 gal. Cont. 19

PLANT SCHEDULE

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

TH
E

G R O U PSingle Source. Sound Solutions.

DRAWN BY:

DESIGN DATE:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:

PLOT DATE:

NO. REVISION DATE

ISSUANCE DATE

7044 South Ballpark Drive
Franklin, WI  53132
Phone: 414-285-3470

HLY

2022-9-9

21234

PJI

CTC

L100

82
40

 O
LD

 L
O

O
M

IS
 R

D

B
A

D
A

X

FR
A

N
K

LI
N

, W
I

O
V

E
R

A
LL

 L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 P

LA
N

2023-07-11

I:\Mandel\21234 Ballpark Commons M1 Site\060 CAD\030_Production Sheets\400_Landscape\L100 Overall Landscape Plan.dwg

21
23

4
L1

00
AK

U
SK

E
20

23
.0

7.
11

----

PERMIT-BID SET                        2023-6-2

----
----
----
----
----

----

CITY RESUBMITTAL                  2023-7-11
----
----
----
----

PATIO, TYP.
 SEE ARCHITECTURAL

PLANS.

PROPOSED
RETAINING WALL,
SEE CIVIL PLANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2  C.S.M. NO. 9078

AutoCAD SHX Text
S35°31'58"W  545.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°17'25"E  59.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°42'40"E  364.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N45°04'47"W  277.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N44°59'54"E  61.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S07°11'54"W  58.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arc=224.31' Radius=340.05' Chord=N26°05'54"E (REC. AS N26°06'00"E) CL=220.26' Delta=37°47'36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
224.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
H E A V Y   V E G E T A T I O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS N07°12'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS N88°42'47"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS S01°17'19"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
T R E E   L I N E 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK: 804.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDRANT BURY BOLT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK: 808.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE BASE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND FLAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILW. AREA 259-1181

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE BEFORE YOU EXCAVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRES MIN. 3 WORK DAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS STATUTE 182.0175(1974)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-242-8511

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO OBTAIN LOCATIONS OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTICIPANTS UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACILITIES BEFORE YOU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIG IN WISCONSIN



S

S

S

S

S

798

79
1

792

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

ST

ST

ST

60' VISION

TRIANGLE
ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

1" = 10'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 10 20

MATCHLINE SHEET L103

M
A

TC
H

LI
N

E 
SH

EE
T 

L1
02

W
. L

OOM
IS

 R
OAD

 (S
.T

.H
. "

36
")

PROPOSED BUILDING

BIORETENTION
BASIN

2' STONE MAINTENANCE EDGE, TYP.

25' BUILDING
SETBACK

METAL PLANT
EDGING - TYP.

4' HT.
DECORATIVE

POOL FENCING

TURF GRASS

HARDWOOD BARK MULCH PLANTING BED, TYP.

POOL
(FURNITURE TO BE

PROVIDED BY OWNER)

UPLAND MEADOW SEED MIX

PERENNIAL PLUGS

PROPOSED TRASH STAGING AREA

LANDSCAPE LEGEND:

TURFGRASS SEED

HARDWOOD BARK MULCH
PLANT BED

DECORATIVE STONE MULCH

PERENNIAL PLUGS
(SEE SHEET L200)

PROPERTY LINE

SNOW STORAGE

UPLAND MEADOW SEED MIX

EXISTING EVERGREEN TREE

EXISTING DECIDUOUS TREE

EXISTING TREE TO BE
TRANSPLANTED

EXISTING TREE TRANSPLANT
LOCATION

PROPOSED HOSE BIB
 LOCATIONPROPOSED HOSE BIB LOCATION

DECIDUOUS TREES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

GI Gleditsia triacanthos inermis / Thornless Honey
Locust 2.5" Cal. B&B 1

UA2 Ulmus x 'Morton' / Accolade™ Elm 2.5" Cal. B&B 5

EVERGREEN TREES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY
JF Juniperus chinensis 'Fairview' / Fairview Juniper 4` Ht. B&B 8
PG Picea glauca / White Spruce 4` Ht. B&B 3
PS Pinus strobus / White Pine 4` Ht. B&B 5

ORNAMENTAL TREES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY
AX Amelanchier x grandiflora / Apple Serviceberry 2.5" Cal. B&B 13
CC3 Cercis canadensis / Eastern Redbud 2.5" Cal. (Multi-Stem) B&B 3

DECIDUOUS SHRUBS BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY
DL Diervilla lonicera / Dwarf Bush Honeysuckle 5 gal. Cont. 10

HJ
Hydrangea paniculata 'Jane' / Little Lime®
Panicle Hydrangea 5 gal. Cont. 3

RG Rhus aromatica 'Gro-Low' / Gro-Low Fragrant
Sumac

5 gal. Cont. 12

EVERGREEN SHRUBS BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

TM
Taxus x media 'Tauntonii' / Taunton's
Anglo-Japanese Yew 3 gal. Cont. 21

TT Thuja occidentalis 'Techny' / Techny Arborvitae 3 gal. Cont. 2

ORNAMENTAL GRASSES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

CK Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Karl Foerster' / Karl
Foerster Feather Reed Grass

1 gal. Cont. 29

PN Panicum virgatum 'Northwind' / Northwind Switch
Grass

1 gal. Cont. 40

PERENNIALS BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY
CJ Coreopsis x 'Jethro Tull' / Jethro Tull Tickseed 1 gal. Cont. 31

EM Echinacea purpurea 'Magnus' / Magnus Purple
Coneflower

1 gal. Cont. 15

HH2
Hemerocallis x 'Happy Returns' / Happy Returns
Daylily 1 gal. Cont. 34

SM Sedum x 'Matrona' / Matrona Sedum 1 gal. Cont. 10

PLANT SCHEDULE L101

METAL PLANT EDGING

SHOVEL CUT BED EDGE

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS MAP IS BASED
ON FIELD MARKINGS AND INFORMATION FURNISHED BY UTILITY
COMPANIES AND THE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY.  WHILE THIS INFORMATION IS
BELIEVED TO BE RELIABLE, ITS ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS CANNOT
BE GUARANTEED.

METAL PLANT EDGING, TYP.
SHOVEL CUT BED EDGE, TYP.

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

TH
E

G R O U PSingle Source. Sound Solutions.

DRAWN BY:

DESIGN DATE:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:

PLOT DATE:

NO. REVISION DATE

ISSUANCE DATE

7044 South Ballpark Drive
Franklin, WI  53132
Phone: 414-285-3470

HLY

2022-9-9

21234

PJI

CTC

L101

82
40

 O
LD

 L
O

O
M

IS
 R

D

B
A

D
A

X

FR
A

N
K

LI
N

, W
I

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 E
N

LA
R

G
E

M
E

N
T

2023-07-11

I:\Mandel\21234 Ballpark Commons M1 Site\060 CAD\030_Production Sheets\400_Landscape\Landscape Enlargements.dwg

21
23

4
L1

01
AK

U
SK

E
20

23
.0

7.
11

----

PERMIT-BID SET                        2023-6-2

----
----
----
----
----

----

CITY RESUBMITTAL                  2023-7-11
----
----
----
----

BLEND SEED MIX THROUGH
LINE OF DISTURBANCE, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01°17'25"E  59.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°42'40"E  364.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
H E A V Y   V E G E T A T I O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS N88°42'47"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SIGNS OR BILLBOARDS PER DOC. NO. 10801824 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) CC3

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) GI

AutoCAD SHX Text
(8) JF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) AX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) AX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4) AX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) AX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) PS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) AX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) PG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) UA2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) AX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) CC3

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) AX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) TT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) DL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) DL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(11) PN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(11) EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(7) RG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4) EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(8) PN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(10) SM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(25) HH2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(15) CJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) RG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(7) PN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(9) HH2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(16) CJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
(15) PN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) RG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) HJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) TT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(31) CK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(16) TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILW. AREA 259-1181

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE BEFORE YOU EXCAVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRES MIN. 3 WORK DAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS STATUTE 182.0175(1974)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-242-8511

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO OBTAIN LOCATIONS OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTICIPANTS UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACILITIES BEFORE YOU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIG IN WISCONSIN



X
X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

STO STO STO STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

W

W

W

W

W

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E E E E

E

E

E

E

E
E

E
E

E E

ST

ST
O

ST
O

805

810

815

801

802

803

804

806

807

808

809

811

812

81
3

814

79
5

80
0

80
5

81
0

79
3

79
4

79
6

79
7

79
8

79
9

80
1

80
2

80
3

80
4

80
6

80
7

80
8

80
9

800

800

801

802

803

804

805

804

803

802

801

ST

ST

30
' V

ISIO
N

TRIANGLE

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

ST

1" = 10'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 10 20

MATCHLINE SHEET L103

M
A

TC
H

LI
N

E 
SH

EE
T 

L1
01

S.
 B

AL
LP

AR
K 

D
R

IV
E

PROPOSED BUILDING

EXISTING TREES - PROTECT IN PLACE

4' HT.
DECORATIVE
POOL FENCING

2' STONE MAINTENANCE EDGE, TYP.

METAL PLANT EDGING, TYP.

HARDWOOD BARK MULCH PLANTING BED, TYP.

EXISTING TREE TO BE TRANSPLANTED

EXISTING TREE TO BE
TRANSPLANTED TO

THIS LOCATION

PROPOSED TRASH
RECEPTACLE

EXISTING ASPHALT PATH

SNOW STORAGE

DOG REFUSE BIN

PROPOSED 6 BIKE
PARKING STALLS

PROPOSED HOSE BIB
 LOCATION

PROPOSED HOSE
BIB LOCATION

DECIDUOUS TREES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

GI Gleditsia triacanthos inermis / Thornless Honey
Locust 2.5" Cal. B&B 1

TR Tilia americana 'Redmond' / Redmond American
Linden 2.5" Cal. B&B 5

UA2 Ulmus x 'Morton' / Accolade™ Elm 2.5" Cal. B&B 2

EVERGREEN TREES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY
JF Juniperus chinensis 'Fairview' / Fairview Juniper 4` Ht. B&B 8

ORNAMENTAL TREES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY
AX Amelanchier x grandiflora / Apple Serviceberry 2.5" Cal. B&B 4
MP Malus x 'Purple Prince' / Purple Prince Crabapple 2.5" Cal. B&B 1

DECIDUOUS SHRUBS BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

HA
Hydrangea arborescens 'Annabelle' / Annabelle
Hydrangea 5 gal. Cont. 21

HJ
Hydrangea paniculata 'Jane' / Little Lime®
Panicle Hydrangea 5 gal. Cont. 5

RG Rhus aromatica 'Gro-Low' / Gro-Low Fragrant
Sumac

5 gal. Cont. 25

ST2
Spiraea betulifolia 'Tor' / White Frost™ Birchleaf
Spirea 3 gal. Cont. 15

EVERGREEN SHRUBS BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

TM
Taxus x media 'Tauntonii' / Taunton's
Anglo-Japanese Yew 3 gal. Cont. 30

ORNAMENTAL GRASSES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

CK Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Karl Foerster' / Karl
Foerster Feather Reed Grass

1 gal. Cont. 58

PN Panicum virgatum 'Northwind' / Northwind Switch
Grass

1 gal. Cont. 36

ST
Sporobolus heterolepis 'Tara' / Tara Prairie
Dropseed 1 gal. Cont. 96

PERENNIALS BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

EM Echinacea purpurea 'Magnus' / Magnus Purple
Coneflower

1 gal. Cont. 22

HH2
Hemerocallis x 'Happy Returns' / Happy Returns
Daylily 1 gal. Cont. 52

NFW Nepeta x faassenii 'Walker's Low' / Walker's Low
Catmint

1 gal. Cont. 29

SN2
Salvia nemorosa 'East Friesland' / East Friesland
Meadow Sage 1 gal. Cont. 19

SM Sedum x 'Matrona' / Matrona Sedum 1 gal. Cont. 9

PLANT SCHEDULE L102

SHOVEL CUT BED EDGE, TYP.

PATIO, TYP.
SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS.

LANDSCAPE LEGEND:

TURFGRASS SEED

HARDWOOD BARK MULCH
PLANT BED

DECORATIVE STONE MULCH

PERENNIAL PLUGS
(SEE SHEET L200)

PROPERTY LINE

SNOW STORAGE

UPLAND MEADOW SEED MIX

EXISTING EVERGREEN TREE

EXISTING DECIDUOUS TREE

EXISTING TREE TO BE
TRANSPLANTED

EXISTING TREE TRANSPLANT
LOCATION

METAL PLANT EDGING

SHOVEL CUT BED EDGE

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS MAP IS BASED
ON FIELD MARKINGS AND INFORMATION FURNISHED BY UTILITY
COMPANIES AND THE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY.  WHILE THIS INFORMATION IS
BELIEVED TO BE RELIABLE, ITS ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS CANNOT
BE GUARANTEED.

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

TH
E

G R O U PSingle Source. Sound Solutions.

DRAWN BY:

DESIGN DATE:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:

PLOT DATE:

NO. REVISION DATE

ISSUANCE DATE

7044 South Ballpark Drive
Franklin, WI  53132
Phone: 414-285-3470

HLY

2022-9-9

21234

PJI

CTC

L102

82
40

 O
LD

 L
O

O
M

IS
 R

D

B
A

D
A

X

FR
A

N
K

LI
N

, W
I

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 E
N

LA
R

G
E

M
E

N
T

2023-07-11

I:\Mandel\21234 Ballpark Commons M1 Site\060 CAD\030_Production Sheets\400_Landscape\Landscape Enlargements.dwg

21
23

4
L1

02
AK

U
SK

E
20

23
.0

7.
11

----

PERMIT-BID SET                        2023-6-2

----
----
----
----
----

----

CITY RESUBMITTAL                  2023-7-11
----
----
----
----

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°42'40"E  364.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S07°11'54"W  58.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arc=224.31' Radius=340.05' Chord=N26°05'54"E (REC. AS N26°06'00"E) CL=220.26' Delta=37°47'36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
224.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC AS N07°12'00"E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT LIMITED EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 7629110 

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SIGNS OR BILLBOARDS PER DOC. NO. 10801824 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) AX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) AX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) JF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) GI

AutoCAD SHX Text
(8) JF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) GI

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) UA2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) TR

AutoCAD SHX Text
(11) ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
(7) RG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(27) CK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(12) EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6) HH2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(10) HA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4) HH2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(18) RG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(18) NFW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(8) HA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(9) SM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(9) PN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) HJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
(8) ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) PN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) ST2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) PN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) ST2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) PN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) ST2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) PN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) ST2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) HJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
(20) ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
(42) HH2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(36) ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
(26) CK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(21) ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) HJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) ST2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) PN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(8) NFW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) CK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(13) SN2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) JF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(8) TM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) JF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) HA

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILW. AREA 259-1181

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE BEFORE YOU EXCAVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRES MIN. 3 WORK DAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS STATUTE 182.0175(1974)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-242-8511

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO OBTAIN LOCATIONS OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTICIPANTS UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACILITIES BEFORE YOU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIG IN WISCONSIN



S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

ST

STO

STO

STO

STO

STO

816

808

805

810

815

803

804

806

807

808

809

811

812

813

814

816

80
5

805

80
580

5

805
805

805

80
4

806

ST

ST

D
T

D
T

D
T

D
T

D
T

D
T

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

DT

1" = 10'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 10 20

MATCHLINE SHEET L104B

M
A

TC
H

LI
N

E 
SH

EE
T 

L1
04

A

S. B
ALL

PARK D
RIVE

2' STONE MAINTENANCE EDGE, TYP.

METAL PLANT EDGING, TYP.

25'
BUILDING
SETBACK

PROPOSED
UNDERGROUND

DETENTION

PATIO

(FURNISHINGS BY TENANT)

EXISTING EVEGREEN, TYP.

PROPOSED 6 BIKE
PARKING STALLS

PROPOSED TRASH
RECEPTACLE

PROPOSED HOSE BIB
 LOCATION

PROPOSED BENCH,
SEE SHEET A/L201.

DOG REFUSE BIN

EXISTING TREE TO BE TRANSPLANTED

EXISTING TREE TO BE
TRANSPLANTED TO

THIS LOCATION

PR
OPO

SE
D C

OMMER
CIA

L

DECIDUOUS TREES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

AA
Acer x freemanii 'Jeffersred' / Autumn Blaze®
Freeman Maple 2.5" Cal. B&B 1

GI Gleditsia triacanthos inermis / Thornless Honey
Locust 2.5" Cal. B&B 2

EVERGREEN TREES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY
JF Juniperus chinensis 'Fairview' / Fairview Juniper 4` Ht. B&B 11

ORNAMENTAL TREES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY
AX Amelanchier x grandiflora / Apple Serviceberry 2.5" Cal. B&B 2
MP Malus x 'Purple Prince' / Purple Prince Crabapple 2.5" Cal. B&B 4

DECIDUOUS SHRUBS BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

HA
Hydrangea arborescens 'Annabelle' / Annabelle
Hydrangea 5 gal. Cont. 2

HJ
Hydrangea paniculata 'Jane' / Little Lime®
Panicle Hydrangea 5 gal. Cont. 4

RG Rhus aromatica 'Gro-Low' / Gro-Low Fragrant
Sumac

5 gal. Cont. 5

ST2
Spiraea betulifolia 'Tor' / White Frost™ Birchleaf
Spirea 3 gal. Cont. 5

EVERGREEN SHRUBS BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

JY
Juniperus horizontalis 'Youngstown' / Creeping
Juniper 3 gal. Cont. 7

ORNAMENTAL GRASSES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

CK Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Karl Foerster' / Karl
Foerster Feather Reed Grass

1 gal. Cont. 17

PN Panicum virgatum 'Northwind' / Northwind Switch
Grass

1 gal. Cont. 1

PS2 Panicum virgatum 'Shenandoah' / Shenandoah
Switch Grass

1 gal. Cont. 28

ST
Sporobolus heterolepis 'Tara' / Tara Prairie
Dropseed 1 gal. Cont. 49

PERENNIALS BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY
CJ Coreopsis x 'Jethro Tull' / Jethro Tull Tickseed 1 gal. Cont. 5

EM Echinacea purpurea 'Magnus' / Magnus Purple
Coneflower

1 gal. Cont. 7

HH2
Hemerocallis x 'Happy Returns' / Happy Returns
Daylily 1 gal. Cont. 52

NFW Nepeta x faassenii 'Walker's Low' / Walker's Low
Catmint

1 gal. Cont. 67

SN2
Salvia nemorosa 'East Friesland' / East Friesland
Meadow Sage 1 gal. Cont. 46

PLANT SCHEDULE L103

SHOVEL CUT BED EDGE, TYP.

LANDSCAPE LEGEND:

TURFGRASS SEED

HARDWOOD BARK MULCH
PLANT BED

DECORATIVE STONE MULCH

PERENNIAL PLUGS
(SEE SHEET L200)

PROPERTY LINE

SNOW STORAGE

UPLAND MEADOW SEED MIX

EXISTING EVERGREEN TREE

EXISTING DECIDUOUS TREE

EXISTING TREE TO BE
TRANSPLANTED

EXISTING TREE TRANSPLANT
LOCATION

METAL PLANT EDGING

SHOVEL CUT BED EDGE

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS MAP IS BASED
ON FIELD MARKINGS AND INFORMATION FURNISHED BY UTILITY
COMPANIES AND THE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY.  WHILE THIS INFORMATION IS
BELIEVED TO BE RELIABLE, ITS ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS CANNOT
BE GUARANTEED.

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

TH
E

G R O U PSingle Source. Sound Solutions.

DRAWN BY:

DESIGN DATE:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:

PLOT DATE:

NO. REVISION DATE

ISSUANCE DATE

7044 South Ballpark Drive
Franklin, WI  53132
Phone: 414-285-3470

HLY

2022-9-9

21234

PJI

CTC

L103

82
40

 O
LD

 L
O

O
M

IS
 R

D

B
A

D
A

X

FR
A

N
K

LI
N

, W
I

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 E
N

LA
R

G
E

M
E

N
T

2023-07-11

I:\Mandel\21234 Ballpark Commons M1 Site\060 CAD\030_Production Sheets\400_Landscape\Landscape Enlargements.dwg

21
23

4
L1

03
AK

U
SK

E
20

23
.0

7.
11

----

PERMIT-BID SET                        2023-6-2

----
----
----
----
----

----

CITY RESUBMITTAL                  2023-7-11
----
----
----
----

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2  C.S.M. NO. 9078

AutoCAD SHX Text
N45°04'47"W  277.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N44°59'54"E  61.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK: 808.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE BASE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' WATERMAIN EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 10835535

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
26' RECIPROCAL DRIVEWAY EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 10919441

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) JF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) GI

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) AA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) AX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) AX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) AA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) GI

AutoCAD SHX Text
(7) EM

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) CJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
(9) PS2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) NFW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(7) NFW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(22) HH2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) HZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
(8) NFW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(19) PS2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(21) ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
(46) SN2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(14) CK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(25) ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) ST2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) JY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(20) NFW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(30) HH2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(26) NFW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) NFW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) HA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) RG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) HJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) CK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) JF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4) JF

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILW. AREA 259-1181

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE BEFORE YOU EXCAVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRES MIN. 3 WORK DAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS STATUTE 182.0175(1974)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-242-8511

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO OBTAIN LOCATIONS OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTICIPANTS UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACILITIES BEFORE YOU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIG IN WISCONSIN



X
X

X
X

X

795

80
0

79
4

79
6

79
7

79
8

79
9

801

802

803

804

80
5

80
4

792

ST

X
X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

79
0

78
9

79
1

79
2

79
3

785

790

795

782

783

784

786

787

788

789

791

792

793

794

796

797

78
5

79
0

79
5

78
1

78
2

78
3

78
4

78
6

78
7

78
8

78
9

79
1

79
2

79
3

79
4

79
6

78
8

80
5

805

805
805

80
4

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

1" = 10'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 10 20

MATCHLINE SHEET L103 MATCHLINE SHEET L104A

MATCHLINE SHEET L104B

M
A

TC
H

LI
N

E 
SH

EE
T 

L1
03

ENLARGEMENT A ENLARGEMENT B

PROPOSED
RETAINING WALL.
SEE CIVIL GRADING
PLANS.

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL.
SEE CIVIL GRADING PLANS.

PROPOSED
UNDERGROUND
DETENTION

UPLAND MEADOW SEED MIX, TYP.

TURFGRASS

UPLAND MEADOW SEED MIX, TYP.

TURFGRASS

DECIDUOUS TREES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY

AA Acer x freemanii 'Jeffersred' / Autumn Blaze® Freeman Maple 2.5" Cal. B&B 1

EVERGREEN TREES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY
PG Picea glauca / White Spruce 4` Ht. B&B 14
PS Pinus strobus / White Pine 4` Ht. B&B 5

ORNAMENTAL TREES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY
AX Amelanchier x grandiflora / Apple Serviceberry 2.5" Cal. B&B 9
CC3 Cercis canadensis / Eastern Redbud 2.5" Cal. (Multi-Stem) B&B 6
MP Malus x 'Purple Prince' / Purple Prince Crabapple 2.5" Cal. B&B 9

DECIDUOUS SHRUBS BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY
HZ Hydrangea paniculata 'Zwijnenburg' / Zwijnenburg Panicle Hydrangea 5 gal. Cont. 3
ST2 Spiraea betulifolia 'Tor' / White Frost™ Birchleaf Spirea 3 gal. Cont. 8

EVERGREEN SHRUBS BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY
JY Juniperus horizontalis 'Youngstown' / Creeping Juniper 3 gal. Cont. 11

ORNAMENTAL GRASSES BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY
CK Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Karl Foerster' / Karl Foerster Feather Reed Grass 1 gal. Cont. 14
ST Sporobolus heterolepis 'Tara' / Tara Prairie Dropseed 1 gal. Cont. 25

PERENNIALS BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE CONTAINER QTY
HH2 Hemerocallis x 'Happy Returns' / Happy Returns Daylily 1 gal. Cont. 4
NFW Nepeta x faassenii 'Walker's Low' / Walker's Low Catmint 1 gal. Cont. 20
SN2 Salvia nemorosa 'East Friesland' / East Friesland Meadow Sage 1 gal. Cont. 36

PLANT SCHEDULE L104

LANDSCAPE LEGEND:

TURFGRASS SEED

HARDWOOD BARK MULCH
PLANT BED

DECORATIVE STONE MULCH

PERENNIAL PLUGS
(SEE SHEET L200)

PROPERTY LINE

SNOW STORAGE

UPLAND MEADOW SEED MIX

EXISTING EVERGREEN TREE

EXISTING DECIDUOUS TREE

EXISTING TREE TO BE
TRANSPLANTED

EXISTING TREE TRANSPLANT
LOCATION

METAL PLANT EDGING

SHOVEL CUT BED EDGE

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS MAP IS BASED
ON FIELD MARKINGS AND INFORMATION FURNISHED BY UTILITY
COMPANIES AND THE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY.  WHILE THIS INFORMATION IS
BELIEVED TO BE RELIABLE, ITS ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS CANNOT
BE GUARANTEED.

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

TH
E

G R O U PSingle Source. Sound Solutions.

DRAWN BY:

DESIGN DATE:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:

PLOT DATE:

NO. REVISION DATE

ISSUANCE DATE

7044 South Ballpark Drive
Franklin, WI  53132
Phone: 414-285-3470

HLY

2022-9-9

21234

PJI

CTC

L104

82
40

 O
LD

 L
O

O
M

IS
 R

D

B
A

D
A

X

FR
A

N
K

LI
N

, W
I

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 E
N

LA
R

G
E

M
E

N
T

2023-07-11

I:\Mandel\21234 Ballpark Commons M1 Site\060 CAD\030_Production Sheets\400_Landscape\Landscape Enlargements.dwg

21
23

4
L1

04
AK

U
SK

E
20

23
.0

7.
11

----

PERMIT-BID SET                        2023-6-2

----
----
----
----
----

----

CITY RESUBMITTAL                  2023-7-11
----
----
----
----

AutoCAD SHX Text
T R E E   L I N E 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) CC3

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) PG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) AA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) HZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
S35°31'58"W  545.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
T R E E   L I N E 

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO ACCESS PER DOC. NO. 3355409 (HATCH) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) AX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) PG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) CC3

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) AX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) PS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) CC3

AutoCAD SHX Text
(7) PG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) CC3

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) AX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(25) ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
(24) ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
(7) JY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(8) ST2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) NFW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(33) SN2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(13) CK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(14) NFW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MILW. AREA 259-1181

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE BEFORE YOU EXCAVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRES MIN. 3 WORK DAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIS STATUTE 182.0175(1974)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-242-8511

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO OBTAIN LOCATIONS OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTICIPANTS UNDERGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACILITIES BEFORE YOU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIG IN WISCONSIN



NOTES:
1. PLANT EACH TREE SUCH THAT THE ROOT FLARE IS VISIBLE AT THE TOP OF

THE ROOT BALL.  DO NOT COVER THE TOP OF THE ROOT BALL WITH SOIL.

2. DEPTH OF THE PLANTING HOLE SHOULD BE DETERMINED AND DUG AFTER
THE ROOT FLARE IS LOCATED.  PLANTING HOLE MUST  BE NO DEEPER
THAN THE HEIGHT OF THE ROOT BALL.

3. IF PLANT IS SHIPPED WITH A WIRE BASKET AROUND THE ROOT BALL, CUT
AND REMOVE THE WIRE BASKET ENTIRELY.  REMOVE ALL TWINE, ROPE,
AND BURLAP COMPLETELY FROM ALL ROOT BALLS.

4. PLACE ROOT BALL ON UNEXCAVATED OR TAMPED SOIL.

5. DO NOT PLACE MULCH IN CONTACT WITH STEMS.

6. WATER ALL PLANTS WITHIN 2 HOURS OF INSTALLATION.

7. PRUNE ONLY AS NECESSARY TO REMOVE UNHEALTHY BRANCHES. DO NOT
REMOVE MORE THAN 13 OF THE ORIGINAL PLANT MASS.

TREE PIT WIDTH - 2X BALL
DIAMETER MINIMUM, OR FULL
EXTENTS OF PLANTING BED

6"6"
2" TYP.

AP
PR

OX
. 1

8"

1 3" DEPTH SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK
MULCH.
PROVIDE 4'-0" DIAMETER MULCH RINGS AT THE
BASE OF ANY TREES PLANTED IN LAWN.

PROVIDE SPADED EDGE, 2" WIDE, 6" DEEP FOR
ENTIRE PERIMETER OF BARK MULCH RINGS
AT BASE OF TREES PLANTED IN LAWNS

PLANTING SOIL, PLANTING SOIL SHALL BE
PLACED IN ONE CONTINUOUS VOLUME FOR
THE ENTIRE AREA OF ANY GIVEN PLANT BED.

PREPARED SUBGRADE

TAMP SOIL AROUND BALL BASE FIRMLY WITH
FOOT PRESSURE SO THAT BALL DOES NOT
SHIFT

2

3

4

KEYED LEGEND

5

1

2

3

4

5

2"

NOTES:
1. MAKE 1" TO 2" DEEP VERTICAL CUTS EVERY 6" AROUND THE CIRCUMFERENCE OF

THE ROOT BALL BEFORE PLANTING TO LOOSEN POT-BOUND ROOTS.

2. PLANT EACH SHRUB SUCH THAT THE ROOT FLARE IS VISIBLE AT THE TOP OF THE
ROOT BALL.  DO NOT COVER THE TOP OF THE ROOT BALL WITH SOIL.

3. PLANTING HOLE MUST NOT BE DEEPER THAN THE HEIGHT OF THE ROOT BALL.

4. DO NOT PLACE MULCH IN CONTACT WITH STEMS.

5.  PLACE ROOT BALL ON UNEXCAVATED OR TAMPED SOIL.

6.  WATER ALL PLANTS WITHIN 2 HOURS OF INSTALLATION.

7.  PRUNE ONLY AS NECESSARY TO REMOVE UNHEALTHY BRANCHES.  DO NOT REMOVE
MORE THAN 13 OF THE ORIGINAL PLANT MASS.

8. SEGREGATE ANY SOIL FROM BELOW WARNING LAYER EXCAVATED DURING
PLANTING FOR OFF-SITE DISPOSAL. COORDINATE DISPOSAL WITH ENVIRONMENTAL
CONSULTANT.

9. FOR SHRUBS PLANTED WITHIN PLANTING BEDS, CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE
PLANTING SOIL CONTINUOUSLY FOR THE ENTIRE PLANTING BED AND INDIVIDUAL
SHRUBS SHALL BE PLANTED INTO THE PREPARED PLANTING SOIL. MULCH SURFACE
FOR PLANTING BEDS SHALL ALSO BE CONTINUOUS ACROSS THE ENTIRE SURFACE
AND HELD 12" MIN. TO 1" MAX. BELOW ADJACENT PAVEMENTS.

1 3" DEPTH TWICE-SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK
MULCH, UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, KEEP
2" CLEAR OF STEMS

PLANTING SOIL AS SPECIFIED, PLANTING SOIL
SHALL BE PLACED IN ONE CONTINUOUS
VOLUME FOR
THE ENTIRE AREA OF ANY GIVEN PLANT BED

1" TO 2" DEEP VERTICAL CUTS EVERY 6"
AROUND PERIMETER

PREPARED SUBGRADE

TAMP SOIL AROUND BALL BASE FIRMLY WITH
FOOT PRESSURE SO THAT BALL DOES NOT
SHIFT

2

3

4

KEYED LEGEND
1

5

2

3

5

4

PLANTING PIT WIDTH - 2X BALL
DIAMETER MINIMUM,OR FULL
EXTENTS OF PLANTING BED

2" TYP.

1 PERENNIAL, ORNAMENTAL GRASS, OR
GROUNDCOVER PLUG, SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN
SHEETS  L100-L104

3" DEPTH TWICE-SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK
MULCH, UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, KEEP
3" CLEAR OF STEMS

PLANTING SOIL, PLANTING SOIL SHALL BE
PLACED IN ONE CONTINUOUS VOLUME FOR
THE ENTIRE AREA OF ANY GIVEN PLANT BED

PREPARED SUBGRADE

2

3

4

KEYED LEGEND

1

2

3

4

D=DIMENSION OF PLANT SPACING AS
INDICATED ON PLANT LIST, PLAN VIEW

"D"

"D" "D"

NOTES
· SET FINISH GRADE OF PLANTING AREA 2" BELOW

FINISH SURFACE OF PAVING, CURB, OR HEADER
· SEE PLANTING SCHEDULE FOR SPACING OF ALL

SHRUBS AND GROUNDCOVERS
· ALL SHRUBS / GROUNDCOVER TO BE PLANTED AT

EQUAL SPACING (TRIANGULAR) UNLESS
OTHERWISE INDICATED ON PLANS.

· TO DETERMINE APPROPRIATE PLANT QUANTITIES
REFER TO THE PLANTING SCHEDULE OR PLAN.

1

2

EQUAL EQUAL EQUAL

EQUAL

EQUAL

EDGE OF ADJACENT PAVEMENT

SHRUB, PERENNIAL OR ORNAMENTAL
GRASS PLANT CENTER LOCATION

KEYED LEGEND

1

2

4"
- 6

"

1 3" DEPTH OF MULCH LAYER

SHRUB PLANTING BED

LAWN ADJACENT TO PLANTING BED

45 DEGREE ANGLE SHOVEL CUT EDGE
TOWARD PLANTING BED

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

2

3

4

5

KEYED LEGEND

1

2

3

4

5

VARIES, PER PLAN
18" MIN.

2% SLOPE, MIN.

ADJACENT PLANTING BED

BLACK ANODIZED ALUMINUM EDGING

BUILDING FACE

2-3" DEPTH STONE MULCH

FILTER FABRIC, WRAP UP SIDES OF
BUILDING AND EDGING

PREPARED SUBGRADE

1

KEYED LEGEND

1 2 4

3

2

3

4

5

6

6

5

1 BIOFILTRATION BASIN PERENNIAL PLUGS
(SEE PERENNIAL PLUGS PLANT LIST)

STRAW MULCH2

KEYED LEGEND

PERENNIAL PLUG SPACING
1 PLUG PER 2.25 SQUARE FEET
(18" SPACING O.C.)
PLANT IN CLUSTERS OF 5-12 PLANTS PER SPECIES

SEE PLAN
FOR SPACING

1

2

1 BIOFILTRATION BASIN PLANTING (SEE PERENNIAL PLUGS
PLANT LIST)

BIODEGRADABLE EROSION CONTROL MATTING
ON BOTTOM AND SLOPES OF BASIN

ENGINEERED SOIL MIX - SEE CIVIL FOR DEPTH

STONE STORAGE LAYER - SEE CIVIL FOR DEPTH

PVC DRAIN TILE, SEE CIVIL PLAN.

PREPARED SUBGRADE

2

KEYED LEGEND

SE
E P

LA
N

FO
R 

SP
AC

IN
G

PLAN VIEW

SECTION VIEW

WIDTH VARIES - SEE PLAN

INSTALL PERENNIALS AND GRASSES PER
PLAN.
AFTER INSTALLING EROSION CONTROL
FABRIC, CUT A
SMALL OPENING THE SIZE OF THE ROOT
BALL MASS IN
THE EROSION CONTROL FABRIC TO
PLANT EACH INDIVIDUAL PLANT.

3

4

5

6

DE
PT

H
VA

RI
ES

1

2

3

4

5

6

SCALE:1"= 1'-0"A TREE PLANTING
SCALE:1"= 1'-0"B SHRUB PLANTING

SCALE:1"= 1'-0"C PERENNIAL PLANTING

SCALE:1"= 1'-0"E PLANT SPACING

SCALE:1"= 1'-0"D SHOVEL CUT EDGE

SCALE:1"= 1'-0"F STONE MAINTENANCE STRIP

SCALE:1"= 1'-0"G BIORETENTION BASIN PLANTING

Botanical Name Common Name Quantity Size Comments

Asclepias incarnata Marsh Milkweed 32.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

Aster Novae-angliae New England Aster 64.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

Carex stipdata
Common Fox
Sedge 32.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

Carex vulpinoidea Brown Fox Sedge 64.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

Eupatorium
maculatum

Spotted Joe Pye
Weed 64.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

Helenium
autumnale Sneezeweed 64.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

Liatris spicata Marsh Blazingstar 64.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

Lobelia cardinalis Cardinal Flower 64.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

Monarda fistulosa Wild Bergamot 64.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

Panicum virgatum Switchgrass 64.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

Ratibida pinnata Yellow Coneflower 64.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

Rudbeckia hirta Black-Eyed Susan 64.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

Scirpus atrovirens Dark-Green Bulrush 64.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

Scirpus cyperinus Wool Grass 64.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

Spartina pactinata Prairie Cordgrass 64.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

Tradescantia
ohiensis Ohio Spiderwort 64.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

Verbena hastata Blue Vervain 32.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

Vernonia
fasciculata Ironweed 32.00

Round
Tapered
Plug

18" O.C. in clusters of 5-12
plants per species

NTS

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

TH
E

G R O U PSingle Source. Sound Solutions.

DRAWN BY:

DESIGN DATE:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:

PLOT DATE:

NO. REVISION DATE

ISSUANCE DATE

7044 South Ballpark Drive
Franklin, WI  53132
Phone: 414-285-3470

HLY

2022-9-9

21234

PJI

CTC

L200

82
40

 O
LD

 L
O

O
M

IS
 R

D

B
A

D
A

X

FR
A

N
K

LI
N

, W
I

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 D
E

TA
IL

S

2023-07-11

I:\Mandel\21234 Ballpark Commons M1 Site\060 CAD\030_Production Sheets\400_Landscape\Landscape Details.dwg

21
23

4
L2

00
AK

U
SK

E
20

23
.0

7.
11

----

PERMIT-BID SET                        2023-6-2

----
----
----
----
----

----

CITY RESUBMITTAL                  2023-7-11
----
----
----
----



LANDSCAPE BENCH

SURFACE MOUNT INSTALLATION,
ANCHORED WITH ITT RAMSET/RED
HEAD SRM 38 STAINLESS STEEL
DROP-IN ANCHOR, 3/8" x 3" STAINLESS
STEEL HEX BOLTS WITH 3/8"
STAINLESS STEEL FLAT WASHER AND
LOCK WASHER

FINISH SURFACE

CONCRETE PAVING, SEE CIVIL

COMPACTED SUBGRADE, SEE CIVIL

NOTES
1. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY FINAL LOCATION WITH

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.
2. PAINT ALL HARDWARE TO MATCH BENCH COLOR.
3. BASIS OF DESIGN: MODEL#LIL-20CA-F 72" BACKED LILY

BENCH WITH HORIZONTAL STEEL SLAT SEATING, BY
VICTOR STANLEY, GREY, SURFACE MOUNT,

4. INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS
5. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY FINAL LOCATION OF BENCHES

AND ASSOCIATED CONCRETE PADS WITH LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

KEYED LEGEND

1

2

3

4

5

1

2

43

5

8" MIN. FROM
EDGE OF

PAVEMENT, TYP.

KEYED LEGEND:

WASTE BAG DISPENSER

WASTE RECEPTACLE WITH LID

BARK MULCH LAYER - REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS

FINISH GRADE

CONCRETE FOOTING WITH 12" RADIUS SMOOTH
EDGE, SLOPE TOP 2% TO DRAIN
SUBGRADE

ADJACENT PAVING - REFER TO CONSTRUCTION
PLANS FOR  SIGN LOCATIONS

SECTION

NOTES
1. POST LOCATIONS TO BE STAKED IN THE FIELD

PRIOR TO INSTALLATION. SEE L100-L104 FOR
APPROXIMATE LOCATIONS

2. ALL HARDWARE AND FASTENERS TO BE
PAINTED TO MATCH POST.2'

1'

CL

6"

1' TYP.

1

2

3

4

5 7

6

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

2'-0"

6'-
0"

PLAN VIEW

CL

NOTE:
1. BASIS OF DESIGN: 1 LOOP WAVE

STYLE BIKE RACK AS
MANUFACTURED BY ULINE

2. COLOR AND FINISH : GALVANIZED
BLACK POWDER COAT

3. MOUNTING:  SURFACE MOUNT.
4. INSTALL PRE MANUFACTURER'S

RECOMMENDATION.
5. BIKE STALLS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF

2' BY 6'. PLACEMENT SHALL NOT
RESULT IN A BICYCLE OBSTRUCTING
A WALKWAY.

6. RACKS SHALL BE SPACED MIN. 3'-0"
APART & 3'-0" FROM EDGE OF
PAVEMENT

BIKE RACK

FINISH SURFACE OF
CONCRETE PAVING

DENSE GRADED BASE

BASE PLATE

ANCHOR BOLTS FOR
SURFACE MOUNT

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

1

2

3

24

1

4

5

3

5

6

SECTION VIEW - SURFACE MOUNT

1'-10"

2'-
10

"

2'-
1"

6

        45 GAL. TRASH RECEPTACLE

SURFACE MOUNT INSTALLATION,
ANCHORED WITH ITT RAMSET/RED
HEAD SRM 38 STAINLESS STEEL
DROP-IN ANCHOR, 3/8" x 3" STAINLESS
STEEL HEX BOLTS WITH 3/8"
STAINLESS STEEL FLAT WASHER AND
LOCK WASHER

FINISH SURFACE

CONCRETE PAVING, SEE CIVIL

COMPACTED SUBGRADE, SEE CIVIL

NOTES
1. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY FINAL LOCATION WITH

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.
2. PAINT ALL HARDWARE TO MATCH TRASH RECEPTACLE

COLOR.
3. BASIS OF DESIGN: MODEL#SDC-45 STEEL TRASH

RECEPTACLE BY VICTOR STANLEY, GREY, SURFACE
MOUNT

4. INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS

KEYED LEGEND

1

2

3

4

5

1

2

4

5

1'-0" MIN. FROM
EDGE OF

PAVEMENT, TYP.

SIDE ACCESS

3

SCALE:
BENCHA NTS SCALE:

DOGB NTS
WASTE RECEPTACLE

SCALE:
BIKEC NTS

RACK

NTS

SCALE:D NTS
TRASH RECEPTACLE

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

TH
E

G R O U PSingle Source. Sound Solutions.

DRAWN BY:

DESIGN DATE:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:

PLOT DATE:

NO. REVISION DATE

ISSUANCE DATE

7044 South Ballpark Drive
Franklin, WI  53132
Phone: 414-285-3470

HLY

2022-9-9

21234

PJI

CTC

L201

82
40

 O
LD

 L
O

O
M

IS
 R

D

B
A

D
A

X

FR
A

N
K

LI
N

, W
I

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 D
E

TA
IL

S

2023-07-11

I:\Mandel\21234 Ballpark Commons M1 Site\060 CAD\030_Production Sheets\400_Landscape\Landscape Details.dwg

21
23

4
L2

01
AK

U
SK

E
20

23
.0

7.
11

----

PERMIT-BID SET                        2023-6-2

----
----
----
----
----

----

CITY RESUBMITTAL                  2023-7-11
----
----
----
----



PLANTING QUALITY ASSURANCE
1. PLANTS ARE TO BE INSPECTED UPON DELIVERY TO PROJECT SITE AND THE LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECT OR OWNER'S PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE MAY REJECT ANY SPECIMENS NO LONGER
MEETING THE SPECIFIED STANDARDS OR THAT HAVE BEEN DAMAGED IN TRANSIT.

2. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE TRUE TO SPECIES AND VARIETY/HYBRID/CULTIVAR SPECIFIED, AND
NURSERY GROWN IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOOD HORTICULTURAL PRACTICES, AND UNDER
CLIMATIC CONDITIONS SIMILAR TO THOSE OF THE SITE LOCATION. SPECIMENS NURSERY-DUG TO
BE REPLANTED SHALL HAVE BEEN FRESHLY DUG AND PROPERLY PREPARED FOR PLANTING.

3. TREES:

3.1. SHALL BE TRAINED IN DEVELOPMENT AND APPEARANCE AS TO BE SUPERIOR IN FORM,
COMPACTNESS AND SYMMETRY. TREES WITH MULTIPLE LEADERS, UNLESS SPECIFIED
OTHERWISE, AND SHRUBS WITH DAMAGED OR CUT MAINSTEM(S), WILL BE REJECTED.

3.2. WITH A DAMAGED, CUT OR CROOKED LEADER, ABRASION OF BARK, SUNSCALD, FROST CRACK,
DISFIGURING KNOTS, INSECTS (INCLUDING EGGS AND LARVAE) OR INSECT DAMAGE,
CANKERS/CANKEROUS LESIONS OR FUNGAL MATS, MOLD, PREMATURELY-OPENED BUDS, OR
CUTS OF LIMBS OVER ¾” DIAMETER THAT ARE NOT COMPLETELY CALLUSED WILL BE REJECTED.

3.3. SHALL HAVE HEALTHY, WELL-DEVELOPED ROOT SYSTEMS, AND BE FREE FROM PHYSICAL
DAMAGE OR OTHER HINDRANCES TO HEALTHY GROWTH.

3.4. BALLED AND BURLAPPED PLANTS SHALL BE DUG WITH SOLID BALLS OF A DIAMETER NOT LESS
THAN THAT RECOMMENDED BY THE AMERICAN STANDARDS FOR NURSERY STOCK, AND OF
SUFFICIENT DEPTH TO INCLUDE BOTH FIBROUS AND FEEDING ROOTS. BALLS SHALL BE
SECURELY WRAPPED WITH BURLAP, AND TIGHTLY BOUND WITH ROPE OR TWINE. NO PLANTS
SHALL BE BOUND WITH ROPE OR WIRE IN SUCH A MANNER AS TO DAMAGE BARK OR BREAK
BRANCHES. THE ROOT FLARE SHOULD BE WITHIN THE TOP 2" OF THE SOIL BALL. BALLED AND
BURLAPPED PLANTS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED IF THE BALL IS DRY, CRACKED, OR BROKEN
BEFORE OR DURING PLANTING.

4. PLANTS SHALL CONFORM TO THE MEASUREMENTS SPECIFIED WITHIN THE PLANT SCHEDULE.

PLANTING PROJECT CONDITIONS:

1. VERIFY SERVICE AND UTILITY LOCATIONS, AND DIMENSIONS OF CONSTRUCTION CONTIGUOUS
WITH NEW PLANTINGS BY FIELD MEASUREMENTS BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH PLANTING WORK.

2. INTERRUPTION OF EXISTING SERVICES OR UTILITIES; DO NOT INTERRUPT SERVICES OR UTILITIES
UNLESS PERMITTED UNDER THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS AND THEN ONLY AFTER ARRANGING TO
PROVIDE TEMPORARY SERVICES OR UTILITIES ACCORDING TO REQUIREMENTS INDICATED:

2.1. NOTIFY OWNER'S PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE NO FEWER THAN TWO DAYS IN ADVANCE OF
PROPOSED INTERRUPTION OF EACH SERVICE OR UTILITY.

2.2. DO NOT PROCEED WITH INTERRUPTION OF SERVICES OR UTILITIES WITHOUT
REPRESENTATIVE'S WRITTEN PERMISSION.

3. PLANTING RESTRICTIONS: PLANTING SHALL OCCUR DURING THE FOLLOWING ACCEPTABLE
INSTALLATION PERIODS:

3.1. DECIDUOUS TREES AND SHRUBS - APRIL 1 TO OCTOBER 15.

4. WEATHER LIMITATIONS: PROCEED WITH PLANTING ONLY WHEN EXISTING AND FORECASTED
WEATHER CONDITIONS PERMIT PLANTING TO BE PERFORMED WHEN BENEFICIAL AND OPTIMUM
RESULTS MAY BE OBTAINED. APPLY PRODUCTS DURING FAVORABLE WEATHER CONDITIONS
ACCORDING TO MANUFACTURER'S WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS AND WARRANTY REQUIREMENTS.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL EXISTING AND/OR NEWLY INSTALLED PLANTS, LAWNS, AND
GRASS AREAS FROM DAMAGE AT ALL TIMES. DAMAGED PLANTS, LAWNS OR GRASS AREAS SHALL
BE REPLACED OR TREATED AS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO SPECIFICATIONS HEREIN FOR FRESH
STOCK. WORK AREA SHALL BE KEPT CLEAN AND ORDERLY DURING THE INSTALLATION PERIOD.
UNDER NO CONDITION SHALL DEBRIS FROM PLANTING ACTIVITIES RESULT IN A SAFETY HAZARD
ON-SITE OR ADJACENT OFF-SITE PROPERTY. DAMAGE TO SITE IMPROVEMENTS OR ADJACENT
LANDSCAPES INCURRED AS A RESULT OF PLANTING OR REPLACEMENT OPERATIONS SHALL BE
REPAIRED BY THE CONTRACTOR THAT CAUSES THE DAMAGE AT NO COST TO THE OWNER.

6. EXAMINE AREAS TO RECEIVE PLANTS FOR COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS
AFFECTING INSTALLATION AND PERFORMANCE. PROCEED WITH INSTALLATION ONLY AFTER
UNSATISFACTORY CONDITIONS HAVE BEEN CORRECTED.

6.1. VERIFY THAT NO FOREIGN OR DELETERIOUS MATERIAL OR LIQUID SUCH AS PAINT, PAINT
WASHOUT, CONCRETE SLURRY, CONCRETE LAYERS OR CHUNKS, CEMENT, PLASTER, OILS,
GASOLINE, DIESEL FUEL, PAINT THINNER, TURPENTINE, TAR, ROOFING COMPOUND, OR ACID
HAS BEEN DEPOSITED IN SOIL WITHIN PLANTING AREAS.

6.2. DO NOT MIX OR PLACE SOILS IN FROZEN, WET, OR MUDDY CONDITIONS.

PLANTING DELIVERY, STORAGE, & HANDLING:

1. BULK MATERIALS;
1.1. DO NOT DUMP OR STORE BULK MATERIALS NEAR STRUCTURES, UTILITIES, WALKWAYS AND

PAVEMENTS, OR ON EXISTING TURF AREAS OR PLANTS.

2. DO NOT PRUNE TREES AND SHRUBS BEFORE DELIVERY. PROTECT BARK, BRANCHES, AND ROOT
SYSTEMS FROM SUN SCALD, DRYING, WIND BURN, SWEATING, WHIPPING, AND OTHER HANDLING
AND TYING DAMAGE. DO NOT BEND OR BIND-TIE TREES OR SHRUBS IN SUCH A MANNER AS TO
DESTROY THEIR NATURAL SHAPE. PROVIDE PROTECTIVE COVERING OF PLANTS DURING SHIPPING
AND DELIVERY. DO NOT DROP PLANTS DURING DELIVERY AND HANDLING.

3. HANDLE PLANTING STOCK BY ROOT BALL.

4. DELIVER PLANTS AFTER PREPARATIONS FOR PLANTING HAVE BEEN COMPLETED AND INSTALL
IMMEDIATELY. IF PLANTING IS DELAYED MORE THAN SIX HOURS AFTER DELIVERY, SET PLANTS
AND TREES IN SHADED LOCATION, PROTECT FROM WEATHER AND MECHANICAL DAMAGE, AND
KEEP ROOTS MOIST.

4.1. SET BALLED STOCK ON GROUND AND COVER BALL WITH SOIL, PEAT MOSS, SAWDUST, OR
OTHER ACCEPTABLE MATERIAL.

4.2. WATER ROOT SYSTEMS OF PLANTS STORED ON-SITE DEEPLY AND THOROUGHLY WITH A
FINE-MIST SPRAY. WATER AS OFTEN AS NECESSARY TO MAINTAIN ROOT SYSTEMS IN A MOIST,
BUT NOT OVERLY WET CONDITION.

EXCAVATION FOR TREES & SHRUBS
1. EXCAVATE CIRCULAR PLANTING PITS AS INDICATED IN DRAWINGS. TRIM PERIMETER OF BOTTOM

LEAVING CENTER AREA OF BOTTOM RAISED SLIGHTLY TO SUPPORT ROOT BALL AND ASSIST IN
DRAINAGE AWAY FROM CENTER. DO NOT FURTHER DISTURB BASE. ENSURE THAT ROOT BALL
WILL SIT ON UNDISTURBED BASE SOIL TO PREVENT SETTLING. SCARIFY SIDES OF PLANTING PIT
SMEARED OR SMOOTHED DURING EXCAVATION.

1.1. EXCAVATE APPROXIMATELY THREE TIMES AS WIDE AS BALL DIAMETER FOR BALLED AND
BURLAPPED STOCK.

1.2. DO NOT EXCAVATE DEEPER THAN DEPTH OF THE ROOT BALL, MEASURED FROM THE ROOT
FLARE TO THE BOTTOM OF THE ROOT BALL.

1.3. IF AREA UNDER THE PLANT WAS INITIALLY DUG TOO DEEP, ADD SOIL TO RAISE IT TO CORRECT
LEVEL AND THOROUGHLY TAMP THE ADDED SOIL TO PREVENT SETTLING.

1.4. MAINTAIN REQUIRED ANGELS OF REPOSE OF ADJACENT MATERIALS AS SHOWN IN DRAWINGS.
DO NOT EXCAVATE SUBGRADES OF ADJACENT PAVING, STRUCTURES, HARDSCAPES, OR
OTHER NEW OR EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS.

1.5. MAINTAIN SUPERVISION OF EXCAVATIONS DURING WORKING HOURS.
1.6. KEEP EXCAVATIONS COVERED OR OTHERWISE PROTECTED WHEN UNATTENDED BY

INSTALLER'S PERSONNEL.

2. SUBSOIL AND TOPSOIL REMOVED FROM EXCAVATIONS MAY BE USED AS PLANTING SOIL IF THEY
CONFORM TO THE REQUIREMENTS LISTED IN THESE SPECIFICATIONS.

3. NOTIFY OWNER'S PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE IF UNEXPECTED ROCK OR OBSTRUCTIONS
DETRIMENTAL TO TREES OR SHRUBS ARE ENCOUNTERED IN EXCAVATIONS.

4. NOTIFY OWNER'S PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE IF SUBSOIL CONDITIONS EVIDENCE UNEXPECTED
WATER SEEPAGE OR RETENTION IN TREE OR SHRUB PLANTING PITS.

TREE & SHRUB PLANTING
1. BEFORE PLANTING VERIFY THAT ROOT FLARE IS VISIBLE AT TOP OF ROOT BALL. IF ROOT FLARE IS

NOT VISIBLE, REMOVE SOIL IN A LEVEL MANNER FROM THE ROOT BALL TO WHERE THE TOP-MOST
ROOT EMERGES FROM THE TRUNK. AFTER SOIL REMOVAL TO EXPOSE ROOT FLARE, VERIFY THAT
ROOT BALL STILL MEETS SIZE REQUIREMENTS. PLANT MATERIAL WITHOUT ROOT FLARE VISIBLE
OR PLANTED TOO LOW WILL BE RE-PLANTED AT THE REQUEST OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AT
NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

2. PLANTS FOUND TO HAVE STEM GIRDLING ROOTS AND/OR KINKED ROOTS AT THE TIME OF
PLANTING WILL BE REJECTED AND REPLACEMENTS SHALL BE PROVIDED AT NO ADDITIONAL COST
TO THE OWNER.

3. REMOVE ALL TWINE, STRING, WIRE, AND ALL OTHER NON-BIODEGRADABLE MATERIAL ENTIRELY
FROM ROOT BALL AREA.

4. REMOVE ONLY DEAD, DYING, OR BROKEN BRANCHES. DO NOT PRUNE FOR SHAPE. DO CUT TREE
LEADERS.

5. SET BALLED AND BURLAPPED STOCK PLUMB AND IN CENTER OF PLANTING PIT OR TRENCH WITH
ROOT FLARE 2 INCHES ABOVE ADJACENT FINISH GRADES.

5.1. USE SOIL MATERIALS FROM EXCAVATION FOR BACKFILL.
5.2. CAREFULLY CUT AND REMOVE BURLAP, ROPE, AND WIRE BASKETS FROM THE ENTIRE ROOT

BALL. REMOVE PALLETS, IF ANY, BEFORE SETTING. DO NOT USE PLANTING STOCK IF ROOT
BALL IS CRACKED OR BROKEN BEFORE OR DURING PLANTING OPERATION.

5.3. BACKFILL AROUND ROOT BALL IN LAYERS, TAMPING TO SETTLE SOIL AND ELIMINATE VOIDS
AND AIR POCKETS. WHEN PLANTING PIT IS APPROXIMATELY ONE-HALF FILLED, WATER
THOROUGHLY BEFORE PLACING REMAINDER OF BACKFILL. REPEAT WATERING UNTIL NO
MORE WATER IS ABSORBED.

5.4. CONTINUE BACKFILLING PROCESS. WATER AGAIN AFTER PLACING AND  TAMPING FINAL LAYER
OF SOIL.

PLANTING SOIL:
PLANTING SOIL SHALL BE PLACED IN ONE CONTINUOUS VOLUME FOR THE WIDTH OF LANDSCAPE
AREAS, AND A MINIMUM OF 3X THE DIAMETER OF THE ROOT BALL LENGTHWISE

1. INSTALL PLANTING SOIL FOR PLANT BEDS IN 6" LIFTS, MINIMUM 18" DEPTH.

2. DO NOT APPLY PLANTING SOIL TO SATURATED OR FROZEN SUBGRADES.

3. PLANTING SOIL SHALL BE A MIX OF 6-PARTS TOPSOIL, 1-PART COMPOST (APPROVED FOR USE ON
THE PROJECT). THOROUGHLY BLEND PLANTING SOIL OFF-SITE BEFORE SPREADING.

3.1. THE PROJECT WILL ACCEPT ONLY CLEAN, SALVAGED OR IMPORTED TOPSOIL CAPABLE OF
PASSING THE 1" SIEVE, FREE OF ROCKS, DEBRIS, AND OF NOXIOUS WEEDS.

3.2. STRIPPED, SALVAGED, OR MINED TOPSOIL MUST BE TAKEN FROM THE TOP 6-INCHES OF THE
A-HORIZON, HAVING A DARK BROWN TO BLACK COLOR WITH A GRANULAR STRUCTURE AND
CLAY CONTENT OF LESS THAN 25%, VERIFIED WITH A RIBBON TEST THAT YIELDS NO MORE
THAN 1-INCH.

TREE & SHRUB MATERIAL:

1. GENERAL: FURNISH NURSERY-GROWN PLANTS TRUE TO GENUS, SPECIES, VARIETY, CULTIVAR,
STEM FORM, SHEARING, AND OTHER FEATURES INDICATED IN PLANT SCHEDULE SHOWN AND
DRAWINGS.; AND WITH HEALTHY ROOT SYSTEMS DEVELOPED BY TRANSPLANTING OR ROOT
PRUNING. PROVIDE WELL-SHAPED, FULLY BRANCHED, HEALTHY, VIGOROUS STOCK, DENSELY
FOLIATED WHEN IN LEAF AND FREE OF DISEASE, PESTS, EGGS, LARVAE, AND DEFECTS SUCH AS
KNOTS, SUN SCALD, INJURIES, ABRASIONS, AND DISFIGUREMENT.

1.1. TREES WITH DAMAGED, CROOKED, OR MULTIPLE LEADERS; TIGHT VERTICAL BRANCHES
WHERE BARK IS SQUEEZED BETWEEN TWO BRANCHES OR BETWEEN BRANCH AND TRUNK
("INCLUDED BARK"); CROSSING TRUNKS; CUT-OFF LIMBS MORE THAN 34" IN DIAMETER; OR WITH
STEM GIRDLING ROOTS WILL BE REJECTED.

1.2. COLLECTED STOCK: DO NOT USE PLANTS HARVESTED FROM THE WILD, FROM NATIVE STANDS,
FROM AN ESTABLISHED LANDSCAPE PLANTING, OR NOT GROWN IN A STATE CERTIFIED
NURSERY.

1.3. PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE PROVIDED IN THE CONTAINER TYPE INDICATED IN THE DRAWINGS
(B&B, CONTAINER, BARE ROOT, ETC.), UNLESS THE CONTRACTOR RECEIVES WRITTEN
APPROVAL FROM THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT THAT SUBSTITUTION OF CONTAINER TYPE IS
ACCEPTABLE.

2. FURNISH TREES WITH ROOT BALLS MEASURED FROM TOP OF ROOT BALL. ROOT FLARE SHALL BE
VISIBLE BEFORE PLANTING.

3. SELECT STOCK FOR UNIFORM HEIGHT AND SPREAD.

METAL EDGING
1. STANDARD PROFILE, COMMERCIAL-GRADE, EXTRUDED ALUMINUM EDGING, FABRICATED IN

STANDARD LENGTHS WITH INTERLOCKING SECTIONS WITH LOOPS STAMPED FROM FACE OF
SECTIONS TO RECEIVE STAKES.

1.1. BASIS OF DESIGN: CLEANLINE XL BY PERMALOC OR APPROVED EQUAL.
1.2. EDGING SIZE: 3/16-INCH-WIDE BY 5 INCHES DEEP
1.3. STAKES: ALUMINUM, ASTM 221, ALLOY 6061-T6, 18-INCHES LONG.
1.4. FINISH: MILL (NATURAL ALUMINUM)
1.5. MANUFACTURERS: SUBJECT TO COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS, AVAILABLE

MANUFACTURERS OFFERING PRODUCTS THAT MAY BE INCORPORATED INTO THE WORK
INCLUDE BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO THE FOLLOWING: CURV-RITE, INC., PERMALOC
CORPORATION, RUSSELL, J.D. COMPANY (THE), SURE-LOC EDGING CORPORATION

2. INSTALL METAL EDGE IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS.

3. ENSURE THAT METAL EDGING IS PROPERLY INSTALLED AND SECURED BEFORE INSTALLING STONE
MULCH.

STONE MULCH MATERIAL & INSTALLATION:
1. SHALL BE HARD, DURABLE, STONE, WASHED FREE OF LOAM, SAND, CLAY, AND OTHER FOREIGN

SUBSTANCES, OF THE FOLLOWING TYPE, SIZE RANGE, AND COLOR:
1.1. MATERIAL: ANGULAR WASHED STONE.
1.2. SIZE: 3/4"
1.3. COLOR RANGE: BLEND OF DARK GREY & BLUE TONES
1.4. BASIS OF DESIGN: 3/4" 'BASIN BLUE' AGGREGATE BY COUNTY MATERIALS.

2. LIGHTLY COMPACT AREAS TO RECEIVE STONE MULCH

3. INSTALL WEED BARRIER FABRIC IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S WRITTEN
INSTRUCTIONS; COMPLETELY COVER AREA TO BE MULCHED, OVERLAPPING EDGES OF FABRIC
LENGTHS A MINIMUM OF 6-INCHES AND SECURING SEAMS WITH GALVANIZED PINS. WEED BARRIER
FABRIC SHALL BE WRAPPED VERTICALLY UP THE OUTSIDE EDGES OF SURROUNDING CONCRETE
FLATWORK OR CURB AND SECURED IN PLACE. HOLD FABRIC 2" CLEAR OF TOP OF ADJACENT CURB
AND CONCRETE FLATWORK SO IT IS NOT VISIBLE FROM SURFACE.

4. PLACE AND FINISH STONE MULCH AS INDICATED IN DRAWINGS, ENSURING A SMOOTH, LEVEL TOP
SURFACE FOR ALL STONE MULCH AREAS HELD APPROXIMATELY 1/2" BELOW THE TOP SURFACE
OF ADJACENT PAVED AREAS.

BARK MULCH MATERIAL & INSTALLATION
1. TWICE-SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH TO BE PROVIDED AS TOP-DRESSING FOR AT-GRADE

PLANTING BEDS IN LOCATIONS INDICATED ON DETAILED PLANTING PLANS.

1.1. SIZE RANGE: MAXIMUM 2.5" TO 3"
1.2. COLOR: NATURAL, UN-DYED
1.3. PROVIDE 3" DEPTH MULCH FOR ALL PLANTING BEDS INDICATED AS BARK MULCH PLANTING BED.

2. KEEP BARK MULCH 2" CLEAR OF ALL STEMS OF PLANT MATERIAL.

CLEAN-UP AND PROTECTION

1. DURING PLANTING, KEEP ADJACENT PAVING AND CONSTRUCTION CLEAN AND WORK AREA IN AN
ORDERLY CONDITION.

2. PROTECT PLANTS FROM DAMAGE DUE TO LANDSCAPE OPERATIONS AND OPERATIONS OF OTHER
CONTRACTORS AND TRADES. MAINTAIN PROTECTION DURING INSTALLATION. TREAT, REPAIR, OR
REPLACE DAMAGED PLANTINGS.

3. AFTER INSTALLATION REMOVE ALL NURSERY TAGS, NURSERY STAKES, TIE TAPE, LABELS, WIRE,
STRING, AND OTHER DEBRIS FROM PLANT MATERIAL, PLANTING AREAS, AND PROJECT SITE.

TURF SEEDING:
1. DELIVERY:

1.1. DELIVER PACKAGED SEED MATERIALS IN ORIGINAL, UNOPENED CONTAINERS LABELED AS TO NAME AND
ADDRESS OF SUPPLIER; SPECIFIC BLEND OF SEED; AND INDICATION OF CONFORMANCE WITH STATE
AND FEDERAL LAWS, AS APPLICABLE.

2. PROJECT CONDITIONS:
2.1. SEED DURING ONE OF THE FOLLOWING PERIODS.

2.1.1. SPRING SEEDING SEASON: APRIL 1 TO JUNE 15.
2.1.2. FALL SEEDING SEASON: AUGUST 15 TO OCTOBER 1.

3. PRODUCTS
3.0.1. PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING FOR TURFGRASS SEED BASIS OF DESIGN: REINDEERS DELUXE 50 SEED

MIX OR APPROVED EQUAL
3.0.2. TURFGRASS SEED MIX TO BE FERTILIZED WITH 'SCOTT'S STARTER FERTILIZER' BY THE 'SCOTTS

MIRACLE-GRO COMPANY' OR APPROVED EQUAL.
4. PROCEED WITH INSTALLATION ONLY AFTER UNSATISFACTORY CONDITIONS HAVE BEEN MET.
5. REMOVE ANY AND ALL UNDESIRABLE VEGETATION THAT HAS GERMINATED IN THE AREAS TO BE SEEDED OR

SODDED. CONTRACTOR SHALL EVALUATE THE USE OF A BROAD SPECTRUM, NON-PERSISTENT
GLYSOPHATE-BASED HERBICIDE BASED ON SITE CONDITIONS.

5.1. DO NOT APPLY SEED UNTIL FIVE TO SEVEN DAYS AFTER LAST HERBICIDE TREATMENT.
6. FINISH GRADING: GRADE AREAS TO A SMOOTH, UNIFORM SURFACE PLANE WITH LOOSE, UNIFORMLY FINE

TEXTURE. GRADE TO WITHIN PLUS OR MINUS 12 INCH OF FINISH ELEVATION. ROLL AND RAKE, REMOVE RIDGES,
AND FILL DEPRESSIONS TO MEET FINISH GRADES. LIMIT FINISH GRADING TO AREAS THAT CAN BE
IMMEDIATELY SEEDED AND STABILIZED WITH EROSION CONTROL MATERIAL

7. MOISTEN PREPARED AREA BEFORE SEEDING IF SOIL IS DRY. WATER THOROUGHLY AND ALLOW SURFACE
DRY BEFORE SEEDING OR SODDING. DO NOT CREATE MUDDY SOIL.

8. NO SEEDING SHALL OCCUR ON FROZEN GROUND OR AT TEMPERATURES LOWER THAN 32 DEGREES
FARENHEIT OR IN THE FOLLOWING 5 DAYS AFTER PLANNED SEEDING OR SODDING.

9. SEEDING RATES TO BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SEED SUPPLIER RECOMMENDATIONS.

WARRANTY, MAINTENANCE AND ACCEPTANCE PERIOD
A. SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION:
1. ONLY ONE SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION INSPECTION WITH THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT, OWNER,

AND CONTRACTOR WILL OCCUR FOR ALL LANDSCAPE INSTALLED UNDER THE CONTRACT.
2. THE INSPECTION WILL OCCUR AFTER SEEDING OPERATIONS ARE COMPLETE, ALLOWING TIME FOR

GERMINATION OF THE COVER CROP PLANTED WITH SPRING SEASON SEEDING IN ORDER TO
VERIFY COVERAGE. FOLLOWING THIS INSPECTION, RE-TOPSOIL, RESEED, MULCH, AND RE-APPLY
EROSION CONTROL BLANKETS AS DIRECTED BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.  BARE SPOTS
GREATER THAN 5 SQUARE FEET SHALL BE RE-SEEDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORIGINAL
SPECIFICATIONS BY THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR.  ALL REPAIRS SHALL BE COMPLETED WITHIN
ONE WEEK FOLLOWING THE INSPECTION.  ALL RE-SEEDING SHALL OCCUR AT NO ADDITIONAL
COST TO THE OWNER OR LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.  AFTER SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION IS
GRANTED, OWNER'S QUALIFIED STAFF WILL PERFORM ROUTINE MAINTENANCE.

3. INITIAL WATERING PERIOD EXTENDING BEFORE OR AFTER SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION SHALL BE
BY LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR.

B. FINAL ACCEPTANCE:
1. PRIOR TO PLANT DORMANCY AND THE EXPIRATION OF THE WARRANTY AND MAINTENANCE

PERIOD, THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT WILL CONDUCT AN INSPECTION OF ALL PLANTINGS. FINAL
ACCEPTANCE WILL BE GRANTED ONE FULL YEAR FOLLOWING INSTALLATION OF THE NATIVE SEED
MIX (IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE PLANT MATERIAL WARRANTY INSPECTION) DEPENDENT ON
ACHIEVING SPECIFICATION REQUIREMENTS.  FINAL ACCEPTANCE SHALL BE DEFINED AS AN EVEN
DISTRIBUTION AND GERMINATION OF COVER CROP AND AN INDICATION OF SPECIFIED NATIVE
SEEDLINGS ACROSS THE PROJECT SITE.  BARE SPOTS GREATER THAN 5 SQUARE FEET SHALL BE
RE-SEEDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORIGINAL SPECIFICATIONS.  ALL RE-SEEDING SHALL
OCCUR AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER OR LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

2. FINAL ACCEPTANCE WILL BE BASED UPON OWNER APPROVAL AND THE WORK HAVING:
a. BEEN WELL MAINTAINED WITH ALL LANDSCAPE PLANTINGS IN A HEALTHY GROWING

CONDITION FREE OF DISEASE AND INSECT PROBLEMS.
b. ALL MAINTENANCE ITEMS COMPLETED AND DOCUMENTED BY CONTRACTOR THROUGH

MAINTENANCE REPORT FORMS.
3. FINAL ACCEPTANCE AND THE END OF THE WARRANTY PERIOD FOR THE LANDSCAPE WILL OCCUR

ONLY AFTER ALL PUNCH LIST ITEMS HAVE BEEN SATISFACTORILY COMPLETED AND THE SITE IS
LEFT IN THE CONDITION SPECIFIED UNDER CLEANUP AND PROTECTION.

C. WARRANTY AND MAINTENANCE PERIOD:
1. THE END OF THE WARRANTY AND MAINTENANCE PERIOD SHALL BE:

a. OCTOBER 31 - TWO YEARS FOLLOWING A FALL SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION DATE.
b. JUNE 30 - TWO YEARS FOLLOWING A SPRING SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION DATE.

2. PRIOR TO AND DURING THE WARRANTY AND MAINTENANCE PERIOD, REPLACE ANY PLANTS THAT
ARE DAMAGED, DEAD, OR, IN THE OPINION OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT, ARE UNHEALTHY, OR
HAVE LOST MORE THAN 25% OF THEIR NATURAL SHAPE DUE TO DEAD BRANCHES, EXCESSIVE
PRUNING OR IMPROPER MAINTENANCE.  REJECTED PLANT MATERIALS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM
THE SITE IMMEDIATELY AFTER BEING REJECTED AND LEGALLY DISPOSED OFF-SITE.
REPLACEMENT PLANTS SHALL BE INSTALLED WITHIN 2 WEEKS FOLLOWING THE INSPECTION
UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED TO IN WRITING BY THE OWNER.

3. ONLY ONE REPLACEMENT OF ANY PLANT IS REQUIRED AFTER SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION,
EXCEPT FOR LOSSES DUE TO FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH SPECIFIED INSTALLATION AND/OR
MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS.

4. MAKE REPLACEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORIGINAL SPECIFICATIONS, PLANT SPECIES,
EQUAL SIZE, AND GENERAL NOTES. FULLY RESTORE AREAS DAMAGED BY REPLACEMENT
OPERATIONS TO THEIR ORIGINAL AND SPECIFIED CONDITION.

5. THE CONTRACTOR WILL NOT BE HELD RESPONSIBLE FOR DEFECTS RESULTING FROM NEGLECT
BY OWNER, ABUSE OR DAMAGE BY OTHERS, OR UNUSUAL PHENOMENA OR INCIDENTS BEYOND
LANDSCAPE INSTALLER'S CONTROL WHICH RESULT FROM HAIL STORMS, WINDS OVER 100 MILES
PER HOUR, FIRES OR VANDALISM, UNLESS CONTRACTOR HAS NOT COMPLETED SPECIFIED
INSTALLATION IN A MANNER THAT COULD HAVE PROTECTED THE LANDSCAPING FROM THESE
PHENOMENA.

NTS

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

TH
E

G R O U PSingle Source. Sound Solutions.

DRAWN BY:

DESIGN DATE:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:

PLOT DATE:

NO. REVISION DATE

ISSUANCE DATE

7044 South Ballpark Drive
Franklin, WI  53132
Phone: 414-285-3470

HLY

2022-9-9

21234

PJI

CTC

L300

82
40

 O
LD

 L
O

O
M

IS
 R

D

B
A

D
A

X

FR
A

N
K

LI
N

, W
I

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

S

2023-07-11

I:\Mandel\21234 Ballpark Commons M1 Site\060 CAD\030_Production Sheets\400_Landscape\L300 Landscape Specifications.dwg

21
23

4
L3

00
AK

U
SK

E
20

23
.0

7.
11

----

PERMIT-BID SET                        2023-6-2

----
----
----
----
----

----

CITY RESUBMITTAL                  2023-7-11
----
----
----
----



Upland Meadow Seed Mix Mesic to Dry 87.00 Seeds/Sq. Ft.

Botanical Name Common Name PLS Ounces/Acre

Wildflower Forbs:
Achillea millefolium Native Yarrow 0.75
Agastache foeniculum Lavender Hyssop 0.50
Amorpha canescens Leadplant 2.00
Asclepias syriaca Common Milkweed 2.00
Chamaecrista fasciculata Partridge Pea 8.00
Coreopsis Palmata Prairie Coreopsis 2.00
Dalea candida White Prairie Clover 2.50
Dalea purpurea Purple Prairie Clover 2.00
Echinacea purpurea Purple Coneflower 8.00
Heliopsis helianthoides Early Sunflower 4.00
Liatris pycnostachya Prairie Blazing Star 1.50
Monarda fistulosa Wild Bergamont 0.50
Monarda punctata Dotted Mint 1.00
Ratibida pinnata Yellow Coneflower 6.00
Rosa arkansana Prairie Wild Rose 2.00
Rudbeckia hirta Black-Eyed Susan 2.00
Solidago speciosa Showy Goldenrod 0.50
Tradescantia ohiensis Ohio Spiderwort 4.00
Verbena stricta Hoary Vervain 1.50
Zizia aptera Heart-Leaved Golden Alexanders 1.00

Totals = 51.75
Perennial Grasses, Sedges &
Rushes:
Bouteloua curtipendula Side Oats Grama 40.00
Bouteloua gracilis Blue Grama 4.00
Elymus canadensis Canada Wild Rye 16.00
Juncus tenuis Path Rush 0.25
Koeleria cristata June Grass 4.00
Schizachyrium scoparium Little Bluestem 16.00
Sorghastrum nutans Indian Grass 4.00
Sporobolus heterolepis Prairie Dropseed 8.00

Totals = 92.25

VEGETATION MONITORING AND MANAGMENT
NATIVE SEED INSTALLATION:
NATIVE SEED SHALL BE MIXED THOROUGHLY BY VENDOR OR SEED INSTALLATION CONTRACTOR.
SEED SHALL BE INSTALLED BY MEANS OF MECHANICAL AND/OR BROADCAST METHODS TO ASSURE
EVEN DISTRIBUTION OF SEEDS THROUGHOUT ALL DESIGNATED SEEDING AREAS. IMMEDIATELY AFTER
SEED PLACEMENT, SEED SHALL BE SOWN INTO THE SOIL'S SURFACE BY MEANS OF LIGHT RAKING OR
HARROWING AND THEN LIGHTLY MULCHED WITH CLEAN, WEED-FREE STRAW. A COVER CROP OF
ANNUAL RYE GRASS SHALL BE USED TO COMPLIMENT NATIVE SEEDING AREAS AT THE RATE OF FIVE
(5) POUNDS PER ACRE.

MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING:
THE MANAGEMENT AND MONITORING OF NATIVE PLANTINGS (INCLUDING SEED MIXES, FORBS AND
PLUGS) SHOULD BE DIRECTED TOWARD THE GOAL OF CREATING A STABLE, NATIVE PLANT
COMMUNITY.  INVASIVE AND WEEDY PLANT SPECIES WILL NEED TO BE CONTROLLED UNTIL THE
DESIRED NATIVE PLANT COMMUNITIES ARE ESTABLISHED. THIS TYPICALLY WILL TAKE THREE (3) TO
FIVE (5) YEARS AFTER SOWING OR PLUG INSTALLATION.

UNDESIRABLE PLANT CONTROL:
OVERALL MANAGEMENT OF VEGETATED AREAS MAY INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO: RESEEDING
OR REPLANTING DAMAGED OR NON-ACTIVE GROWTH AREAS, IRRIGATION, STRATEGIC MOWING TO
REDUCE WEED COVER AND PREVENT WEED SEED SET, REMOVAL OF TREE SEEDLINGS, TARGETED
HERBICIDE APPLICATION(S),  AND MECHANICAL WEED CONTROL (HAND PULLING AND SEED HEAD
REMOVAL). SELECTED HERBICIDE APPLICATIONS SHOULD BE DONE SPARINGLY AND ONLY WHEN
NECESSARY. SELECTION OF HERBICIDE FOR USE MUST CONSIDER THE PROXIMITY TO THE
WATERWAY, IN COMPLIANCE WITH STATE AND APPLICABLE FEDERAL LAW.

SHORT‐TERM VEGETATION MANAGEMENT:
SHORT-TERM VEGETATION MANAGEMENT (2 YEARS AFTER SEEDING/PLUG INSTALLATION) OCCURS
WHILE THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR OR SPECIALTY SEEDING/ RESTORATION CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE TO THE PROJECT OWNER FOR THE GUARANTEE OF ALL PLANTINGS TO BE ALIVE AND IN
VIGOROUS GROWING CONDITIONS. SEEDING SHOULD ACHIEVE AN AVERAGE OF 80% VEGETATION
COVERAGE FROM SPECIFIED SEED MIXES. IF UNSATISFACTORY PLANTS ARE FOUND ON SITE, THEY
SHOULD BE REPLACED BY THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR OF SPECIALTY SEEDING/RESTORATION
CONTRACTOR DURING THE FIRST MONTH OF THE NEXT FAVORABLE PLANTING SEASON.
SUPPLEMENTAL SEEDING WILL BE NEEDED TO FILL IN BARE SPOTS WHERE NATIVE SEED
GERMINATION IS POOR. IT IS ALSO THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR / SPECIALTY
SEEDING/RESTORATION CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO ELIMINATE ALL NOXIOUS WEED GROWTH
FROM THE SITE DURING THIS GUARANTEE PERIOD.

INSPECTIONS SHOULD BE MADE FREQUENTLY DURING THE GROWING SEASON TO PROPERLY DOCUMENT ANY
INVASIVE SPECIES, WEEDS, DEHYDRATION, DAMAGE, EROSION, DISEASES, BARE AREAS, AND PESTS. THE
NECESSARY REPAIRS, TREATMENTS, SEEDING AND PLANTING SHOULD BE DONE AS SOON AS WEATHER CON-
DITIONS ARE APPROPRIATE. THE INSPECTIONS AND SUBSEQUENT ACTIONS SHOULD BE PROPERLY
DOCUMENTED AND GRAPHICALLY IDENTIFIED ON THE APPROVED LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR THE PROJECT.

AT THE END OF THE GUARANTEE PERIOD, OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES WILL BE
TRANSFERRED TO THE PROJECT OWNERSHIP/MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION.

LONG TERM VEGETATION MANAGEMENT:
LONG-TERM MANAGEMENT (AFTER 2 YEARS) WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PROJECT
OWNER/MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. LONG-TERM VEGETATION MANAGEMENT TASKS WILL INCLUDE
MOWING, RESEEDING OR REPLANTING DAMAGED AREAS, REMOVAL OF TREE SEEDLINGS, TARGETED
HERBICIDE APPLICATION AND MECHANICAL WEED CONTROL (HAND-PULLING AND SEED HEAD
REMOVAL) AND REPAIR OF EROSION AREAS. SELECTIVE HERBICIDE APPLICATIONS SHOULD BE DONE
SPARINGLY. INSPECTIONS SHOULD BE MADE FREQUENTLY DURING THE GROWING SEASON TO
IDENTIFY ANY INVASIVE SPECIES, WEEDS, DEHYDRATION DAMAGE, EROSION, DISEASES, BARE AREAS,
AND PESTS. THE NECESSARY REPAIRS, TREATMENTS, SEEDING AND PLANTING SHOULD BE DONE AS
SOON AS WEATHER AND GROWING CONDITIONS ARE APPROPRIATE.

MOWING FREQUENCIES:
MOWING FREQUENCIES WILL DEPEND ON FIELD CONDITIONS. THE NATIVE SEEDLING/GRASS AREAS
SHOULD NEVER BE MOWED SHORTER THAN SIX (6) INCHES. GROWTH OF THE VEGETATION ALONG THE
WATER'S EDGE (WHERE APPLICABLE) WILL PROVIDE BANK STABILIZATION. THE VEGETATION SHOULD
PREVENT NUISANCE LEVELS OF GEESE IN WATERWAYS, WHICH WOULD ADD TO THE NUTRIENT LEVEL
IN THE WATER AND FURTHER DEGRADE THE WATER QUALITY. IN ADDITION, THE GROUND SLOPE
ABOVE NORMAL WATER ELEVATION SHOULD PROVIDE GOOD DRAINAGE OF THE SURFACE SOILS
REDUCE PONDING, AND THUS MOSQUITO HABITAT. THE NATIVE VEGETATION WILL PROVIDE HABITAT
CONDUCIVE TO THE BREEDING AND ESTABLISHMENT OF EFFECTIVE MOSQUITO PREDATORS SUCH AS
DRAGONFLIES.

MOWING SHOULD BE DONE THREE (3) TIMES DURING THE ESTABLISHMENT PERIOD:

MOWING TIMES ARE APPROXIMATE; ACTUAL MOWING TIMES SHOULD BE BASED ON THE GROWTH OF NATURAL
GRASSES AND UNDESIRABLE WEEDS.

AFTER THE DESIRED VEGETATION HAS BECOME ESTABLISHED THE FIRST AND SECOND MOWINGS
(MAY, AUGUST) MAY NOT BE NECESSARY. THE THIRD MOWING (OCTOBER), HOWEVER, SHOULD BE
DONE ANNUALLY.
BURNING:
THE NORTH AMERICAN PRAIRIE EVOLVED UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF FIRE. MANY TIMES, THESE FIRES
WERE IGNITED BY LIGHTNING FROM STORMS SWEEPING ACROSS THE PLAINS STATES. BURNING IS AN
EFFECTIVE WAY TO CONTROL INVASIVE WEED SPECIES (THEY OFTEN CANNOT SURVIVE THE HEAT
AND FLAMES), AND ALSO CAN BE A MECHANISM FOR DISBURSAL OF SEEDS FROM DESIRED PLANT
SPECIES WITHING THE PRAIRIE. PROPERLY CONDUCTED, A "OPNTROLLED BURN" IS SAFE AND
EFFECTIVE.

PRIOR TO BURNING, CONTACT WITH THE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY / FIRE DEPARTMENT IS REQUIRED. SOME
MUNICIPALITIES MAY HAVE RESTRICTIONS ON OPEN BURNING, OR ONLY ALLOW SUCH PRACTICES AT
CERTAIN TIMES. ADDITIONALLY, A PERMIT TO BURN MAY BE REQUIRED IN SOME MUNICIPALITIES.  THE
SUPERVISING CREW SHOULD BE COMPRISED OF EXPERIENCED PROFESSIONALS WHO ARE TRAINED
AND CERTIFIED IN THESE TYPES OF PRESCRIBED BURNS.

IF ALLOWED BY LOCAL CODE AND ORDINANCES, ONLY BURN WHEN THE DEAD VEGETATION MATTER
CAN SUSTAIN FIRE. WET OR DAMP PLANT MATTER IS NOT EFFECTIVE IN A CONTROL BURN SETTING. IT
MAY TAKE UP TO THREE (3) YEARS FOR A NEWLY PLANTED PRAIRIE TO HAVE ENOUGH "FUEL" TO
STAGE AN EFFETIVE CONTROLLED BURN.

WOODLAND EDGE, UPLAND MEADOW, AND WETLAND SEEDING

1. PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING SEED TYPES FROM: AGRECOL LLC 10101 N. CASEY ROAD EVANSVILLE, WISCONSIN
53536:

1.1. AGRECOL'S 'UPLAND MEADOW' SEED MIX FOR AREAS SHOWN AS 'UPLAND MEADOW SEED MIX'
1.2. REINDER'S 'DELUXE 50 SEED MIX' FOR AREAS SHOWN AS 'SEEDED TURFGRASS LAWN'

2. REFER TO CIVIL PLANS FOR LOCATIONS AND EXTENTS OF EROSION CONTROL MAT.  IN GENERAL, PROVIDE
CURLEX NET FREE FOR SEEDED AREAS WITH SLOPES OF 4:1 OR LESS AND CURLEX II EROSION CONTROL MAT
IN ALL OTHER SEEDED AREAS. PROVIDE MANUFACTURER'S STANDARD BIODEGRADABLE ANCHORING STAKES
(OR ALTERNATIVE SOURCE FOR BIODEGRADABLE STAKES, IF APPROVED IN WRITING BY OWNER'S
REPRESENTATIVE).  INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S WRITTEN INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS.

3. WITHIN 4 WEEKS FOLLOWING THE ISSUANCE OF THE NOTICE TO PROCEED, SUBMIT NAME AND LOCATION OF
SEED SUPPLIER(S) AND A COMPLETE LIST OF EACH SEED MIX BY WEIGHT AND PROPORTION THAT IS BEING
SUPPLIED BEFORE THE SEED MIX IS ORDERED.  SUBSTITUTIONS WILL NOT BE PERMITTED. PROVIDE
GEOGRAPHIC ORIGINS OF EACH SEED SPECIES.

4. ALL SEED MATERIAL SHALL ORIGINATE FROM LOCAL SOURCES TO THE EXTENT POSSIBLE, SPECIFICALLY FROM
USDA PLANT HARDINESS ZONE 4 OR LOWER.

5. ALL SEEDING ZONE BOUNDARIES SHALL BE SURVEYED AND STAKED ON THE PROJECT SITE BY THE
CONTRACTOR.  NO SEED MIX SHALL BE INSTALLED UNTIL THE GRADE PREPARATION AND LAYOUT HAVE BEEN
APPROVED.

6. THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT RESERVES THE RIGHT TO ADJUST SEED LIMITS WITHOUT ADJUSTING TOTAL
SEEDED AREAS, TO MEET FIELD CONDITIONS, AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

7. COORDINATION IS REQUIRED TO ENSURE RAINFALL/GROUNDWATER SEEPAGE DOES NOT RESULT IN SOIL
MOISTURE CONDITIONS THAT WILL CAUSE EXCESSIVE RUTTING DURING SEEDING AND MULCHING
OPERATIONS.  FAILURE TO MEET THIS REQUIREMENT WILL NOT BE AN ACCEPTABLE REASON FOR NOT
INSTALLING THE SEED AS SPECIFIED.

8. WHERE SEEDING OCCURS IN CLOSE PROXIMITY TO OTHER SITE IMPROVEMENTS OR AREAS TO REMAIN
UNDISTURBED SUCH AS EXISTING WETLANDS AND UPLANDS AREAS, CARE SHALL BE TAKEN TO NOT DISTURB
THE EXISTING CONDITIONS.  ANY AREAS DAMAGED DURING PLANTING OPERATIONS SHALL BE PROMPTLY
RESTORED TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION AT NO COST TO THE OWNER.

9. FOLLOWING NATIVE SEED MIX INSTALLATION, THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND CONTRACTOR SHALL
CONDUCT A SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION INSPECTION ON ALL SEEDED AREAS.  (SEE WARRANTY, MAINTENANCE
AND ACCEPTANCE PERIOD)

10. GENERAL INSTALLATION:

10.1. SEEDING OF NATIVE SEED MIXES SHALL OCCUR IN THE EARLY SPRING:
10.1.1. APRIL 15 THROUGH MAY 31.

10.2. DO NOT SOW SEED DURING ADVERSE WEATHER OR WHEN WIND SPEEDS EXCEED TEN MILES PER HOUR.
10.3. DO NOT SOW SEED IN AREAS WHERE STANDING WATER IS PRESENT.

11. GRADE PREPARATION:

11.1. SUBGRADE AND FINISH GRADE PREPARATION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SITE EARTHWORK
REQUIREMENTS, AND TOPSOIL SHALL BE A MINIMUM 4 INCHES DEEP IN NON-BIORETENTION AREAS AFTER
LIGHT COMPACTION TO PREVENT SETTLEMENT. BIORETENTION AREAS SHALL HAVE SOIL MIX PLACED PER
DETAIL.

11.2. PRIOR TO SEEDING, REPAIR ANY RUTS, RILLS, OR GULLIES GREATER THAN 2 INCHES IN DEPTH TO CREATE
SMOOTH CONTINUOUS GRADES.

11.3. IF THE PREPARED GRADE IS ERODED OR COMPACTED BY RAINFALL OR OTHER REASONS, REWORK THE
TOPSOIL TO THE FULL 4-INCH DEPTH.

11.4. IMMEDIATELY BEFORE SEEDING, SCARIFY, LOOSEN, FLOAT, AND DRAG TOPSOIL AS NECESSARY TO BRING
IT TO THE PROPER CONDITION.  REMOVE FOREIGN MATTER LARGER THAN 1-INCH DIAMETER.

11.5. NO FURTHER GRADE PREPARATION IS REQUIRED.
12. IF REQUIRED DUE TO CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCING, SEED THE SITE WITH A TEMPORARY COVER CROP TO

HOLD IT FOR SPRING SEEDING AS FOLLOWS:

12.1. IF SEEDED MAY 15 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 1: MIX OF 32 POUNDS PER ACRE OF SEED OATS (AVENA SATIVA)
AND 5 POUNDS PER ACRE OF ANNUAL RYE (LOLLIUM MULTIFLORUM). 

12.2. IF SEEDED SEPTEMBER 1 THROUGH OCTOBER 15:  20 POUNDS PER ACRE WINTER WHEAT (TRITICUM
AESTIVUM) OR REGREEN STERILE WHEAT/WHEATGRASS HYBRID (TRITICUM AESTIVUM X ELYTRIGIA
ELONGATAFROM).

13. BROADCASTING:

13.1. FOR SPRING SEEDING OF NATIVE SEED, SOW SEED DIRECTLY ONTO BARE GROUND OR GROUND WHERE
THE PREVIOUS YEAR'S PLANT STUBBLE HAS BEEN CUT TO 2-INCH HEIGHT.

13.2. INCREASE THE VOLUME OF THE BROADCASTED SEED MIX BY MIXING IT WITH AN APPROVED CARRIER.
ACCEPTABLE CARRIER MATERIAL INCLUDES MOISTENED COMPOST, PEAT MOSS, CORN COB BLAST MEDIA,
OR COARSE-GRADE VERMICULITE. SAND AND SAWDUST ARE UNACCEPTABLE CARRIER MATERIALS. USE
ONE BUSHEL BASKET OF CARRIER PER 1,000 SQUARE FEET OF AREA TO BE SEEDED (A BUSHEL EQUALS 8
GALLONS OR 1.24 CUBIC FEET).

13.2.1. USE HALF OF THE TOTAL SEED QUANTITY AND CROSS THE ENTIRE AREA TO BE SEEDED, EVENLY
SPREADING THE SEED. WALK PERPENDICULAR TO THE ORIGINAL SEEDING AND EVENLY BROADCAST
THE SECOND HALF OF THE SEED.

13.2.2. LIGHT SEEDS, AWNED SEEDS, OR BEARDED SEEDS TEND TO RISE TO THE TOP OF THE SPREADER,
THEREFORE, MIX SEED ACCORDINGLY AS PLANTING COMMENCES.

13.2.3. RAKE OR DRAG THE SEED INTO THE SOIL, BUT NOT MORE THAN 1/4-INCH DEEP.  ROLL THE AREA WITH
A ROLLER TO FIRM THE SEED INTO THE SOIL.  ROLLING IS NOT NECESSARY ON DORMANT SEEDINGS.

14. DRILL SEEDER OR DROP SEEDER/SPREADER:

14.1. FOR SPRING DRILL SEEDING, SOW SEED DIRECTLY ONTO BARE GROUND OR GROUND WHERE THE
PREVIOUS YEAR'S PLANT STUBBLE HAS BEEN CUT TO 2-INCH HEIGHT; FOR SPRING DROP SEEDING,
CULTIVATE THE GROUND BEFORE INSTALLING SEED MIX.

14.2. CHECK THE EQUIPMENT FREQUENTLY TO ENSURE THE SEED IS DISPERSING EVENLY AND IS NOT
CLOGGING.

14.3. IF THE EQUIPMENT IS NOT EQUIPPED WITH A ROLLER, PASS OVER THE SEEDED AREA WITH A ROLLER TO
FIRM THE SEED INTO THE SOIL.  ROLLING IS NOT NECESSARY WITH DORMANT SEEDING.

14.3.1. DO NOT MIX THE NATIVE SEED WITH ANY CARRIER MATERIAL.
14.3.2. EVENLY DISTRIBUTE THE SEED ACROSS THE ENTIRE SITE TO BE SEEDED.

14.4. KEEP THE TOPSOIL MOIST (TO A DEPTH OF 3 INCHES) FOR 3-6 WEEKS FOLLOWING SEEDING; AFTERWARD,
APPLY ONE INCH OF WATER DURING THE GROWING SEASON IF RAIN HAS NOT OCCURRED FOR MORE
THAN ONE WEEK. DO NOT APPLY WATER WITH SUCH A FORCE AS TO DISTURB SEED, SEEDLINGS, AND/OR
TOPSOIL, OR THAT WOULD RUN OFF SOIL SURFACE.

15. ALL AREAS OVER WHICH HAULING OPERATIONS HAVE BEEN CONDUCTED SHALL BE KEPT CLEAN ON A DAILY
BASIS. PROMPTLY REMOVE ALL MATERIALS SPILLED ON PAVEMENT.

16. UPON COMPLETION OF SEED INSTALLATION, REMOVE FROM THE SITE AND LEGALLY DISPOSE OF ALL TRASH
AND DEBRIS INCLUDING ANY MATERIAL REMOVED DURING GRADE PREPARATION.

17. RESTORE ANY EXISTING AREAS DAMAGED BY OPERATIONS UNDER THE CONTRACT.  RESTORATION SHALL
INCLUDE FINISH GRADING AND SEEDING AS REQUIRED TO MATCH EXISTING GRADE AND/OR WETLANDS, AND
MAINTENANCE OF RESTORED AREAS.

18. ANY DAMAGE BY THE CONTRACTOR TO ESTABLISHED OR NEWLY SEEDED AREAS NOT WITHIN THE PROJECT
SCOPE OF WORK SHALL BE REPAIRED AND RESEEDED AT NO COST TO THE OWNER.

FIRST MOWING

SECOND MOWING

THIRD MOWING

ACTIVITY TIMING SUGGESTED MOWING HEIGHTS REASON

LATE MAY- EARLY
JUNE

EARLY AUGUST

LATE OCTOBER

NO LESS THAN (6) INCHES

NO LESS THAN (12) INCHES

TARGET EARLY WEEDS

CONTROL WARM SEASON
WEED GROWTH

VEGETATION SHOULD BE
DORMANT

NTS

www.thesigmagroup.com
1300 West Canal Street
Milwaukee, WI  53233
Phone: 414-643-4200
Fax:  414-643-4210

TH
E

G R O U PSingle Source. Sound Solutions.

DRAWN BY:

DESIGN DATE:

PROJECT NO:

CHECKED BY:

APPROVED BY:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:

PLOT DATE:

NO. REVISION DATE

ISSUANCE DATE

7044 South Ballpark Drive
Franklin, WI  53132
Phone: 414-285-3470

HLY

2022-9-9

21234

PJI

CTC

L300

82
40

 O
LD

 L
O

O
M

IS
 R

D

B
A

D
A

X

FR
A

N
K

LI
N

, W
I

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

S

2023-07-11

I:\Mandel\21234 Ballpark Commons M1 Site\060 CAD\030_Production Sheets\400_Landscape\L300 Landscape Specifications.dwg

21
23

4
L3

00
AK

U
SK

E
20

23
.0

7.
11

----

PERMIT-BID SET                        2023-6-2

----
----
----
----
----

----

CITY RESUBMITTAL                  2023-7-11
----
----
----
----



 
 

1 

 CITY OF FRANKLIN  
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

 

Meeting of November 9, 2023 
 

Minor Amendment to PDD No. 37 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development staff recommends approval of the proposed amendments 
to Planned Development District No. 37. 

Project Name: PDD No. 37 (BadAx Flats) Minor Amendment 
Property Owner: Zim-Mar Properties, LLC 
Applicant: Department of Community Development 
Property Address/TKN: SE corner of Rawson Ave and Ballpark Dr / 754 9006 000 
Aldermanic District: District 2 
Zoning District: PDD 37 – The Rock Sports Complex/Ballpark Commons 
Staff Planner: Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate 
 

Introduction/Background 
In review of the BadAx Flats proposed development and Planned Development District No. 37, Planning 
Staff believes a correction is needed within Table 15-3.0442C.1. This Table references Table 15-
3.0442D.1. for a minimum total living area dwelling unit; however, that table does not contain a 
minimum dwelling unit size requirement. As such, the proper reference is to Table 15-3.0442.D.2. 
 
As this was likely a previous error made at the time the PDD was drafted, Planning Staff is now 
proposing that the City amend Table 15-3.0442C.1. Minimum Total Living Area per Residential 
Apartment Dwelling Unit (D.U.) in Mixed Use Commercial Buildings to reference Table 15-3.0442D.2. 
for “3 or more D.U.’s per Structure.” Below is this table and the proposed amendment.  
 

 

Item D.3. 



 
 

2 

 
Staff is also proposing an amendment to the minimum dwelling unit size to accommodate the proposed 
dwelling unit sizes of the BadAx Flats apartments. The proposed amendment is to Table 15-3.0442D.2. 
Average Dwelling Unit Size (Square Feet) for One (1) Bedroom Dwelling Units (a) for Thirteen (13) or 
More Dwelling Units per Structure from 700 square feet to 600 square feet. 
 
Below is this table showing the proposed change. Staff finds that the minimum unit size is more in line 
with the current market.  
 

 
 
Below is an excerpt from a previous staff report providing additional details regarding the minimum 
floor area reduction.  
 
Minimum floor area reduction: 
The applicant is proposing 2 studio apartments out of the total 78 apartments, these studio apartments 
would be located on the second and third floor and would have a floor area of 692 square feet. Per the 
PDD Ordinance No. 2019-2368, Table 15-3.0442.D.2, the minimum dwelling unit size is 700 square 
feet. 
 
It is noted that the minimum living area for commercial apartments is 900 square feet for most business 
zoning districts (i.e. B-1, B-2 and B-3). However, the local comprehensive plan recommends that “the 
City continue to review multi-family developments on a case-by-case basis, with particular emphasis 
upon neighborhood compatibility and high quality development (Chapter 6: Housing, page 6-37). This 
floor area reduction is not changing the land use, so neighborhood compatibly is not affected. 
 
City Development staff consulted with the Inspection Services Department regarding building code 
standards for studio apartments or efficiency dwellings units as described in the 2015 International 
Building Code®. Section 1208.4.1 states that “the unit shall have a living room of not less than 220 



 
 

3 

square feet (20.4 m2) of floor area. An additional 100 square feet (9.3 m2) of floor area shall be provided 
for each occupant of such unit in excess of two”. Therefore, the proposed studio apartments exceed the 
minimum area indicated in the building code. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
City Development staff recommends approval of the proposed amendments to Planned Development 
District No. 37.  



STATE OF WISCONSIN          CITY OF FRANKLIN       MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TABLE 15-3.0442C.1 AND TABLE 15-3.0442D.2 
OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 37 (THE ROCK SPORTS COMPLEX/BALLPARK COMMONS) 

TO CORRECT A REFERNCE WITHIN TABLE 15-3.0442C.1 RELATED TO 
DWELLING UNIT SIZE AND TO REDUCE THE AVERAGE DWELLING UNIT 

SIZE FOR A ONE BEDROOM DWELLING TO 600 SQUARE FEET 
(CITY OF FRANKLIN, APPLICANT) 

(AT APPROXIMATELY THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF  
WEST RAWSON AVENUE AND SOUTH BALLPARK DRIVE) 

             
 

WHEREAS, Section 15-3.0442 of the Unified Development Ordinance 
provides for and regulates Planned Development District No. 37 (The Rock Sports 
Complex/Ballpark Commons), same having been created by Ordinance No. 2012-
2089 and later amended by: Standards, Findings and Decision for a Special Exception 
to Certain Natural Resource Provisions Dated March 19, 2013; Ordinance No. 2013-
2101; Ordinance No. 2016-2212; Ordinance No. 2017-2278, Ordinance No. 2018-
2312, Resolution No. 2018-7339, Standards, Findings, and Decision for a Special 
Exception to Certain Natural Resource Provisions dated January 9, 2018, Ordinance 
No. 2018-2318, Ordinance No. 2018-2324, Ordinance No. 2018-2323 (re: Buildings 
B1 thru B4), 2018-2323, Ordinance No. 2019-2368, Ordinance No. 2021-2462 and 
Ordinance No. 2021-2488, with such District primarily being located at 7095 South 
Ballpark Drive, bearing Tax Key Nos. 708-8996-002, 744-1003-000, 744-1004-000, 
744-1005-000, 744-1007-000, 744-1008-000, 744-1009-000, 744-1010-000, 754-
9001-000, 754-9002-000, 754-9006-000, 754-9007-000, 754-9008-000, and is more 
particularly described below; and 

 
WHEREAS, Planned Development District No. 37 (The Rock Sports 

Complex/Ballpark Commons) currently includes those lands legally described as 
follows: 
 

PDD BOUNDARY 
PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; THE 
NORTHEAST 1/4, NORTHWEST 1/4, SOUTHEAST 1/4, AND SOUTHWEST 
1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4; AND THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND 
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 5 
NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 AND SOUTHEAST 
1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4; AND THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE 
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, 
IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN; 
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHEAST 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-____ 
Page 2 

 
1/4 OF SECTION 4; THENCE NORTH 88°42'47″ EAST ALONG THE SOUTH 
LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST 1/4 SECTION, 1452.10 FEET TO LOOMIS 
ROAD (STATE TRUNK HIGHWAY “36”) REFERENCE LINE AS SHOWN 
IN WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PLAT OF RIGHT 
OF WAY PROJECT NUMBER F064-I(5)/2240-02-22, DATED JULY 3, 1956 
AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 49°45'51″ WEST 
ALONG SAID REFERENCE LINE, 908.15 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVE; 
THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY 1280.09 FEET ALONG SAID REFERENCE 
LINE AND ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, WHOSE 
RADIUS IS 3819.72 FEET AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS SOUTH 40°09'15″ 
WEST, 1274.10 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH 
30°33'51″ WEST ALONG SAID REFERENCE LINE, 912.57 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 59°26'09″ WEST, 146.77 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 
STONE HEDGE SUBDIVISION ADDITION NO. 1; THENCE NORTH 
00°11'17″ WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID STONE HEDGE 
SUBDIVISION ADDITION, 2266.74 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY 
LINE OF WEST RAWSON AVENUE; THENCE NORTH 88°31'09″ EAST 
ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE 393.64 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 76°43'11″ EAST 212.76 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF 
PARCEL 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 3107; THENCE NORTH 
00°21'06″ WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID PARCEL 1 AND 
ALONG THE EAST LINE OF LOTS 14, 13, AND 12 OF BLOCK 1 OF 
WHITNALL VIEW SUBDIVISION ADDITION NO. 1, 809.21 FEET TO THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 12; THENCE SOUTH 88°41'11″ 
WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOTS 12 AND 11 OF SAID 
WHITNALL VIEW SUBDIVISION ADDITION, 484.57 FEET TO THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 11; THENCE NORTH 00°21'07″ 
WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF LOTS 10 AND 9 OF SAID WHITNALL 
VIEW SUBDIVISION, 400.06 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 
SAID LOT 9, SAID POINT BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE 
SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION; THENCE 
NORTH 88°41'11″ EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE, 544.58 FEET TO THE 
EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 4; THENCE SOUTH 
00°21'07″ EAST ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4, 
35.86 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°42'30″ EAST, 662.58 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE WEST 1/4 OF SAID 1/4 
SECTION; THENCE NORTH 00°22'39″ WEST, 1349.21 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 88°33'16″ EAST 1252.39, FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°19'12″ EAST, 
367.35 FEET; THENCE NORTH 54°02'33″ EAST, 648.24 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 88°33'16″ EAST, 204.06 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID 
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, BEING THE CENTERLINE OF SOUTH 
76TH STREET; THENCE SOUTH 00°19'12″ EAST ALONG SAID EAST 
LINE, 519.27 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID NORTHEAST  



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-____ 
Page 3 

 
1/4 OF SECTION 4; THENCE SOUTH 00°25'03″ EAST ALONG THE EAST 
LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, 1659.84 FEET TO SAID 
REFERENCE LINE; THENCE SOUTH 49°45'51″ WEST ALONG SAID 
REFERENCE LINE, 1561.74 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  
CONTAINING IN ALL 8,951,502 SQUARE FEET (205.498 ACRES) OF 
LAND, MORE OR LESS. 

 
WHEREAS, Table 15-3.0442C.1. incorrectly references Table 15-3.0442D.1. 

for a minimum total living area dwelling unit, and the proper reference being Table 
15-3.0442.D.2; and  

 
WHEREAS, City of Franklin Planning Department Staff have requested to 

correct the reference within Table 15-3.0442C.1.; and  
 
WHEREAS, Planning Department Staff has also requested to amend Table 15-

3.0442D.2. Average Dwelling Unit Size (Square Feet) for One (1) Bedroom Dwelling 
Units (a) for Thirteen (13) or More Dwelling Units per Structure from 700 square feet 
to 600 square feet. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Franklin Plan Commission on the 9th day of 

November, 2023, having reviewed the proposed amendments to Planned 
Development District No. 37 and thereafter having recommended to the Common 
Council that the proposed amendment be approved subject to the conditions and 
restrictions included herewith; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the petition and having 

concurred with the recommendation of the Plan Commission, and having determined 
that the proposed amendments to Planned Development District No. 37 (The Rock 
Sports Complex/Ballpark Commons) is consistent with the 2025 Comprehensive 
Master Plan of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, and that it will promote the health, 
safety and welfare of the Community. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of 
Franklin, Wisconsin, do ordain as follows: 
 
SECTION 1: Section 15-3.0102 (Zoning Map) of the Unified Development 

Ordinance of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, as previously 
amended, is hereby amended specifically and only with regard 
to the Planned Development District No. 37 located at 
approximately the southeast corner of West Rawson Avenue 
and South Ballpark Drive. 

  



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-____ 
Page 4 
 
 
SECTION 2: Table 153.0442C.1. of the Unified Development Ordinance of the 

City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended as follows: 
Minimum Total Living Area per Residential Apartment Dwelling 
Unit (D.U.) in Mixed Use Commercial Buildings For 3 or more 
D.U.’s per structure references Table 15-3.0442D.2.   

SECTION 3: Table 15-3.0442D.2. of the Unified Development Ordinance of 
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended as follows:  
Average Dwelling Unit Size (Square Feet) for One (1) Bedroom 
Dwelling Units (a) for Thirteen (13) or More Dwelling Units per 
Structure is 600 square feet. 

 
SECTION 4: All other applicable terms and provisions of §15-3.0442, shall 

apply to Planned Development District No. 37 (The Rock Sports 
Complex/Ballpark Commons) mixed-use development located 
at approximately the southeast corner of West Rawson Avenue 
and South Ballpark Drive, and all terms and provisions of §15-
3.0442 as existing immediately prior to the adoption of this 
Ordinance, except as amended hereunder, shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

 
SECTION 5: The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable.  

Should any term or provision of this ordinance be found to be 
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms 
and provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 6: All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this 
ordinance are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 7: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 
its passage and publication. 

 
Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 

Franklin this ______ day of _______________________, 2022, by Alderman 
___________________________. 

 
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 

Franklin this ______ day of _______________________, 2022. 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-____ 
Page 5 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
             
       John R. Nelson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______  ABSENT ______    
   
 



  

 1 

 C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N   

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 

Meeting of November 9, 2023 
Site Plan Amendment 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends approval of the proposed Site 
Plan, subject to the conditions of approval in the attached draft resolution. 
Project Name: Department of Public Works 
Property Owner: City of Franklin 
Applicant: John Nelson, Mayor, City of Franklin  
Property Address/Tax Key Number: 7979 W Ryan Rd/ 896 9990 001 
Aldermanic District: District 1 
Agent: Jon Wallenkamp, Kueny Archiects, LLC 
Zoning District:  I-1 Institutional District 
Use of Surrounding Properties: M-1 Limited Industrial (east and west),  
 B-3 Community Business District (north),  
 R-8 Multifamily Residential District (south)  
Application Request: Approval of a Site Plan to allow for development of a 

new storage facility and public drop off area. 
Staff Planner: Marion Ecks, AICP 
 
APPLICANT’S REQUEST 
The applicant, the City of Franklin’s Department of Public Works (DPW), proposes to construct 
a single-story storage building, a new drop site for yard waste, and additional stormwater 
ponds.  
 
CHARACTER OF THE SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA 
The property is zoned I-1 Institutional District. This location includes existing Public Works 
facilities including offices, salt and sand storage, and parking.  The southern portion of the 
site previously had two baseball diamonds on it which were used by the Lion’s Club and local 
sports leagues.  
 
There will be a fenced and landscaped berm along the south property line as a buffer 
between the DPW facility and the neighborhood to the south which is zoned R-8 Multifamily 
Residential.  The properties to the east are zoned M-1 Limited Industrial and contain storage 
and office space, single family homes, and a restaurant; vacant lands to the west are currently 
M-1 Limited Industrial; and to the north is vacant land zoned B-3 Community Business 
District.   
 
 

Item D.4. 



  

 2 

 
PROJECT ANALYSIS 
The property is zoned I-1 Institutional District. (§15-3.0312). The applicant is requesting 
approvals to develop an approximately 12,000 Sq. Ft. structure to park equipment, which 
would include indoor storage for office materials.  The building will have doors along the east 
and west facades. 
 
The proposed structure meets the setback requirements of the I-1 zoning district; review 
comments were provided for the requirements of that district. Staff notes that the applicant 
must provide a Natural Resource Protection Plan as part of the site plan approval; this 
condition of approval is reflected in the draft resolution.   
 
Request for Zoning Determination 
A shed or garage is defined as an accessory structure by the Unified Development Ordinance. 
The maximum allowable height for accessory structures in the I-1 district is 25’; the proposed 
structure is 28’ high and does not meet this requirement. Since this facility is part of the 
primary uses of the Public Works building, it may be determined that it is also a primary 
structure, and therefore would meet the requirements of the zoning. Primary structures in I-1 
zoning may have a maximum building height of 40’. In the absence of a designated Zoning 
Administrator, the applicant requests a determination from Plan Commission as to whether 
the proposed building may be considered a Principal Structure. 
 
§15-11.0103: Specific Words and Phrases. 
 
ACCESSORY STRUCTURE OR USE 
An "accessory structure or use" is one which: 
a. Is subordinate to and serves a principal structure or principal use; 
b. Is subordinate in area, extent, or purpose to the principal structure or principal use served; 
c. Contributes to the comfort, convenience, or necessity of occupants of the principal 

structure or principal use served; and 
d. Is located on the same zoning lot as the principal structure or principal use served. 

An "accessory use" includes, but is not limited to, the following: 
b. A garage, shed, or building for domestic storage;  
d.  Storage of merchandise normally carried in stock on the same lot or parcel with any 
retail service or business use, unless such storage is excluded by the district regulations; 
e. Storage of goods used in or produced by manufacturing activities on the same lot or 

parcel of ground with such activities, unless such storage is excluded by the district 
regulations; 

f. Off-street motor car parking areas, and loading and unloading facilities; 
i. Public utility facilities — telephone, electric, gas, water, and sewer lines, their supports 

and incidental equipment; 
 
BUILDING, PRINCIPAL 



  

 3 

A non-accessory building in which the principal use of the zoning lot on which it is located is 
conducted. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
City Development Staff recommends approval of the proposed Site Plan, subject to the 
conditions of approval in the attached draft resolution. 
 
 



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
PLAN COMMISSION 

[Draft 11/02/2023] 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-____ 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE PLAN AMENDMENT FOR THE  

DEVELOPMENT A NEW STORAGE FACILITY AND PUBLIC DROP OFF AREA, UPON  
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7979 W RYAN RD 

(BY JOHN NELSON, MAYOR, CITY OF FRANKLIN, APPLICANT,  
CITY OF FRANKLIN, PROPERTY OWNER) 

              

WHEREAS, John Nelson, Mayor, City of Franklin having petitioned the City of 
Franklin for the approval of a Site Plan Amendment to allow for development of a 
new storage facility and public drop off area, such Site Plan having been previously 
approved as part of a Zoning Permit approval for the City of Franklin Department of 
Public Works Facility and Storage Yard, on January 25, 1996; subsequently amended 
by RES 2017-005 on June 22, 2017; and RES 2019-7468 on February 19, 2019; upon 
property located at 7979 W Ryan Road, zoned I-1 Institutional District.  The property 
which is the subject of the application bears Tax Key No. 896 9990 001.  

WHEREAS, the development proposes a new storage facility and public drop 
off area and the Plan Commission having reviewed such proposal and having found 
same to be in compliance with the applicable terms and provisions of §15-3.0312: I-1 
Institutional District of the Unified Development Ordinance and in furtherance of 
those express standards and purposes of a site plan amendment review pursuant to 
Division 15-7.0100 of the Unified Development Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of 
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Site Plan Amendment for Department of Public Works, 
dated October 30, 2023 as submitted by John Nelson, Mayor, City of Franklin, as 
described above, is hereby approved subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. John Nelson, Mayor, City of Franklin, successors and assigns and any 
developer of the Department of Public Works project shall pay to the City of 
Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review 
fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of 
Franklin, for the Department of Public Works project, within 30 days of invoice 
for same.  Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified 



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS - SITE PLAN 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-_____ 
Page 2 
 

2 
 

Development Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the 
Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended 
from time to time. 

2. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the John Nelson, Mayor, 
City of Franklin and the Department of Public Works project for the property 
located at 7979 W Ryan Road: (i) being in compliance with all applicable 
governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) 
obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, 
required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented 
for this approval. 

3. The Department of Public Works project shall be developed in substantial 
compliance with the plans City file-stamped October 30, 2023. 

4. The Plan Commission determines that the proposed storage building is part of 
the principal use of the development, and is therefore a principal structure 
subject to the requirements of I-1 Institutional District (§15-3.0312.C). 

5. The applicant shall provide a Natural Resource Protection Plan or letter of no 
resource (§15-7.0102.G, §15-7.0103.J) prior to the issuance of a building 
permit.  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin, that the Department of Public Works development as depicted upon the 
plans City file-stamped October 30, 2023 attached hereto and incorporated herein, 
shall be developed and constructed within one year from the date of adoption of 
this Resolution, or this Resolution and all rights and approvals granted hereunder 
shall be null and void, without any further action by the City of Franklin; and the Site 
Plan Amendment for the property located at 7979 W Ryan Road, as previously 
approved, is amended accordingly. 
 
  Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2023. 
 

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City 
of Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2023. 

 
 



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS - SITE PLAN 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-_____ 
Page 3 
 

3 
 

       APPROVED: 
 
ATTEST:      _________________________________  
        John R. Nelson, Mayor 
___________________________________      
Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

7979 W. Ryan Road
TKN 896 9990 001

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

I-1 

B-3 

M-1 

M-1 

R-8 

R-8 R-8 

R-7 

R-8 

76
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

RYAN                           RD  

80
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

 

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 390 780195 Feet

Property

 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

7979 W. Ryan Road
TKN 896 9990 001

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

76
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

RYAN                           RD  
PARK CIRCLE WAY

80
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

 

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 390 780195 Feet

Property

 



 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
October 30, 2023 
 
 
RE: City of Franklin 
 

1. Would you please provide me with a project narrative? 
The City of Franklin is constructing a new 12,000 square foot storage facility within their existing 
DPW yard. The new facility will be constructed using architectural precast walls with architectural 
metal roof canopies on the north and south sides of the facility. The new facility will house 
existing equipment that currently sits outside.  
 
Along with the new storage facility a new residential drop-off site will be relocated from north off 
Ryan Road to the west off 80th street. The existing north drives off Ryan Road will also be 
relocated as part of the Ryan Road DOT projects.  
 
The south side of the site will be built up creating a green landscape wall with a top berm 
section. The landscape wall will be an average of eighteen feet high and covered with coniferous 
trees. 

2. Current and anticipate future hours of operation 
No Change. 

 
3. Activities performed on the site 

No Change. 
 

4. Floor Area Ratio 
Required  1.5 max. Actual  0.49 
 
FLOOR AREA RATIO 
 

(PA)  TOTAL PROPERTY AREA     859,045 SF  
(NPA)  NET PROPERTY AREA        765,428 SF  
(BA)  EXISTING TOTAL BUILDING AREA   38,981 SF 

PROPOSED STORAGE FACILITY  12,000 SF 
TOTAL NEW SITE BUILDING AREA  50,981 SF 

     
RATIO (BA / NPA)        0.067  - Max Allowable .63 (Net) .38 ( Gross) 
LANDSCAPE SURFACE RATIO (LSR) 0.94  - Min. Required 0.3  
 

Sincerely 
 
Kueny Architects, LLC 
Jon P. Wallenkamp, AIA, ALA 
Principal 



1.0KUENY ARCHITECTS, LLC
10505 CORPORATE DRIVE - SUITE 100  PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WI 53158 PHONE (262) 857-8101     FAX (262) 857 8103

GENERAL NOTES

1. All concrete to test 4000 psi in 28 days.
2. Verify all dimensions, access, utilities and working conditions in the field.
3. Conform to all applicable codes, ordinances and safety standards.
4. Obtain and pay for all required permits and fees.
5. Notify Architect immediately if work cannot proceed as shown on Drawings or as described in the 

Specifications.
6. No concrete to be poured without Architect's prior review.
7. All Contractor's to co-operate with all trades, Owner's and Architect's representatives.
8. Leave site clean, neat and free of debris at all times.
9. Each Prime and Sub-contractor is responsible for having read each page of the Specifications, Drawings, 

Addenda and Change Orders.
10.  Guard against interfering with Owner's operations.
11.  These Drawings contain no provisions or procedures for on-site safety.  Each Contractor and their 

employees are responsible to follow all laws and ordinances and provide their own engineering to provide a 
safe work place.

12.  The locations of existing underground utilities, shown on these Drawings, are shown in an approximate way 
only and have not been independently verified by the Owner or its representatives.  The Contractor shall 
determine the exact location of all existing utilities before commencing work, and agrees to be fully responsible 
for any and all damages which might be occassioned by the Contractor's failure to exactly locate and preserve 
any and all underground utilities.

13.  Services perform for this project have been conducted in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill 
ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently practicing in this area under similar budget and 
time constraints.  No warranty, expressed or implied, is made.

MATERIAL INDICATIONS

DRAWING LEGEND

New or Required Point Elevation

Existing Point Elevation

Existing Contours

New or Required Contours

A          Grid Lines

1          

3.1          
Building Section

Wall Section

Room/Space Number

Door Number

SHEET INDEX

Earth Backfill

Rigid Insulation

Concrete Block

Aluminum

Lumber (Rough)

Steel

Sand Fill

Concrete

Finished Wood

Stone Fill

Plywoo
d
Batt Insulation

1          

4.1          

Room Name
#          

101A          
Interior Elevation

Detail Section
1          

5.1          
1          

7.1          

1          

5.1          

Detail Number

Page Number

Exterior Elevation
1          

2.1          
#          Wall Tag

+ 100.0

+ 100.0

+ 100.0

+ 100.0

OH Door Number
OH

101A          

CONSULTANTS

City of Franklin
Storage Facility and Drop off Site

7979 W Ryan Road Franklin WI
53132

October 16, 2023

City of Franklin

Storage Facility and Drop off Site

ARCHITECT

Kueny Architects
Phone: (262) 857-8101
Address: 10505 Corporate Drive, Suite 100 Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158

Architect of Record - Jon P. Wallenkamp

CIVIL

TerraTec Engineering
Phone: (262) 377-9905
Address: W67N222 Evergreen Blvd., Suite 205 Cedarburg, 
WI 53012

Engineer of Record - Linda Johnson

TITLE

01 Title Sheet - Phase I

ARCHITECTURAL

1A101 Storage Building - Phase I - Site Plan

1A102 Landscape Plan

1A201 Storage Building - Floor Plan - Overall

1A210 Storage Building - Phase I - Exterior Elevations

1R100 Storage Building - Phase I - Rendering

1R101 Storage Building - Phase I - Rendering



GRASS GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

WOODS

WOODS

5"

8"

7"

7"

1
0
"

1
0
"

6"

6"

1
2
"

1
0
"

1
0
"

1
2
"

1
2
"

7"

8"

7"

7
"

8"

8"

8"

7"

7"

9"

9
"

12"

1
2
"

1
0
"

5
"

5
"

5
"

7
"7

"

8
"

8
"

7
"1
2
"

2
0
"

8
"

8
"

8
"

8
"

8
"

ST
ST

CB

CBST

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB CB

CB
CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

WV WV

WVW
V

W
V

W
V

WV
W
V

WV

WV

WV

WV

WV

W
V

SA

SA

MH

G
V

P
R
O
P

P
R
O
P

P
R
O
P

P
R
O
P

P
R
O
P

P
R
O
P

P
R
O
P

P
R
O
P

P
R
O
P

P
R
O
P

P
R
O
P

P
R
O
P

P
R
O
P

P
R
O
P

IP IP

IP

IP

IPIPIP

IP

IP
IP IP
IPIP IP

IP

IP

IP

G
U
Y

T

P
O
S
T

FL
A
G

F
L
A
G

E
W

 B
E

W
E

W

E
WE

W

E
W

E
W

E
W

E
W

E
W

E
W

E
W

E
W

E
W

 C
L
S

?

?

?

?

?

??

?

S. 80TH
STREET

W
. R

Y
A

N
 R

O
A

D

POND

T
A

N
K

T
A

N
K

SOIL PILE

SOIL PILE

ROCK
PILE

STOCKPILE

STOCKPILE

STOCK PILE

SAND PILE

SOIL/ROCK
PILE

7
4
5
.6

1

7
3
9
.3

6

7
4
5
.6

7

7
4
5
.6

4

7
4
5
.5

4

7
4
5
.6

7

7
4
5
.6

6

7
4
4
.8

5
7
4
4
.8

5
7
4
4
.9

0

F F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F FF F F F F F F F F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F FF

S
TS
T

S
T

S
T

B
C5

B'
C5

A
C5

A'
C5

CB100

CB101

STMH100

CB102

STMH101

CB103

CB104

CB105

CB106

C
B

C
B

C
B

WV

FFE = 743.20

SA

SA

3
.5

%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

1
.5

%

4.0%

1.
5%

3.5%

4
.3

%
1
.8

%

7
5
0

+
744.0 + 745.0 + 746.0 + 747.0 + 748.0

747.2
747.2

746.6

747.2

742.80

745.2 745.2

743.8

742

741

740

738

735

730

726

721

739

740

743

743

742

747

746 747

746

745

748

744

744

745

745

746

7
4
6

743

7
2

1

7
2

6

7
2

1

7
2

6

7
2

67
2

4

725

726

724

721

725

720

722
723

724

726

723

722

??

CB 1932
RIM = 749.44
SW IE (6") = 747.74

CB 1918
RIM IE = 749.32

N IE (8") = 746.72
SW IE (12") = 746.72

CB 2006
RIM = 749.46

NW IE (6") = 746.36

STMH 2313
RIM = 736.30
NW IE (12") = 732.30
NE ( 18") = 733.15
S IE (30") = 731.95
W IE (30") = 732.05

CB 2218
RIM = 744.79
SW IE (12") = 741.19

CB 2211
RIM = 744.84

N IE (4") = 742.64
SE IE (10") = 742.34

CB 2123
RIM = 743.18
SE IE (12") = 739.43
S IE (12") = 739.78
NW IE (10") = 740.78

CB 2087
RIM = 741.49
S IE (12") = 738.19
NW IE (12") = 738.19

CB 2233
RIM = 742.77
N IE (12") = 739.27
SE IE (12") = 739.27

CB 1706
RIM = 743.27
S IE (12") = 740.03

CB 2038
RIM = 747.45

E IE ( 15") = 741.60
W IE (15") 741.70

N IE (8") = 742.6 (RECORD)

CB 2143
RIM = 746.60

N IE (27") = 739.45
NE IE (12") = 741.00

S IE (30") = 739.45
W IE (15") = 740.10

CB 2102
RIM = 742.53
N IE (12") = 740.18

18" RCP PIPE
IE = 735.39

CB 1309
RIM = 748.98

E IE (15") = 743.18
NW IE (15") = 743.18

N IE (8") = 745.0 (RECORD)

INLET 2288
RIM = 740.20

FULL OF WATER

INLET 2273
RIM = 741.47

N IE (12") = 734.22
S IE (15") = 734.12

NW IE (12") = 736.77

INLET 2259
RIM = 743.04

S IE (12") = 737.59

CB 3030
RIM = 748.70

N IE (15") = 743.80
SE IE (15") = 743.80

CB 1933
RIM = 748.71

NE IE (6") = 746.41
NE IE (12") = 744.41

SE IE (6") = 746.41
S IE (15") = 744.41

CB 2194
RIM = 744.38
NE IE (6") = 741.58
SE IE (6") = 742.08
SW IE (12") = 741.83

INLET 2298
RIM = 739.18
FULL OF WATER

WASTE OIL AREA

GRASS GRASS

GRASS

WOODS

RETAINING WALL

RETAINING WALL

CB 2662
RIM = 725.20
W IE (15") =
722.20

CB 2646
RIM = 724.94
E IE (15") = 719.79
S IE (15") = 719.44

CB 2053
RIM = 743.69

N IE (30") = 737.79
S IE (30") = 737.79

12" RCP PIPE
IE = 730.26

STMH 1019
RIM = 748.36

N IE (18") = 743.06
E IE (12") = 743.76
S IE (18") = 742.76

W IE (15") = 742.86

INLET 1244
RIM = 748.06
E IE (15") = 742.86
NW IE (15") = 742.86

INLET 1245
RIM = 748.11
W IE (12") = 744.16

INLET 1285
RIM = 750.03

W IE (12") = 746.53

INLET 1043
RIM = 750.10
E IE (15") = 745.85
W IE (15") = 745.85
NW IE (8") = 748.60

STMH 1042
RIM = 750.33
E IE (12") = 745.83
S IE (18") = 745.58
W IE (15") = 745.58

CB 1081
RIM = 751.88
S IE (12") = 747.98

CB 2160
RIM = 748.21

N IE (27") = 740.31
NE IE (12") = 741.01

S IE (27") = 740.31

CB# 2 (RECORD)
RIM = 750.20

N IE (10") = 747.70

CB# 3 (RECORD)
RIM = 750.20

N IE (6") = 746.55
S IE (10") = 746.28
E IE (15") = 746.03

EX SAN LINE (RECORD)

16∅" SAN STUB
IE = 704.84
(PER AS BUILT RECORD)

GRASS

WOODS

16"∅ PVC WATER

?

731

731

730

730

740

735

743

742

741

734

734

7
3

1

7
3

1 7
3

47
3

4

FFE = 744.20

FFE = 743.21

FFE = 749.47

F

F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F

F FF F F F F F

F
F

F
F

F

F FF F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F

F
F

F

F FF F F F

0 80 120 16040

GRAPHIC SCALE

existing
DPW 

facility

drop site

R
y
a
n
 R

o
a
d

80th Street

existing 
salt 

structureSITE GRADING BY 

OWNER

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 H

o
ld

in
g
 

T
a
n
k

S
a
n
it
a
ry

 E
x
te

n
s
io

n
 t

o
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y

New 20' 
Gate

3
4
2
'-
2
"

2
3
6
'-
0
"

5
7
8
'-
2
"

2
9
6
'-
8
 3

/4
"

6
'-
0
"

2
4
'-
0
"

2
4
'-
0
"

139'-8"

8
5
'-
8
"

1
3
3
'-
8
"

194'-0"

2
0
9
'-
7
"

709'-2"

3
8
9
'-
1
1
 7

/3
2
"

1
1
1
'-
4
"

210'-0"

2
4
'-
2
 1

/4
"

3
6
'-
0
"

3
6
'-
0
"

NEW CURB AND GUTTER

NEW CURB AND GUTTER

NEW SECTION OF ROAD PER CIVIL PLANS

32'-0"20'-0"

New 30' 
Gate

REMOVABLE BARRIERS - BY OWNER

NEW ASPHALT PAVING PER CIVIL PLANS

existing 
salt/sand 
structure

NEW ENTRY DRIVE TO PROPERTY LINE BY 
THE DOT - SEE DOT PLANS

NEW ENTRY DRIVE PER CIVIL PLANS
CONCRETE TYPE - 'C'

3
5
'-
0
"

55'-0"

R
 1

2' -
 0

"

R
 12' - 0"

NEW ENTRY DRIVE TO PROPERTY LINE BY 
THE DOT - SEE DOT PLANS

NEW ENTRY DRIVE PER CIVIL PLANS
CONCRETE TYPE - 'C'

19'-6"

20'-7"

NEW PROPOSED 
STORAGE 

FACILITY12,000 SQ/FT

419'-9 3/32"

DISTANCE TO SOUTH PROPERTY LINE 

D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 T

O
 E

A
S

T
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 L

IN
E

 

D
IS

T
A

N
C

E
 T

O
 W

E
S

T
 R

O
W

 L
IN

E
 

DISTANCE TO NORTH PROPERTY LINE FUTURE EDGE OF PAVEMENT

4
5
'-
0
"

New 20 
'Gate

New 20 
'Gate

30'-0"

3
0
' R

E
A

R
 Y

A
R

D
 S

E
T

B
A

C
K

 

2
0
'-
0
"

20' SITE YARD SETBACK - CORNER LOT

2
0
'-
0
"

20' SITE YARD SETBACK - CORNER LOT

30'-0"

3
0
' F

R
O

N
T

 Y
A

R
D

 S
E

T
B

A
C

K
 

FLOOR AREA RATIO

(PA)    TOTAL PROPERTY AREA 859,045 SF

(NPA)  NET PROPERTY AREA 765,428 SF

(BA)     EXISTING TOTAL BUILDING AREA 38,981 SF

PROPOSED STORAGE FACILITY 12,000 SF

TOTAL NEW SITE BUILDING AREA 50,981 SF

RATIO (BA / NPA) 0.067 - Max Allowable .63(Net) .38(Gross)

REMOVABLE BARRIERS - BY OWNER

ALTERNATE BID #1

BASE BID #1

BASE BID #1

NEW ENTRY DRIVE PER CIVIL PLANS
CONCRETE TYPE - 'C'

NEW ENTRY DRIVE TO PROPERTY LINE BY 
THE DOT - SEE DOT PLANS

BASE BID #1

ALTERNATE BID #2

1A501

13

kuenyarch.com ©2020 Kueny Architects L.L.C. - All Rights Reserved       

PLAN NORTH

SCALE:  1" = 40'-0"

1A101City of Franklin - Storage Facility and Drop off Site

October 16, 2023

Storage Building - Phase I - Site Plan

7979 W Ryan Road Franklin WI 53132



F F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F FF F F F F F F F F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F FF

S
TS
T

S
T

S
T

B
C5

B'
C5

A
C5

A'
C5

CB100

CB101

STMH100

CB102

STMH101

CB103

CB104

CB105

CB106

C
B

C
B

C
B

EMERGENCY SPILLWAY
SEE DETAIL ON SHEET C6

WV

FFE = 743.20

SA

SA

3
.5

%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

1
.5

%

4.0%

1
.5

%

3.5%

4
.3

%
1
.8

%

7
5
0

+
744.0 + 745.0 + 746.0 + 747.0 + 748.0

747.2
747.2

746.6

747.2

742.80

745.2 745.2

743.8

742

741

740

738

735

730

726

720

721

716

739

740

743

743

742

747

746 747

746

745

748

744

744

745

74
5

746

7
4
6

743

716

7
2
1

7
2
6

7
2
1

7
2
6

7
2
67

2
4

725

726

724

721

725

720

722
723

724

726

716

723

722

STMH 2313
RIM = 736.30
NW IE (12") = 732.30

NE ( 18") = 733.15
S IE (30") = 731.95

W IE (30") = 732.05

18" RCP PIPE
IE = 735.39

CB 2662
RIM = 725.20
W IE (15") =

722.20

CB 2646
RIM = 724.94
E IE (15") = 719.79

S IE (15") = 719.44

12" RCP PIPE
IE = 730.26

STMH 1019
RIM = 748.36

N IE (18") = 743.06

E IE (12") = 743.76
S IE (18") = 742.76

W IE (15") = 742.86

INLET 1244
RIM = 748.06
E IE (15") = 742.86

NW IE (15") = 742.86

INLET 1245
RIM = 748.11
W IE (12") = 744.16

16∅" SAN STUB
IE = 704.84
(PER AS BUILT RECORD)

WOODS

16"∅ PVC WATER

?

731

731

730

726

730

726

WET POND 1

WET POND 2
740

735

743

742

741

734

734

7
3
1

7
3
1 7

3
47
3
4

F

F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F
F

F

F FF F F F F F

F
F

F
F

F

F FF F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F

F
F

F

F F F

F FF F F F F F F

F
F

F

F FF F F F F F

drop site

SITE GRADING BY 

OWNER

New 20' 
Gate

2
4
'�
0
"

2
4
'�
0
"

139'�8"

8
5
'�
8
"

1
3
3
'�
8
"

194'�0"

2
0
9
'�
7
"

3
8
9

'�
1

1
 7

�3
2
"

1
1
1
'�
4
"

210'�0"

2
4
'�
2

 1
�4

"

3
6
'�
0
"

3
6
'�
0
"

NEW CURB AND GUTTER

NEW CURB AND GUTTER

NEW SECTION OF ROAD PER CIVIL PLANS

32'�0"20'�0"

New 30' 
Gate

REMOVABLE BARRIERS - BY OWNER

NEW ASPHALT PAVING PER CIVIL PLANS

NEW PROPOSED 
STORAGE 

FACILITY12,000 SQ/FT

419'�9 3�32"

DISTANCE TO SOUTH PROPERTY LINE 
D

IS
T
A
N
C
E
 T

O
 E

A
S
T
 P

R
O

P
E
R

T
Y
 L

IN
E
 

D
IS

T
A
N
C
E
 T

O
 W

E
S
T
 R

O
W

 L
IN

E
 

New 20 
'Gate

New 20 
'Gate

30'�0"

3
0

' 
R

E
A
R

 Y
A
R

D
 S

E
T
B

A
C
K
 

2
0
'�
0
"

20' SITE YARD SETBACK - CORNER LOT

2
0
'�
0
"

20' SITE YARD SETBACK - CORNER LOT

F���R AREA RATI�

(PA)    T�TA� PR�PERTY AREA 859�045 SF

(�PA) �ET PR�PERTY AREA 765�428 SF

(BA)     EXISTI�G T�TA� BUI�DI�G AREA   38�981 SF

PR�P�SED ST�RAGE FACI�ITY   12�000 SF

T�TA� �EW SITE BUI�DI�G AREA   50�981 SF

RATI� (BA " �PA) 0#067 $ %ax A(()wab(e #63 (�et) " #38 (Gr)ss)

�A�DSCAPE SURFACE RATI� 0#94 $ %i1# A(()wab(e 0#30

REMOVABLE BARRIERS - BY OWNER

ALTERNATE BID #1

BASE BID #1

DF ( 3 )

DF ( 3 )

DF ( 3 )

DF ( 3 )

DF ( 3 )

DF ( 3 )

DF ( 3 )

BHS ( 4 )

BHS ( 4 )

BHS ( 4 )

BHS ( 4 )

BHS ( 4 )

BHS ( 4 )

AA ( 3 )

AA ( 3 )

AA ( 3 )

AA ( 3 )

AA ( 3 )

AA ( 3 )

AA ( 3 )

�A� 
GATE #3

�A� 
GATE #1

�A� 
GATE #2

�A� GATE #4

�A� 
GATE #5

�A� 
GATE #6

0 80 120 16040

GRAPHIC SCALE

T�P HI�� BER�

T�P HI�� BER�

T�P HI�� BER�

T�P HI�� BER�

8'�0"

3
'�
0
"

6
'�
0
"

2
'�
9
"

3
"

(32 31 13) VI�Y� C�ATED 
CHAI���I�$ FE�CI�G

(32 31 13) FE�CE �I�E 
VERTICA� P�ST 

(32 31 13) FE�CE P�ST 
F�U�DATI��( DESIG�ED BY 
FE�CI�G C��TARCT�R

) PRIVACY S�ATS AT DU�PSTER E�C��SURE( ��CATI�� PER SITE P�A�S

(32 31 13) PRIVACY S�ATS 
PER SPECS

kuenyarch.com ©2020 Kueny Architects L.L.C. - All Rights Reserved       

PLAN NORTH

SCA�E3 As i1dicated

1A102City of Franklin - Storage Facility and Drop off Site

October 16, 2023

�a1dscape P(a1

7979 W Ryan Road Franklin WI 53132

1" 8 40'$0"1 DPW $ �EVE� 1 $ �a1dsacape P(a1

LANDSCAPE SCHEDULE

;ey B)ta1ica( �a=e C)==)1 �a=e

P(a1ti1g
Si?e

P(a1ti1g
Dista1ce C)==e1ts I� USE

TREE

BHS Picea G.auca var. De3sata B.ac6 Hi..s Spruce 3�1�2" Ca.. Per P.a3 5'�0" � 6'�0" Ta.. Yes

AA Thu9a �ccide3ta.is A;erica3 Arb=vitae 3�1�2" Ca.. Per P.a3 5'�0" � 6'�0" Ta.. Yes

DF Pseud=tsuga ;e3?iesii D=ug.as Fir 3�1�2" Ca.. Per P.a3 5'�0" � 6'�0" Ta.. Yes

1"2" 8 1'$0"2 Sta1dard Fe1ce Detai(



F

F

F

A
V

AV

A
V

AV

AV

AV

AV

FS

TS

TS

AV

F
A

C
P

seasonal storage

S100

Brine Room

S102

S2

S2

S3

S3

138'-0"

138'-0"

138'-0"

SASA

SDSD

SFSF

8
4
'-
0
"

5
5
'-
1
0
"

2
8
'-
2
"

4
'-
6
"

2
4
'-
1
0
"

outside wash-out

889

small units / city
hall storage

S101

2'-9 1/4"10'-0"

7
'-
1
0
"

7
'-
1
0
"

1A2101
1A2102

1A2103

2
4
'-
0
"

2
4
'-
0
"

30'-2"

1A2104

1
2
'-
1
0
"

1
2
'-
0
"

1
2
'-
1
0
"

1
2
'-
0
"

1
2
'-
0
"

1
2
'-
0
"

1
2
'-
0
"

2'-10" 16'-0" 2'-0" 16'-0" 2'-0" 16'-0" 2'-0" 16'-0" 2'-0" 16'-0" 2'-0" 16'-0" 13'-0"

4'-4"

12'-0" 5'-10"

S101A

RR

S103

S
1
0

0
A

4'-0"

SBSB

SCSC

SESE

OH
S100A

OH
S100B

OH
S100C

OH
S100D

OH
S100E

OH
S100F

OH
S101

OH
S100G

OH
S100H

OH
S100I

OH
S100J

OH
S100K

OH
S102A

OH
S102B

(03 30 00) CONCRETE SLAB 
TYPE "C" - 8" CONCRETE SLAB 

OVER 8" CRUSHED STONE

(03 30 00) CONCRETE SLAB 
TYPE "C" - 8" CONCRETE SLAB 

OVER 8" CRUSHED STONE

(03 30 00) CONCRETE SLAB 
TYPE "C" - 8" CONCRETE SLAB 

OVER 8" CRUSHED STONE

(03 30 00) CONCRETE SLAB 
TYPE "C" - 8" CONCRETE SLAB 

OVER 8" CRUSHED STONE

(03 30 00) 
CONCRETE SLAB 

TYPE "C" - 8" 
CONCRETE SLAB 

OVER 8" CRUSHED 
STONE

S1

S1

S4

S4

0 16 24 328

GRAPHIC SCALE

1

1A301

1

1A301

2

1A301

2

1A301

3

1A301

3

1A301

4

1A301

1

1A401

2

1A401

1

1A402

2

1A402

3

1A402

4

1A402

5

1A402

1

1A403

2

1A4033

1A403

4

1A403

5

1A403

4'-8"

S103A

S102A

S102B

2
" 

/ 
1

'-
0

"

1
/8

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

1
/8

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

1
/8

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"
1

/8
" 

/ 
1

'-
0

"

1
/8

" 
/  

1
'-
0

"

1
/8

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

1

1A404

21'-4" 9'-4" 16'-0"

3
5
'-
4
"

8
'-
0
"

4
0
'-
8
"

4'-8"

1
0
'-
8
"

2
4
'-
8
"

2'-0"16'-0"2'-0"16'-0"2'-10"

2

1A404

1
/8

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

-3"

20'-8"

2
0
'-
8
"

2
1
'-
4
"

2
1
'-
4
"

2
0
'-
8
"

2
0
'-
8
"

2
1
'-
4
"

1
3
'-
1
0
"

179'-4"

20'-8" 20'-8"

(03 30 00) TYPICAL CONTROL JOINTS - MAX 14'-0"X 14'-0"

-0'-6" -0'-6"

-0'-4"

-0'-4"

-0'-0" -0'-0"

(03 30 00) TYPICAL CONTROL JOINTS - MAX 14'-0"X 14'-0"

(03 30 00) TYPICAL CONTROL JOINTS - MAX 14'-0"X 14'-0"

kuenyarch.com ©2020 Kueny Architects L.L.C. - All Rights Reserved       

PLAN NORTH

SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

1A201City of Franklin - Storage Facility and Drop off Site

October 16, 2023

Storage Building - Floor Plan - Overall

7979 W Ryan Road Franklin WI 53132



F

F

F

A
V

AV

A
V

AV

AV

AV

AV

FS
TS

TS

AV

F
A

C
P

seasonal storage

S100

Brine Room

S102

4
'-
6
"

2
4
'-
1
0
" outside wash-out

889

small units / city
hall storage

S101

7
'-
1
0
"

2
4
'-
0
"

2
4
'-
0
"

4'-4"

RR

S103

+
5
.5

+
0
.1

+
4
.2

+
2
.8

+
1
.7

+
5
.5

+
0
.1

+
4
.2

+
2
.8

+
1
.7

+
5
.5

+
0
.1

+
4
.2

+
2
.8

+
1
.7

+
5
.5

+
0
.1

+
4
.2

+
2
.8

+
1
.7

+5.5+0.1 +4.2+2.8+1.7

+5.5+0.1 +4.2+2.8+1.7

+5.5+0.1 +4.2+2.8+1.7

+
5

.5
+

0
.1

+
4

.2
+

2
.8

+
1

.7

+
5

.5
+

0
.1

+
4

.2
+

2
.8

+
1

.7

+
5

.5
+

0
.1

+
4

.2
+

2
.8

+
1

.7

+
5

.5
+

0
.1

+
4

.2
+

2
.8

+
1

.7

+5.5 +0.1+4.2 +2.8 +1.7

+5.5 +0.1+4.2 +2.8 +1.7

+5.5 +0.1+4.2 +2.8 +1.7

6
6
'-
7
 5

/8
"

67'-11"

68'-2"

6
9
'-
0
"

kuenyarch.com ©2020 Kueny Architects L.L.C. - All Rights Reserved       

PLAN NORTH

SCALE:  1/16" = 1'-0"

1A211City of Franklin - Storage Facility and Drop off Site

October 16, 2023

Site Lighting Plan

7979 W Ryan Road Franklin WI 53132

1/16" = 1'-0"1 DPW - LEVEL 1 -Floor Plan - Lighting Plan



kuenyarch.com ©2020 Kueny Architects L.L.C. - All Rights Reserved       

SCALE:

1R100City of Franklin - Storage Facility and Drop off Site

October 16, 2023

Storage Building - Phase I - Rendering

7979 W Ryan Road Franklin WI 53132

NORTHEAST 
VIEW



kuenyarch.com ©2020 Kueny Architects L.L.C. - All Rights Reserved       

SCALE:

1R101City of Franklin - Storage Facility and Drop off Site

October 16, 2023

Storage Building - Phase I - Rendering

7979 W Ryan Road Franklin WI 53132

NORTHWEST 
VIEW



  

 1 

 C I T Y  O F  F R A N K L I N   

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 

Meeting of November 9, 2023 
Site Plan Amendment 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Development Staff recommends approval of the proposed Site 
Plan, subject to the conditions of approval in the attached draft resolution. 
Project Name: WE Energies Front Entrance 
Property Owner: WI ELECTRIC POWER CO  
Applicant: Ryan Lee, WEC Energy Group  
Property Address/Tax Key Number: 4800 W Rawson Avenue/ 740 9988 006 
Aldermanic District: District 3 
Agent: Conlynn Goetsch, Continuum Architects 
Zoning District:  I-1 Institutional District 
Use of Surrounding Properties: B-3 Community Business District, M-1 Limited Industrial 

and OL-2 Overlay (west),  
 R-5 Suburban Single-Family Residence (north and east),  
 R-6 Suburban Single-Family (south)  
Application Request: To allow for redesign of the building atrium and entry. 
Staff Planner: Marion Ecks, AICP 
 
The applicants request is for after-the-fact approval of an amendment to the Site Plan of the 
WE Energies Oakbrook Service Center at 4800 W Rawson Avenue. The applicant proposes a 
new front entrance area with redesigned roof and glazing, update landscaping, windows on 
the west elevation of the building, and the addition of a fenced-in employee outdoor seating 
area in front of the new atrium.  The surrounding properties include a Kwik Trip to the east, as 
well as the Sendiks development, which includes a CVS, and a bank. On the north, east, and 
south are residential developments.   
 
The applicant initially contacted the Planning Department in 2022 to request feedback on the 
proposed design.  At that time, the Department reviewed a draft set of plans that proposed a 
limited scope of work did not require Planning approvals.  In 2023 the applicant subsequently 
applied for Sign Permits for new signage on the revised atrium.  Materials provided with that 
application included elevations of the current design, which includes changes to landscaping 
and other items requiring Plan Commission’s approval. 
 
PROJECT ANALYSIS 
The property is zoned I-1 Institutional District (§15-3.0312).  
 

Item D.5. 



  

 2 

The applicant is requesting approvals to redevelop the front atrium, altering the front 
elevation by removing “solar collectors” which are like a sunroom in appearance, and a metal 
roof over the main entrance. In their place the applicant has installed metal and cement 
panel, updated landscaping, and added a seating area. Windows were also added to the west 
façade.  
 
The proposed addition meets the setback and dimensional requirements of the I-1 
Institutional District; review comments were provided for the requirements of that district. The 
footprint of the building has not changed. The height of the front elevation has increased 
from to 23’ 9”. The applicant has provided exhibits for Commission review. 
 
Request for Front Yard Fence. 
Fences located in a front yard require Plan Commission approval (§15-3.0803.C.2.a).  The draft 
resolution includes this request.  The applicant will also need to obtain a fence permit from 
Inspection Services. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
City Development Staff recommends approval of the proposed Site Plan, subject to the 
conditions of approval in the attached draft resolution. 
 
 
 



STATE OF WISCONSIN             CITY OF FRANKLIN               MILWAUKEE COUNTY 
PLAN COMMISSION 

[Draft 10/31/2023] 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-____ 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE PLAN AMENDMENT FOR THE  

REDESIGN OF THE FRONT ENTRANCE OF THE WE ENERGIES SERVICE CENTER, UPON  
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4800 WEST RAWSON AVENUE 

(BY RYAN LEE, WEC ENERGY GROUP, APPLICANT,  
DEVO PROPERTIES/RAWSON LLC, PROPERTY OWNER) 

              

WHEREAS, Ryan Lee, WEC Energy Group having petitioned the City of Franklin 
for the approval of a Site Plan for the redesign of the front entrance of the WE 
Energies Service Center, upon property located at 4800 West Rawson Avenue, zoned 
I-1 Institutional District.  Such Site Plan having been previously approved as part of a 
Use approval August 7, 1985, and subsequent Site Plan review approvals on July 8, 
1999; October 7, 1999; RES 2014-007 on June 5, 2014; and RES 2014-009 on July 17, 
2014. The property which is the subject of the application bears Tax Key No. 740 
9988 006.  

WHEREAS, the development proposes to create new front entrance area with 
redesigned roof and glazing, update landscaping, add windows to the west elevation 
of the building, and add a fenced-in employee outdoor seating area, and the Plan 
Commission having reviewed such proposal and having found same to be in 
compliance with the applicable terms and provisions of I-1 Institutional District (§15-
3.0312) of the Unified Development Ordinance and in furtherance of those express 
standards and purposes of a site plan review pursuant to Division 15-7.0100 of the 
Unified Development Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of 
Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Site Plan for WE Energies, dated October 30, 2023 as 
submitted by Ryan Lee, WEC Energy Group, as described above, is hereby approved 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Ryan Lee, WEC Energy Group, successors and assigns and any developer of 
the WE Energies project shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all 
development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of 
Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the WE Energies 



WE ENERGIES - SITE PLAN AMENDMENT  
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-_____ 
Page 2 
 

2 
 

project, within 30 days of invoice for same.  Any violation of this provision 
shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to §15-
9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and 
remedies provisions, as amended from time to time. 

2. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the Ryan Lee, WEC 
Energy Group and the WE Energies project for the property located at 4800 
West Rawson Avenue: (i) being in compliance with all applicable 
governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) 
obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, 
required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented 
for this approval. 

3. The WE Energies project shall be developed in substantial compliance with the 
plans City file-stamped October 30, 2023. 

4. The Plan Commission grants approval of the requested fence located in a 
front yard (§15-3.0803.C.2.a). 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin, 
Wisconsin, that the WE Energies development as depicted upon the plans City file-
stamped October 30, 2023 attached hereto and incorporated herein, shall be 
developed and constructed within one year from the date of adoption of this 
Resolution, or this Resolution and all rights and approvals granted hereunder shall 
be null and void, without any further action by the City of Franklin; and the Site Plan 
for the property located at 4800 West Rawson Avenue, as previously approved, is 
amended accordingly. 
 
  Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2023. 
 

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City 
of Franklin this _______ day of ____________________, 2023. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
ATTEST:      _________________________________  
        John R. Nelson, Mayor 



WE ENERGIES - SITE PLAN AMENDMENT  
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-_____ 
Page 3 
 

3 
 

___________________________________      
Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk 
 
AYES ______ NOES ______ ABSENT ______ 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

4800 W. Rawson Ave.
TKN: 740 9988 006

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

R-5 

I-1 

R-6 R-3 

B-3 

B-3 

I-1 

C-1 

M-1 

M-1 

M-1 

PDD 

M-1 

C-1 C-1 

51
ST

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

 

RAWSON                         AVE 

WOODLAND

DR

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 390 780195 Feet

Property

 



Planning Department 
(414) 425-4024

4800 W. Rawson Ave.
TKN: 740 9988 006

This map shows the approximate relative location of property
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor.
This map is provided for informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriate for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.

51
ST

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

 

RAWSON                         AVE 

WOODLAND

DR

49
TH

    
    

    
    

    
    

   S
T  

 

MINNE
SO

TA
AV

E

N
2021 Aerial Photo

0 390 780195 Feet

Property

 



 

Site Plan Amendment  

751 N. Jefferson St., Suite 200, Milwaukee, WI, 53202 

T 414.220.9640 | continuumarchitects.com 

CAP 220302  WEC Oak Brook Service Center 

October 30, 2023 4800 West Rawson Avenue 
 
CONTENTS 

Project Narrative – Current 2023 Project (8.5x11 - 1 page) ...................................................................... Page 1 

Existing South Exterior Elevation – Photos (8.5x11 - 1 page) .................................................................. Page 2 

Legal Property Description (8.5x11 - 1 page) ................................................................................................ Page 3 

Fence Permit Application - Current 2023 Project (8.5x11 - 6 pages) ...............................................................  

Landscape Planting Plan - Current 2023 Project (8.5x11 - 1 page) ....................................................................  

Existing Site Plan (30x42 – 1 page) .................................................................... E-BD-026-A-010-001-001-06 

Existing Conditions with Survey – Current 2023 Project (30x42 – 1 page) ......................................... C010  

Site Restoration Plan – Current 2023 Project (30x42 – 1 page) ............................................................. C200  

Site Grading Plan – Current 2023 Project (30x42 – 1 page) ..................................................................... C300 

Exterior Elevations, Views – Current 2023 Project (30x42 – 1 page) ..................................................... A401 

Existing Site Power and Lighting Plan (30x42 – 1 page) ............................ E-BD-026-E-003-100-001-05 

 



 
Site Plan Amendment 

751 N. Jefferson St., Suite 200, Milwaukee, WI, 53202 

T 414.220.9640 | continuumarchitects.com 

CAP 220302  WEC Oak Brook Service Center 
October 30, 2023 4800 West Rawson Avenue 
 
PROJECT NARRATIVE 

For the current 2023 project at the existing WEC Oak Brook Service Center, the overall site is not 

being modified – there are no changes to parking areas, circulation, or exterior lighting.  See 
sheets E-BD-026-A-010-001-001-06 / E-BD-026-E-003-100-001-05. 

The current 2023 project is primarily an interior renovation of office spaces within the low office 

volume, approximately 11,000 sf of interior refresh within the main building on the site.  With this 

renovation, there is no change in occupancy. The existing maintenance garage and storage spaces 

within the main building will not be affected.  See sheet A201. 

On the exterior, there are two areas being affected architecturally.  

1. The west elevation of the existing low office volume is receiving punched windows. Existing 

precast panels will be cleaned and regrouted.  See sheet A401. 
2. The south elevation existing office entrances / obsolete solar collector are being modified. 

Existing precast panels will be cleaned and regrouted.  See page 2 of Project Narrative for 
existing photos.  For new work, see sheet A401.  

a. Along the south side of the low office volume, the elevation was formerly composed 

of a glazed solar collector volume sandwiched between a glazed entry and precast 

wall panels at each end.  The glazed solar collector was capped with a glazed, 

sloping shed roof. The glazed entries were capped by sloped metal roofs.   

b. The solar collector glazed walls and roof have been demolished though the existing 
precast walls and concrete knee wall supports remain.   

c. On top of the existing footings/foundations/knee wall/precast panels, a new 

envelope has been constructed.  The building footprint has not changed. The new 

envelope occupies the same space as before, though it is taller to provide an 

improved entry signifier and more useful interior space.  Materials of the new 

envelope include metal panel, aluminum storefront and wood-look fiber cement 

panels.  The amount of glazing has not increased.  From a signage standpoint, the 

intent is to place a new wall sign (identical to the existing, faded version in size, 

shape, color, non-illuminated) centered above the larger public entry in lieu of the 

current location on the precast wall.   

From a site landscape perspective, the area near the existing south entries is being refreshed.  

1. This includes replacing the damaged and overgrown existing foundation landscape 

plantings flanking the entries with new plantings. See sheets C010, C200, C300, and 
Landscape Plan. 

2. Existing sidewalks adjacent to the building will be replaced in kind. See sheets C010, C200, 
C300, and Landscape Plan.  

3. Additions to the site include: 

a. A decorative fence around an outdoor patio seating area.  A complete application for 

a Fence Permit was submitted to Inspection Services for review on August 10, 2023 

and has been included for reference in these review materials.  

b. This patio will also be edged along the south side with a new planting bed and new 

plantings. See sheets C010, C200, C300, and Landscape Plan. 



October 25, 2023 
Page 2 

Continuum Architects + Planners, S.C. 

 

AREA OF WORK WITH EXISTING SOLAR COLLECTOR, SIGNAGE AND LANDSCAPE BEING REFRESHED  

AREA OF WORK 

WITH EXISTING 

SOLAR COLLECTOR, 

SIGNAGE, 

LANDSCAPE BEING 

REFRESHED, 

PAVEMENT BEING 

REPLACED IN KIND 

Existing South Exterior– Photos at Area of Work  

 

 

 

         

  



October 25, 2023 
Page 3 

Continuum Architects + Planners, S.C. 

 

LEGAL PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

Parcel 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 4565, recorded as Document No. 5786076, being a part of 

the Southeast 1/4 and the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 2, Town 5 North, 

Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin. 



Building Permit PB22-0653

conlynn.goetsch
Text Box
Net $6,494 / Fence



City of Franklin-Inspection Services FENCES www.franklinwi.gov  

9229 W. Loomis Road Phone (414) 425-0084 
Franklin, WI 53132 General Guidelines Fax (414) 425-7513 

The following are required of all fences installed in 

the City of Franklin: 

(a) All fences shall be maintained in good repair and 
in structurally sound condition. All fences shall be 
constructed and maintained in a good aesthetic 
condition and in such a manner and of such materials 
and colors so as not to adversely affect the value of 
adjoining property or property in the immediate 
neighborhood. No fence may be constructed or 
maintained which is detrimental to human life or safety 
or causes a traffic hazard. All fences shall be 
constructed and maintained straight, plumb, and of an 
even height along its length, except for such 
deviations as required by grade. 
(b) No advertising or signs shall be permitted on any 
fence in any zoning district. 
(c) No materials shall be stored between a fence 
located adjacent to a lot line and the lot. 
(d) Fencing shall be constructed with a finished or 
decorative side facing the adjacent or abutting 
property or street. 
(e) No fence shall be constructed in the City without 
first obtaining a Building Permit. 
(f) Snow fencing will only be permitted between 
November 15 and April 15 of each year. No Building 
Permits for the installation of said snow fencing shall 
be required. 
DEFINITIONS: 

(a) Fence: A structure that is a barrier or is used as a 
boundary or means of protection or confinement. 

(b) Fence - Solid: A fence, including gates, which 
conceals from view from adjoining properties, streets 
or alleys, activities conducted behind it. 
(c) Fence - Decorative: A fence, including gates, 
which are more than 75% open and less than 3 feet 
in height, such as split rail fences used for 
ornamental purposes. For purposes of this section, 
chain link and picket fences are not considered to be 
decorative fences. 
(d) Height: The height of the fence shall be 
determined by measuring the vertical distance from 
grade to the top of each section of the fence. 
(e) Yard, Front, Side, and Rear: All yard areas are 
defined by the City of Franklin Unified Development 
Ordinance. 

Inspdept(L)  fences r2/22 

RESIDENTIAL FENCING 

LOCATION: 
1. Fences having a height of six (6) feet or less may be used 

to locate property lines within the required side and rear 
yard areas in residential districts. 

2. Fences shall not be located within the front yard, except 
decorative fencing may be installed within the front yard 
areas in the residential districts. 

3. In R-8 General Residence Districts or a PDD (Residential) 
District where aesthetic appearance may require a fence 
or wall to shield parking lots or other unattractive areas or 
to generally improve the aesthetics of the development, a 
wall or fence may be erected in the front yard of the 
development, by approval of the Plan Commission, and 
which may include design or other architectural 
requirements. 

4. Fences shall not be located in a corner side yard or any 
rear yard abutting a street on a corner lot. For a rear yard 
abutting a street on a corner lot, the setback shall be the 
required corner side setback of the zoning district, or not 
any closer to the street than the distance from the street 
to the principal building to which it is accessory, 
whichever distance is greater. 

5. Double frontage lots (streets opposite each other) – A 
fence may be used to locate the property line within the 
required side and rear (back yard) property line. 

6. Three street frontage lots – A fence may not be placed 
in the rear or exterior corner side yard on lots with three 
street frontages. 

7. No barbed wire, chicken wire, or electrically charged 

fences shall be allowed in residential zoning districts. 

NONRESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 
(excluding A-1, A-2, I-1, and P-1 Districts) 

1. Fences may be located in all yards in nonresidential 
zoning districts. Fences located in the front yard shall be 
approved by the Plan Commission prior to the issuance of 
a building permit. 

2. Fences installed in nonresidential districts shall not 
exceed six (6) feet in height, except when required to 
enclose outside storage areas or when approved by the 
Plan Commission may be up to ten (10) feet in height. 

3. Fencing constructed to enclose outside storage areas shall 
be at least eight (8) feet in height and in no case lower in 
height than the enclosed storage area when approved by 
the Plan Commission. 

4. Barbed wire may be allowed on the top of fences six (6) 
feet or more in height. 

5. All fencing constructed to enclose outside storage areas 

in non-residential zoning districts shall be approved by the 

Plan Commission. 

A-1 AND A-2 ZONING DISTRICTS 
1. Fencing shall be permitted in all yards in the A-1 and A-2 
districts and in all yards on legal non-conforming agricultural 
uses for replacement of existing fencing. Fencing shall be 
permitted in front yards only for the enclosure of cultivated 
fields, pastures, and animal pens. 
2. Fencing for areas other than those described in Section 
1 above shall comply with the residential fencing 
requirements. 
3. Fencing may be constructed in the A-1 and A-2 districts 
for cultivated fields and pastures before a principal structure 
is present. 

INSTITUTIONAL AND PARK FENCING 
1. Fencing over six (6) feet in height, enclosing a park, 
elementary, middle, or high school site shall be permitted in 
all yards. 

2. All fencing in institutional districts or for institutional uses 
shall be limited to open mesh-type fencing (chain link). 

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT: 
In order to avoid delays in the processing of an 
application to erect or construct a fence the following 
information is necessary: 
1. A plat of survey (ACTUAL SCALE, NOT ENLARGED 
OR REDUCED), showing proposed fencing location, and 
any existing structures on the property. 
2. Dimensions of fence to lot lines and buildings. 
3. Height of fence above grade (highest point). 

4. Brochure or picture, showing type of fence proposed. 

5. Please complete attached WE Energies easement form. 
PLEASE NOTE: Diggers Hotline helps identify costly 
and dangerous utilities that can be buried just inches 
beneath your yard’s surface. Call or click three working 
days before digging and have your lines marked so you 
can dig freely and safely. Wisconsin's One-Call Center 
811 or (800) 242-8511 OR schedule your request online 
at www.diggershotline.com. 

INSPECTIONS: 
1. Location of fencing identified prior to setting posts. Lot 
lines and fence location must be marked (spray paint, 
string, etc.) No portion of fence allowed past lot line. 
2. When fence installation is complete. Lot markers 
must be identified until the final inspection has been 
completed. 

FEES:  
 
$13.00 per $1,000. value of work, $65.00 minimum fee 
All permits subject to Technology Fee of $7.00 

http://www.franklinwi.gov/
http://www.diggershotline.com/
conlynn.goetsch
Rectangle

conlynn.goetsch
Text Box
WEC Oak Brook Service Center, 4800 West Rawson Avenue, Franklin, WI - Fence Permit Application



conlynn.goetsch
Architect
See page 3 for project-specific information:- MAJESTIC is the style- Color is black- Height is 3'-0" above grade. 





conlynn.goetsch
Rectangle

conlynn.goetsch
Rectangle

conlynn.goetsch
Rectangle

conlynn.goetsch
Rectangle

conlynn.goetsch
Architect
MAJESTIC is the styleColor is blackHeight is 3'-0" above grade. 



OWNER'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF CONDITIONS FOR FENCES LOCATED IN  

WE ENERGIES UTILITY EASEMENTS 

Fences may be permitted in We Energies utility easements only subject to the following: 

1. The fence shall not be positioned nearer than 3' to any side of a transformer if present. 

2. The fence shall not be positioned nearer than 10' to the door of any transformer if 

present. EXCEPTION: If a gate or easily removable section of fence is positioned 

directly in front of the door and measures at least as wide as the door to the 

transformer, the distance may be reduced to 3'. 

3. We Energies will not repair or replace any portion of the fence in the utility 

easement if the fence needs to be removed for any utility work including 

clearing obstructions in the easement area. 

4. The fence shall not be attached to any utility equipment. 

5. "Digger's Hotline" shall be contacted prior to any excavation work. 

6. This authorization only applies to We Energies utility easements. 

Property Owner(s) hereby acknowledges that he/she has read and understands the above conditions: 

Sign ________________________________  Print ______________________________   

Sign ________________________________ Print ______________________________   

 

NOTE: The owner must sign this acknowledgement and include it with their fence permit submittal. 
 

Ryan Lee
(On behalf of WEC Energy Group)



SCALE:1" = 20'-0"

LANDSCAPE PLANTING PLAN

Greenfield Landscaping
1121 W Grange Ave

Milwaukee, WI 53221 
Office: (414)-431-0727
Fax:    (414)-755-0085

WEC OAK BROOK SERVICE CENTER / 4800 WEST RASWON AVENUE / FRANKLIN, WI 



W. RAWSON AVE. SH
EE

T 
TI

TL
E:

SHEET
NUMBER

DATE
ISSUED

SET
TYPE

PROJECT
NUMBER

REVISIONS:

SCALE VARIES

©
 

CONSULTANTS:

BID DOCUMENTS

W
EC

 O
AK

BR
OO

K 
SE

RV
IC

E 
CE

NT
ER

 R
EN

OV
AT

IO
N

48
00

 W
ES

T 
RA

W
SO

N 
AV

EN
UE

FR
AN

KL
IN

, W
I 5

31
32

220302

3636 North 124th Street
Wauwatosa, WI  53222
262-821-1171

08/26/2022

EX
IS

TI
NG

 C
ON

DI
TI

ON
S

C010

VICINITY MAP

NoTes
1. Evidence of underground utilities existing on or serving the surveyed property as

determined by markings requested by the surveyor pursuant to a Diggers Hotline One-call
center utility locate.  Ticket Number 20221520064. However, lacking excavation, the exact
location of underground features cannot be accurately, completely, and reliably
depicted. Client understands only utility lines with imbedded electric tracer wires or
utilities made of materials capable of electric connectivity can be marked at the surface
and located. Depth of utilities may prohibit their location even with electric connectivity.

2. Vertical datum is based on National Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1929.

ToPoGRAPHIC MAP

leGAl DesCRIPTIoN
Parcel 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 4565, recorded as Document No. 5786076, being a
part of the Southeast 1/4 and the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 2, Town
5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

BAsIs oF BeARINGs
Bearings are referenced  to the Certified Survey Map No. 4565, in which the South line
of the SE 1 /4 bears N87°36'53"E.

sITe ADDRess
4800 W. Rawson Avenue, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

W. RAWSON AVE.

S.
 5

1 
ST

. S
TR

EE
T

CoNTRol PoINT
POINT NORTHING EASTING ELEV. Description

101 5319.39 5757.63 737.42 MAG NAIL IN ASPHALT
2102 5348.64 5530.92 733.51 MAG NAIL IN ASPHALT
103 5351.32 5652.49 737.65 MAG NAIL IN ASPHALT
1BM 5295.81 5582.27 736.41 SITE BENCHMARK
2BM 5359.91 5824.35 740.31 SITE BENCHMARK

1 5063.32 5072.18 726.63 STARTING BENCHMARK

DATe
April 29, 2022

SITE

234 W. Florida Street
Milwaukee, WI 53204

414-224-8068
www.chaputlandsurveys.com

CONSULTANTS:



E A

FRANKLIN  WISCONSIN

026 010 001 001 06

SITE PLAN

OAKBROOK SERVICE CENTER

4800 WEST RAWSON AVENUE

BD

 

BD026A010001001.dgn
0053

 

 
2015

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

10 9 8 7 6 5 3 2 1

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

12345678910

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

4

$
F

IL
E

S
$

$SCALE$ $FILES$

$FILES$

DRAWNORDER NO.DATE WR. NO. CHKD. APVD.REVISION DESCRIPTION
NO.

REV.

                                                                                            

                                                                                            

                                                                                            

                                                                                            

                                                                                            

                                                                                            

REVISION BLOCK 2
DRAWNORDER NO.DATE WR. NO. CHKD. APVD.REVISION DESCRIPTION

NO.

REV.

                                                                                            

                                                                                            

                                                                                            

                                                                                            

                                                                                            

                                                                                            

REVISION BLOCK 1

FILE:

                

                

                

           

         

            

DRAWN DATE

CHECKED DATE

APPROVED DATE

ORDER NO.

WR. NO.

SCALE

MICROFILM NO.
BUILDING No:

THIS SHEET PRINTED ON:

$DATE$

$TIME$
AT:

VENDOR No:

S
B

2
0

1
0

v
e
rs

io
n

0
1

FACILITY MANAGEMENT

BUSINESS SERVICES

WEC ENERGY GROUP

IP

IP

G.P.

S
O

U
T

H
  
5
1
s
t 
 S

T
R

E
E

T

WEST RAWSON AVENUE    (C.T.H. "BB")

CONC

BLDG

ASPHALTIC PAVEMENT

BLDG

ASPH

ASPH

ASPH

ASPH

ASPH

BLDG

TAK KEY: 7409988002

6980 51st STREET

LOIS MARTIN

TAK KEY: 7401000000

5040 WEST RAWSON AVENUE

CONC

WETLANDS DELINEATED BY

KAPUR AND ASSOCIATES

(MAY 2014)

ASPH

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

DOC. NO. 6586193

SERVICE DISTRICT

RAWSON AVE. AREA FIRE PROTECTION

PARCEL 2, C.S.M. 4565 IS WITHIN THE

DOC. NO. 3225086

DIVISION JOB NO. 53-0036 - PROJECT S-0351 (4)

NORTH LINE, W. RAWSON AVE.
C.S.M. 4565-DOC. NO. 5786076

NORTH LINE, W. RAWSON AVE.
DOC. NO. 3572153

AT&T EASEMENT
DOC. NO. 7881504

NORTH LINE, W. RAWSON AVE.

B-2

B-3

B-1

B-4

B-7

B-6

F.F. ELEV=739.50
SERVICE CENTER BUILDING

IRIR

IPIR

IRIR

PP

P

P
P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P P P P P P PP

P

PP

P P

P
P

P

P
P

IR

FP

P

P

IRIR

IR

IR

IR

IRIR

IR

TANK

TANK

P

PAVEMENT

CONCRETE

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

C
O

N
S

E
R

V
A

T
IO

N

B
U

F
F

E
R
 A

N
D

�
3
0

�
' W

E
T
L
A

N
D

MEASURED OR AS-BUILT SURVEY DATA.
IS DESIGN DATA AND IS NOT BASED UPON FIELD 
INFORMATION DEPICTED ON THESE DRAWINGS 

NOTE:

EASEMENT-DOC. NO. 09503588
13.0 CITY OF FRANKLIN DRAINAGE

DRAINAGE EASEMENT
�13�' CITY OF FRANKLIN

R
A

W
S

O
N
 5

1
 C

O
N

D
O

M
IN
IU

M
F

O
R
 T

H
E
 B

E
N
IF
IT
 O

F
 T

H
E

�
6
0

�
' IN

G
R

E
S

S
/E

G
R

E
S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

BLDC

BLDC

MEASURED OR AS-BUILT SURVEY DATA.
DESIGN DATA AND IS NOT BASED UPON FIELD 
INFORMATION DEPICTED ON THESE DRAWINGS IS 
NOTE:

INV. 733.45
HYDRANT H-1

(SEE DETAIL)

20' WIDE EMERGENCY SPILLWAY
WISDOT PAL CLASS III, TYPE A ECRM

ELEV=733.50

RIP RAP

 (SEE DETAIL)

DOC. NO. 5792019
PART OF PARCEL 1, C.S.M. 4565
THE RAWSON 51 CONDOMINIUM
60.0 INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT FOR THE BENIFIT OF

VENT

PAVEMENT
ASPHALTIC 

PAVEMENT
ASPHALTIC 



SITE BENCHMARK: 740.31
NW TAG BOLT ON HYDRANT

CP-101

EXISTING LIGHT POLE
TO REMAIN IN PLACEEXISTING FLAG POLE

TO REMAIN IN PLACE

LEGEND

DISTURBANCE LIMITS

EXISTING CONCRETE
RETAINING WALL

SH
EE

T 
TI

TL
E:

SHEET
NUMBER

DATE
ISSUED

SET
TYPE

PROJECT
NUMBER

REVISIONS:

SCALE VARIES

©
 

CONSULTANTS:

BID DOCUMENTS

W
EC

 O
AK

BR
OO

K 
SE

RV
IC

E 
CE

NT
ER

 R
EN

OV
AT

IO
N

48
00

 W
ES

T 
RA

W
SO

N 
AV

EN
UE

FR
AN

KL
IN

, W
I 5

31
32

220302

3636 North 124th Street
Wauwatosa, WI  53222
262-821-1171

08/26/2022

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

C200

0' 2.5' 5' 7.5'

C400
1

PROPOSED CONCRETE WALKWAY OVER EXISTING BASE

PROPOSED CONCRETE PEDESTRIAN CURB

PROPOSED LANDSCAPE RESTORATION AREA
FINAL SELECTION OF PLANTINGS TO BE DETERMINED

SITE PLAN
SCALE:    1" = 5'1

NEW IPE WOOD BENCH SEAT
AT EXISTING RETAINING WALL
SEE SHEET A401 FOR DETAILS

EXISTING CONCRETE
RETAINING WALL

C400
2

NEW PREFINISHED ALUMINUM FENCE
SEE SHEET A401 FOR ELEVATION DETAIL

GENERAL NOTES

1. SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR ADDITIONAL RESTORATION INFORMATION.

2. THE LOCATION OF ALL STRUCTURES, OBSTACLES, AND EXISTING FACILITIES SHALL NOT BE TAKEN AS CONCLUSIVE. IT SHALL BE ASSUMED THAT THE CONTRACTOR HAS
VERIFIED SAID LOCATIONS AS A ND THEREFORE THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL DAMAGES RESULTING FORM THEIR ACTIVITIES.

3. ALL EXISTING STRUCTURES, OBSTACLES, AND EXISTING FACILITIES SHALL BE PROTECTED AND REMAIN IN PLACE UNLESS NOTED FOR REMOVAL ON THE DEMOLITION PLAN ON
SHEET C100.

4. SEE SHEET C010 FOR INFORMATION ON COORDINATES AND SURVEY CONTROL.

5. SEE SHEET C300 FOR GRADING PLAN.

6. ANY DAMAGE FROM THE CONTRACTOR'S OPERATIONS OUTSIDE THE THE SHOWN DISTURBANCE LIMITS TORE SHALL BE RESTORED TO AN IN KIND CONDITION.

 
C400

2

NEW IPE WOOD BENCH SEAT
AT EXISTING RETAINING WALL
SEE SHEET A401 FOR DETAILS



4.
52

%

4.
15

%

1.
50

%

1.
50

%

1.
50

%

1.
50

%

3.
84

%
3.

69
%

3.
76

% 3.
81

%

3.
16

%

4.
52

%

4.
64

%

4.
16

%
4.

19
%

1.
91

%

1.
90

%

1.
50

%

1.
50

%

1.
50

%

1.
50

%

1.
50

%

1.
84

%

3.
24

%
1.

72
%

1.
50

%

3.
83

%

4.
18

% 1.
50

%

1.
50

%

1.
50

%

1.
67

%

2.
00

%

1.
50

%

1.
75

%

0.
65

%

3.
23

%

4.
13

%

4.
09

%

2.
72

%

SITE BENCHMARK: 740.31
NW TAG BOLT ON HYDRANT

CP-101

1.
86

%
1.83%

1.84%
1.61%0.35%

2.08%

1.13%

2.11%

1.35%

0.32%

1.
94

%

0.27%

0.30%

0.11%

0.11%

0.32%

0.33%

0.32% 0.33% 0.04%

0.92% 1.
51

%

738.62

738.57738.54738.52738.54
738.55738.56738.59738.63

738.64

0.16%

0.19%

0.18%

1.80%

1.98%

738.01 ± (ME)
738.11 ± (ME)

738.18 ± (ME)
738.24 ± (ME)

738.20 ± (ME)
738.22 ± (ME)

738.24 ± (ME)

738.24 ± (ME)

738.23 ± (ME)

738.41 ± (ME)

743.15 ± (ME)

743.59 ± (ME)

739.62 ± (ME)

742.47 (TW)
742.36 (BW)

743.02 ± (ME)743.99 ± (ME)

738.07 ± (ME)

739.79 ± (ME)

738.00 ± (ME)

745.00 ± (ME)

738.27 738.32

738.60

738.81
738.80

738.73

738.89

738.89

738.94

738.85738.86

738.95 (FFE)

738.79 738.78

738.29738.30

738.79

738.35 738.32

738.79

738.39

738.63
738.59

738.32

738.88

742.47 (TW)
738.91 (BW)

741.13 (TW)
738.75 (BW)

737.91

738.11

739.94 (TW)
738.43 (BW)

738.80

738.93
738.95

738.86

738.94

738.86

738.95

738.86

738.79

738.95

738.75

738.91

738.82

738.33738.30

738.60
738.42 (BW)
739.52 (TW)

738.89 (BW)
742.45 (TW)

738.89

738.90 (FFE)

738.23 ± (ME)

738.24 ± (ME)738.23 ± (ME)
738.22 ± (ME) 738.21 ± (ME)

738.29

738.21 ± (ME)

738.06 ± (ME)

738.23

738.85

738.79

741.15 (TW)
739.05 (BW)

738.82

738.95 (FFE)
738.95 (FFE)

738.90
738.90

738.95 (FFE)

738.60

738.80

738.85

738.31

738.86

742.45 (TW)
741.23 (BW)

741.15 (TW)
741.04 (BW)

741.13 (TW)
741.03 (BW)

739.94 (TW)
739.01 (BW)

739.52 (TW)
739.46 (BW)

738

739

740

741

742

743

739

740

741

742

743

1. THE LOCATION OF ALL STRUCTURES, OBSTACLES, AND EXISTING FACILITIES SHALL NOT BE
TAKEN AS CONCLUSIVE. IT SHALL BE ASSUMED THAT THE CONTRACTOR HAS VERIFIED SAID
LOCATIONS AS A ND THEREFORE THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL DAMAGES
RESULTING FORM THEIR ACTIVITIES.

2. ALL EXISTING STRUCTURES, OBSTACLES, AND EXISTING FACILITIES SHALL BE PROTECTED AND
REMAIN IN PLACE UNLESS NOTED FOR REMOVAL ON THE DEMOLITION PLAN ON SHEET C100.

3. SEE SHEET C010 FOR INFORMATION ON COORDINATES AND SURVEY CONTROL.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL EROSION CONTROL PRIOR TO BEGINNING GRADING WORK. SEE
SHEET C050 FOR EROSION CONTROL PLAN.

5. GRADE ALL SURFACES FOR POSITIVE DRAINAGE.

6. ALL UTILITY STRUCTURES NOT CALLED OUT FOR REMOVAL SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO PROPOSED
GRADES.

7. PAVEMENT RESTORATIONS SHALL MEET ADJACENT EXISTING PAVEMENTS AS A FLUSH MATCH.

GRADING PLAN NOTESLEGEND

PROPOSED SPOT GRADE

MATCH EXISTING SPOT GRADE

FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION

TOP WALL ELEVATION

BOTTOM OF WALL (AT SURFACE) ELEVATON

PROPOSED GRADING CONTOUR

EXISTING GRADING CONTOUR

EXISTING SPOT ELEVATION

PROPOSED SURFACE SLOPE

DRAINAGE FLOW PATH

DISTURBANCE LIMITS

PROPOSED CONCRETE WALKWAY

PROPOSED CONCRETE PEDESTRIAN CURB

PROPOSED LANDSCAPE RESTORATION AREA
FINAL SELECTION OF PLANTINGS TO BE DETERMINED

739

738.50

738.50 ± (ME)

EXISTING CONCRETE
RETAINING WALL

SH
EE

T 
TI

TL
E:

SHEET
NUMBER

DATE
ISSUED

SET
TYPE

PROJECT
NUMBER

REVISIONS:

SCALE VARIES

©
 

CONSULTANTS:

BID DOCUMENTS

W
EC

 O
AK

BR
OO

K 
SE

RV
IC

E 
CE

NT
ER

 R
EN

OV
AT

IO
N

48
00

 W
ES

T 
RA

W
SO

N 
AV

EN
UE

FR
AN

KL
IN

, W
I 5

31
32

220302

3636 North 124th Street
Wauwatosa, WI  53222
262-821-1171

08/26/2022

SI
TE

 G
RA

DI
NG

 P
LA

N

C300

0' 2.5' 5' 7.5'

EXISTING CONCRETE
RETAINING WALL

738.95 (FFE)

0.49%

SITE GRADING PLAN
SCALE:    1" = 5'1

738.50 (TW)

738.50 (BW)

NEW IPE WOOD BENCH SEAT
AT EXISTING RETAINING WALL
SEE SHEET A401 FOR DETAILS

NEW IPE WOOD BENCH SEAT
AT EXISTING RETAINING WALL
SEE SHEET A401 FOR DETAILS



LEVEL 01
ELEV: 100' - 0"

B.O. NEW ROOF DECK
ELEV: 114' - 5"

GARAGE ROOF LEVEL
ELEV: 124' - 8"

B C

44444 5 5 5

1 9

10

6

7

12 12

2

A501

4

A501

4

5'
 -

 0
" 

T
Y

P
2'

 -
 6

" 
T

Y
P

T
Y

P

7'
 -

 6
"

3

9'
 -

 5
"

14
' -

 4
"

23
' -

 9
"

D

33 3 3 3

LEVEL 01
ELEV: 100' - 0"

B.O. NEW ROOF DECK
ELEV: 114' - 5"

GARAGE ROOF LEVEL
ELEV: 124' - 8"

1 3

A501

9'
 -

 5
"

S
U

N
S

H
A

D
E

1'
 -

 0
"

6

71
2 9 1 9

9

3

12 12

12 1212 12 44 4

1

A501

4
31

3 4 5 6

21
' -

 1
"

23
' -

 9
"

14
' -

 4
"

11
' -

 8
"

7'
 -

 9
"

1'
 -

 8
"

9'
 -

 5
"

DASHED OVAL INDICATES 
NEW WALL SIGN POSITION

4'
 -

 1
"

Z
O

N
E

S
IG

N
A

G
E

 
5'

 -
 3

"

EQ

ZONE

SIGNAGE 
6' - 0" EQ

13

PANEL JOINT, TYP

3

X001

LEVEL 01
ELEV: 100' - 0"

B.O. NEW ROOF DECK
ELEV: 114' - 5"

C

1

9

108 12

11
' -

 8
"

9'
 -

 5
"

21
' -

 1
"

D

EXISTING CONCRETE 
PRECAST PANEL TO 
REMAIN

LEVEL 01
ELEV: 100' - 0"

B.O. NEW ROOF DECK
ELEV: 114' - 5"

GARAGE ROOF LEVEL
ELEV: 124' - 8"

1
3

A501

T
Y

P

F
E

N
C

E
3'

 -
 0

"

811 11 11 11 1110 10

1

A501

3 4 5 6

EXTERIOR ELEVATION LEGEND

FIBER CEMENT PANEL 1 - B.O.D. NICHIHA VINTAGEWOOD AWP 1818, COLOR: CEDAR 

METAL PANEL 1 - B.O.D. KINGSPAN MORIN MATRIX PAINTED ALUMINUM, COLOR: WEATHERED ZINC

CONCRETE - PRECAST - EXISTING 

1" INSULATED GLAZING, TYP, WITH THERMALLY-BROKEN ALUMINUM STOREFRONT SYSTEM, FINISH: CLEAR ANODIZED  

1" INSULATED SPANDREL GLAZING, TYPICAL, WITH THERMALLY-BROKEN ALUMINUM STOREFRONT SYSTEM, FINISH: 
CLEAR ANODIZED  
  

1

2

3

EXTERIOR WALL TYPE 1 - METAL PANEL WITH METAL STUD WALL:
1 1/2" METAL PANEL 
1" AIR SPACE (AND VERTICAL SUBGIRT SYSTEM)
3" MINERAL WOOL BOARD INSULATION WITH THERMALLY-BROKEN PULTRUDED FRP GIRT 

SYSTEM AT 24"O.C. (HORIZONTAL)
FLUID APPLIED AIR AND WATER BARRIER 
5/8" GLASS MAT SHEATHING
6" COLD FORMED METAL FRAMING AT 16" O.C.
5/8" GYPSUM BOARD
TOTAL WALL THICKNESS 1'-3/4"

EXTERIOR WALL TYPE 2 - FIBER CEMENT PANEL WITH METAL STUD WALL:
5/8" WOOD-LOOK FIBER CEMENT PANEL 
AIR SPACE (AND HORIZONTAL PANEL CLIP SYSTEM)
3" MINERAL WOOL BOARD INSULATION WITH THERMALLY-BROKEN PULTRUDED FRP GIRT 

SYSTEM AT 16" O.C. (VERTICAL, ALIGNED WITH VERTICAL STUD FRAMING)
FLUID APPLIED AIR AND WATER BARRIER 
5/8" GLASS MAT SHEATHING
6" COLD FORMED METAL FRAMING AT 16" O.C.
5/8" GYPSUM BOARD
TOTAL WALL THICKNESS 11 3/8"

EXTERIOR WALL TYPE 3 - EXTG CONCRETE KNEE WALL:
EXISTING SITE CAST CONCRETE WALL 
3 5/8" METAL FURRING WTH SPRAY FOAM INSULATION
5/8" GYPSUM BOARD
TOTAL WALL THICKNESS 1'-1/4"

X WINDOW TYPE. SEE EXTERIOR WINDOW TYPES, SHEET A401

GARAGE

STORES

AREA OF WORK

LEVEL 01
ELEV: 100' - 0"

S
E

A
T

SEAT

6' - 9"

BACKREST

6' - 9"

B
A

C
K

R
E

S
T

1'
 -

 5
"

FROM EDGE OF EXTG WALL

5' - 0" VIF

EXISTING RETAINING WALL

THERMALLY MODIFIED 
WOOD BENCH

SSTL SUPPORT ANGLE @ 
18"O.C. MIN, TYP. 

8

A401

2'
 -

 9
"

S
E

A
T

 H
E

IG
H

T

1'
 -

 4
"

10

A401

FOOT

2' - 0"

LEVEL 01
ELEV: 100' - 0"

3"W X 1 1/2" THICK 
THERMALLY MODIFIED 
WOOD STOCK SLATS

3 5/8" METAL STUD FRAMING 
@16" O.C.

WEDGE
3"

1'
 -

 4
" 1' - 6"

STEEL BACK SUPPORT, 
GALVANIZED AND POWDER 
COATED @ 18" O.C.

T+G THERMALLY 
MODIFIED WOOD 
DECKING

3"W X 1 1/2" THICK THERMALLY 
MODIFIED ANGLED WOOD 
STOCK BACK SUPPORT WEDGE

@
 B

O
T

T
O

M
1"

 M
A

X
 G

A
P

EXISTING SLOPED 
CONCRETE RETAINING 
WALL TO REMAIN 

1' - 6"

AT EACH SUPPORT, PROVIDE 
(2) 1/2"Ø STAINLESS STEEL 
THREADED RODS EMBEDED 3 
1/2" INTO CONCRETE WITH 
ADHESIVE (HILTI HIT HY-20) 
PER STRUCTURAL GENERAL 
NOTES

3 
1/

2"
2"

3 1/2"

M
IN

 3
"

NOTE: B.O.D. THERMORY ASH 
- SEAT AND BACKREST: STANDARD STOCK, SIZE 2X4 NOMINAL, NO OIL 
- FOOT: GROOVED T+G DECKING, SIZE 5/4X4, NO OIL 

LEVEL 01
ELEV: 100' - 0"

EXISTING SLOPED 
CONCRETE RETAINING 
WALL TO REMAIN

THERMALLY 
MODIFED WOOD 
BENCH FOOT

THERMALLY MODIFED 
WOOD BENCH 
BACKREST AND SEAT

GL-1GL-1GL-1

GL-1T GL-1T GL-1T GL-1T

EQSEE SCHEDEQ

12' - 0" VIF

2'
 -

 5
"

S
E

E
 S

C
H

E
D

9'
 -

 5
"

1

GL-1

TYP, UNO

53' - 4" VIF

3 4 5 6

GL-1T

GL-1

2'
 -

 5
"

5'
 -

 4
"

1'
 -

 8
"

7'
 -

 9
"

WIDER MULLION 
4 1/2"

WIDER MULLION 
4 1/2"

2' - 5" 1' - 3" 3' - 1" 1' - 3" 2' - 5" 3' - 2"

GL-2GL-2T

GL-2GL-2

2' - 5" 1' - 3" 3' - 2" 2' - 5" 2' - 5" 3' - 2"

SEE SCHED

3' - 2" 2' - 5" 2' - 5" 3' - 2" 1' - 3" 2' - 6 1/2"1' - 3" 1' - 3"3' - 2"1' - 3" 1' - 3"

3

A+/- B A C C C C C C C

S
E

E
 S

C
H

E
D

B B B B B B B+/-A A A A A A A

TYP, UNO

GL-1T GL-1T

GL-1T

GL-1 GL-1

GL-1T

SEE SCHED

5' - 8" VIF

2'
 -

 5
"

9'
 -

 5
"

S
E

E
 S

C
H

E
D

2' - 6" VIF

3

GL-1

TYP

2'
 -

 6
"

5'
 -

 0
" 

R
.O

3' - 0" 4' - 0" R.O. 3' - 0"

2

PANEL 
JOINT

PANEL 
JOINT

LEVEL 01
ELEV: 100' - 0"

3"W X 1 1/2" THICK 
THERMALLY MODIFIED 
WOOD SLATS

TOP OF SLOPED EARTH BEYOND 

EXISTING SLOPED CONCRETE 
RETAINING WALL TO REMAIN 

EXISTING SLOPED GRADE

CONCRETE WALKWAY ON 
GRAVEL BASE - SEE CIVIL

STAINLESS STEEL SUPPORT 
ANGLE @ 18" O.C.

1' - 6"

1'
 -

 4
"

AT EACH SUPPORT, PROVIDE 
(2) 1/2"Ø STAINLESS STEEL 
THREADED RODS EMBEDED 
3 1/2" INTO CONCRETE WITH 
ADHESIVE (HILTI HIT HY-20) 
PER STRUCTURAL GENERAL 
NOTES

1 
1/

2"
4"

3 1/2"

M
IN

 3
"

WOOD STOCK SLATS

STEEL BACK SUPPORT, 
GALVANIZED AND POWDER 
COATED @ 18" O.C.

4"

3"

S
H

E
E

T
 T

IT
LE

:

SHEET
NUMBER

DATE 
ISSUED

SET
TYPE

PROJECT 
NUMBER

REVISIONS:

SCALE VARIES

©
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 2

0
2
2
, 
C

O
N

T
IN

U
U

M
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 +
 P

L
A

N
N

E
R

S
 S

.C
.

CONSULTANTS:

751 N Jefferson St.

Suite 200

Milwaukee, WI 53202

414.220.9640T

BID DOCUMENTS

08/26/2022

A401

E
X

T
E

R
IO

R
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

, V
IE

W
S

 A
N

D
 W

IN
D

O
W

 T
Y

P
E

S

W
E

C
 O

A
K

B
R

O
O

K
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 C

E
N

T
E

R
 R

E
N

O
V

A
T

IO
N

48
00

 W
E

S
T

 R
A

W
S

O
N

 A
V

E
N

U
E

F
R

A
N

K
LI

N
, W

I 5
31

32

220302

SEE PROJECT GENERAL CONDITIONS, GENERAL INFORMATION ON SHEET A001 AND SELECTIVE DEMOLITION, CUTTING AND PATCHING
SPECIFICATIONS THAT ARE USED IN ASSOCIATION WITH THESE NOTES.

NEW WORK PLAN KEY NOTES APPLY TO ALL NEW WORK DRAWINGS AND MAY NOT BE USED ON EVERY SHEET.

EXTERIOR ELEVATION KEY NOTES

1 EXTERIOR WALL TYPE 1

2 EXTERIOR WALL TYPE 2

3 EXTERIOR WALL TYPE 3

4 NEW THERMALLY BROKEN ALUMINUM STOREFRONT SYSTEM.

5 DIAGONAL HATCH INDICATES ZONE WITH EXISTING WALL-MOUNTED CONDUIT, METERS, ETC. COORDINATE WITH ELECTRICAL
DEMO VIF EXACT POSITION.

6 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM SUNSHADE, COLOR: MATCH MP-1. SEE ROOF PLAN AND SPECIFICATIONS.

7 NEW WALL-MOUNTED 'WE' LOGO SIGN. NON ILLUMINATED, BY OWNER.

8 PREFINISHED ALUMINUM FENCE. B.O.D. AMERISTAR ECHELON PLUS SERIES, 3 RAIL PANELS, MAJESTIC STYLE.

9 PREFINISHED TWO-PIECE ALUMINUM COPING ASSEMBLY.

10 NEW THERMALLY MODIFIED WOOD BENCH SEAT AT EXISTING RETAINING WALL, TYP. SEE PLAN AND ELEVATIONS.

11 NEW LANDSCAPE, SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS.

12 EXISTING PRECAST WALL, TYP.

13 PROVIDE 5/8"TREATED PLYWOOD BLOCKING IN AT DIAGONAL HATCHED AREA BEHIND NEW WALL SIGN IN LIEU OF 5/8"
GYPSUM SHEATHING IN THE WALL ASSEMBLY. FLUID-APPLIED AIR AND WATER BARRIER CONTINUES OVER PLYWOOD
PROVIDE ADDITIONAL LAYER OF 3/4" TREATED PLYWOOD BLOCKING BEHING THE FIRST LAYER.

Scale:

0' 4' 8' 12'2'

1/8" = 1'-0"5 NEW WORK - WEST ELEVATION

Scale:

0' 2" 4" 6"1"

1/8" = 1'-0"2 NEW WORK - SOUTH ELEVATION
Scale:

0' 2" 4" 6"1"

1/8" = 1'-0"6 NEW WORK - EAST ELEVATION

Scale:

0' 2" 4" 6"1"

1/8" = 1'-0"1 NEW WORK - SOUTH ELEVATION WITH SITE ELEMENTS

Scale:

0' 2" 4" 6"1"

3 VIEW FROM SW

Scale:

0' 2" 4" 6"1"

4 VIEW FROM SE

SCALE:1" = 200'-0"

KEY PLAN

Scale:

0' 2" 4" 6"1"

1/2" = 1'-0"7 ELEV - EXTERIOR WOOD BENCH, TYP.

Scale:

0' 2" 4" 6"1"

1" = 1'-0"8 SECTION - EXTERIOR BENCH

Scale:

0' 2" 4" 6"1"

1/2" = 1'-0"9 ELEV - EXTERIOR BENCH

Scale:

0' 2" 4" 6"1"

1/4" = 1'-0"12 EXTERIOR WINDOW TYPES

Scale:

0' 2" 4" 6"1"

1" = 1'-0"10 SECTION - EXTERIOR BENCH SEAT

Scale:

0' 2" 4" 6"1"

1 1/2" = 1'-0"11 SECTION - STEEL BACK SUPPPORT

8 02/15/23 CB06

9 02/21/23 CB07

8 02/15/23 CB06

9 02/21/23 CB07

9



WEC 2023 PROJECT - NO CHANGES


	01 2023-1109 Plan Commission Agenda
	02 2023-1019 PC Minutes - Draft
	03 2023-1024 PC Minutes - Draft
	04 Item C.1.-D.1._Master Halco_Special Use-Site Plan Amend
	01 2023-1109 PC Report - 7407 S 27th  - Master Halco Misc, SU SP
	CITY OF FRANKLIN

	02 2023-1109 RES - 7407 S 27th  - Master Halco Special Use Permit rd02
	03 2023-1109 RES - 7407 S 27th - Master Halco Site Plan Amendment rd02
	04 Planning Map_Combined
	Planning Map_Aerial
	Planning Map_Locator

	05 CJE2238R2-Water Main Easement
	06 CJE2238R2-CIVIL SET-1
	CJE2238R2-CIVIL SET
	CJE2238R2-C1.0.pdf

	DOC110123-11012023111923

	07 AL-1-22-088 ALTA

	05 Item C.2._BadAx Flats, LLC_Special Use
	01 2023-1109 PC Report - BadAx Flats, LLC SU
	CITY OF FRANKLIN

	02 2023-1121 RES - BadAx Flats, LLC SU
	Planning Map_Combined.pdf
	Planning Map_Aerial
	Planning Map_Locator


	06 Item D.2._&_C.3. (6-22-23)_BadAx Flats, Inc._Site Plan
	Item D.2._BadAx Flats, Inc._Site Plan
	2023-1109 PC Staff Report - BadAx Flats - SP
	Ballpark Commons BadAx Flats Mixed-Use Bldg. SP 6-12-23

	Item C.3. (6-22-23)_BadAx Flats, Inc._Site Plan
	01 10 PC Staff Report - BadAx Flats - LM Edits v2
	02 BadAx Sumittal Cover Letter
	03 15-3.0701 A-C General Standards for Special Use Responses
	04 Badax City Resubmittal 2023-7-11
	05 DOC110323-11032023144902
	06 Trash Enclosure Details ASP-100
	07 The Seasons Staff Report 3-13-23
	08 Badax Landscape Resubmittal 2023-7-11


	07 Item D.3._BadAx Flats_Minor PDD Amend
	2023-1109 PC Report - PDD No. 37 Amendment
	2023-1121 ORD - PDD No. 37 Amendment

	08 Item D.4._City of Franklin_Site Plan Amend
	01 2023-11-09- PC Report - 7979 W Ryan DPW SP
	CITY OF FRANKLIN

	02 2023-DRAFT - RES - 7979 W Ryan DPW SP
	03 Planning Map_Combined
	Planning Map_Aerial
	Planning Map_Locator

	04 01 - City of Franklin narrative 10.30.23
	2. Current and anticipate future hours of operation
	3. Activities performed on the site

	05 Franklin Public Works and Fire_2023.10.30
	Sheets
	01 - Title Sheet - Phase I
	1A101 - Storage Building - Phase I - Site Plan
	1A102 - Landscape Plan
	1A201 - Storage Building - Floor Plan - Overall
	1A211 - Site Lighting Plan
	1R100 - Storage Building - Phase I - Rendering
	1R101 - Storage Building - Phase I - Rendering



	09 Item D.5._WE Energies_Site Plan Amend
	01 2023-11-09 PC Report WE Energies_SPa_4800 W Rawson Ave
	CITY OF FRANKLIN

	02 2023-11-09 RES WE Energies_SPa_4800 W Rawson Ave
	03 Planning Map_Combined
	Planning Map_Aerial
	Planning Map_Locator

	04 Applicant Submittal Binder1
	01_WEC Oak Brook Service Center Renovation_Site Plan Amendment Contents_20231030
	02_Project Narrative_20231030
	03_Existing South Exterior Photos_20231030
	04_Legal Property Desription_20231030
	05_Fence Permit_6 pages
	220302 WEC OBSC Fence Permit Application_20230810 1
	220302 WEC OBSC Fence Permit Application_20230810 2
	220302 WEC OBSC Fence Permit Application_20230810 4
	220302 WEC OBSC Fence Permit Application_20230810 5
	220302 WEC OBSC Fence Permit Application_20230810 6
	220302 WEC OBSC Fence Permit Application_20230810 7

	06_Landscape Plan
	07_EXISTING CONDITIONS with Survey
	08_EXISTING SITE PLAN
	09_CIVIL SITE PLAN
	10_CIVIL GRADING PLAN
	11_EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	12_EXTERIOR SITE POWER AND LIGHTING PLAN





